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Territorial
Bancorp Inc.

CHAIRMAN AND CEQO’S MESSAGE
Fellow Shareholders:

It is with great pleasure that | present Territorial Bancorp Inc.’s (the Company) first
annual report. The Company successfully converted from a mutual to a stock corpora-
tion on July 10, 2009. We were extremely pleased to be able to complete the conver-
sion in an uncertain economic environment. We would like to share this report on our
2009 results with you.

The banking industry had a very challenging year in 2009. The economy was char-
acterized by rising unemployment and increasing home foreclosures. Many banks
throughout the country have seen an increase in loan delinquencies and non-perform-
ing assets. Fortunately, Territorial Bancorp Inc. has succeeded despite these economic
conditions. For the year ended December 31, 2009, the Company earned $8.7 million,
or $.77 per share, compared to $7.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2008.

2009 Highlights and Financial Performance

e The highlight of 2009 was our very successful initial public offering (IPO) in
which the Company converted from a mutual to a stock institution. The IPO was
completed on July 10, 2009 and our stock began trading on July 13, 2009 on the
NASDAQ Global Select Market under the symbol “TBNK”.

e As a result of our IPO and the current year’s earnings, stockholders’ equity
increased from $99.4 million at the end of 2008 to $219.7 million at the end of
2009.

e The IPO and the growth in deposits allowed the Company’s total assets to grow
from $1.22 billion at December 31, 2008 to $1.39 billion at December 31, 2009.

o Total deposits grew by $90.8 million or 9.82% to $1.01 billion as we were very
successful in attracting new customers and increasing our market share.

e Net interest income before provision for loan losses grew by $5.6 million or
15.5% to $41.5 million. This increase was primarily due to a reduction in interest



paid on deposits, Federal Home Loan Bank advances subordlnated debentures
and other borrowings.

 Territorial Savings Bank consistently maintains regulatory ratios exceeding
Federal “well-capitalized” standards and has a strong balance sheet and capital
position.

e Our ratio of non-performing assets to total assets at December 31, 2009 was
only .05%, one of the lowest ratios for bank holding companies in the nation.

¢ In August 2009 we opened our twenty-fifth branch in Kihei, Maui. The Kihei
branch is our third branch on Maui. .

2009 was a very exciting year for Territorial Bancorp Inc. While there are some signs
that the economy is improving, we expect that the competition to increase deposits and
originate new loans.in 2010 will be challenging. We are confident however, that our
strategies of emphasizing good asset quality and controlling operating costs will serve
us well in the future. :

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to thank all of our shareholders,
employees and customers for their continued confidence and support.

Allan S. Kitagawa
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and President
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FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report contains forward-looking statements, which can be identified by the use of words such as “estimate,”

“project,” “believe,” “intend,” “anticipate,
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plan,” “seek,” “expect,” “will,” “may” and words of similar meaning. These forward-

looking statements include, but are not limited to:

statements of our goals, intentions and expectations;
statements regarding our business plans, prospects, growth and operating strategies;
statements regarding the asset quality of our loan and investment portfolios; and

estimates of our risks and future costs and benefits.

These forward-looking statements are based on our current beliefs and expectations and are inherently subject to significant
business, economic and competitive uncertainties and contingencies, many of which are beyond our control. In addition, these
forward-looking statements are subject to assumptions with respect to future business strategies and decisions that are subject to
change. We are under no duty to and do not take any obligation to update any forward-looking statements after the date of this Annual

Report.

The following factors, among others, could cause actual results to differ materially from the anticipated results or other
expectations expressed in the forward-looking statements:

general economic conditions, either nationally or in our market areas, that are worse than expected;
competition among depository and other financial institutions;

inflation and changes in the interest rate environment that reduce our margins or reduce the fair value of financial
instruments;

adverse changes in the securities markets;

changes in laws or government regulations or policies affecting financial institutions, including changes in regulatory fees
and capital requirements;

our ability to enter new markets successfully and capitalize on growth opportunities;
our ability to successfully integrate acquired entities, if any;
changés in consumer spending, borrowing and savings habits;

changes in accounting policies and practices, as may be adopted by the bank regulatory agencies, the Financial
Accounting Standards Board, the Securities and Exchange Commission and the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board;

changes in our organization, compensation and benefit plans;
the timing and amount of revenues that we may recognize;

the value and marketability of collateral underlying our loan portfolios;

the impact of current governmental efforts to restructure the U.S. financial and regulatory system;

the quality and composition of our investment portfolio;

changes in our financial condition or results of operations that reduce capital available to pay dividends; and

changes in the financial condition or future prospects of issuers of securities that we own.

Because of these and a wide variety of other uncertainties, our actual future results may be materially different from the results
indicated by these forward-looking statements.



PART 1

ITEM 1. Business
Territorial Bancorp Inc.

Territorial Bancorp Inc. is a Maryland corporation and owns 100% of the common stock of Territorial Savings Bank. On
July 10, 2009, we completed our initial public offering of common stock in connection with the mutual-to-stock conversion of
Territorial Mutual Holding Company, selling 12,233,125 shares of common stock at $10.00 per share and raising $122.3 million of
gross proceeds. Since the completion of our initial public offering, we have not engaged in any significant business activity other than
owning the common stock of and having savings deposits in Territorial Savings Bank. At December 31, 2009, we had consolidated
assets of $1.390 billion, consolidated deposits of $1.015 billion and consolidated stockholders’equity of $219.7 million.

Our executive offices are located at 1132 Bishop Street, Suite 2200, Honolulu, Hawaii 96813. Our telephone number at this
address is (808) 946-1400.

Territorial Savings Bank

Territorial Savings Bank is a federally chartered savings bank headquartered in Honolulu, Hawaii. Territorial Savings Bank was
organized in 1921, and reorganized into the mutual holding company structure in 2002. Territorial Savings Bank is currently the
wholly-owned subsidiary of Territorial Bancorp Inc. We provide financial services to individuals, families and businesses through our
25 banking offices located throughout the State of Hawaii.

Territorial Savings Bank’s executive offices are located at 1132 Bishop Street, Suite 2200, Honolulu, Hawaii 96813. Our
telephone number at this address is (808) 946-1400.

Available Information

Territorial Bancorp Inc. is a public company, and files interim, quarterly and annual reports with the Securities and Exchange
Commission. These respective reports are on file and a matter of public record with the Securities and Exchange Commission and may
be read and copied at the Securities and Exchange Commission’s Public Reference Room at 450 Fifth Street, NW, Washington, DC
20549. The public may obtain information on the operation of the Public Reference Room by calling the Securities and Exchange
Commission at 1-800-SEC-0330. The Securities and Exchange Commission maintains an Internet site that contains reports, proxy and
information statements, and other information regarding issuers that file electronically with the SEC (http://www.sec.gov).

Our website address is www.territorialsavings.net. Information on our website should not be considered a part of this annual
report.

General

Territorial Savings Bank’s business consists primarily of accepting deposits from the general public and investing those
deposits, together with funds generated from operations and borrowings, in one- to four-family residential mortgage loans and
investment securities. To a much lesser extent, we also originate home equity loans and lines of credit, construction, commercial and
other non-residential real estate loans, consumer loans, multi-family mortgage loans and other loans. Territorial Savings Bank offers a
variety of deposit accounts, including passbook and statement savings accounts, certificates of deposit, money market accounts,
commercial and regular checking accounts and Super NOW accounts. Through our subsidiary, Territorial Financial Services, Inc., we
engage in insurance agency activities. We also offer various non-deposit investments to our customers, including annuities and mutual
funds, through a third-party broker-dealer.

Market Area

We conduct our operations from our operations center and from our 25 full-service branch offices located throughout the State
of Hawaii.

The two largest components of Hawaii’s economy are tourism and the federal government, including the military. The State of
Hawaii has been striving to diversify the state’s economy by attracting more high-technology businesses to the state. The Hawaii
Department of Business, Economic Development and Tourism reported a 2.6% increase in tourists for the month of December 2009
compared to the month of December 2008, and a decline of 4.1% in the number of tourists for the first 11 months of 2009 versus the
same time period in 2008. Some of the largest individual private employers in the state include a staffing company, financial services
companies, the University of Hawaii System of higher education and research and health services companies.



The population in the State of Hawaii grew at an annualized rate of 1.0% from 2000 to 2009, compared to an annualized growth
rate of 1.2% for the United States as a whole over the same time period. Median household income increased to $61,537 in 2009,
representing an annualized growth rate of 3.1% from 2000, compared to median household income of $54,719 in 2009 for the United
States as a whole, and an annualized growth rate of 3.8% from 2000. The unemployment rate for the State of Hawaii was 6.5% as of
December 2009, representing an increase from a rate of 5.1% as of December 2008. This rate continued to be lower than the
unemployment rate for the United States as a whole during the same time period, which increased to 10.0% as of December 2009 from
3.8% from December 2008.

Through December 2009, the Hawaiian real estate market has experienced declining trends similar to the mainland, although
sales activity and home prices have not declined as severly compared to the mainland.

On the island of Oahu, the primary real estate market in Hawaii, sales of existing single-family homes totaled 2,658 units for the
year ended December 2009, a decrease of 3.0% compared to sales in 2008. The number of condominium sales, a notable portion of the
overall housing market, declined by 10.0% in 2009 compared to 2008. The median price paid on Oahu for a single-family home in
2009 was $578,000, a decrease of 7.0% compared to the median price in 2008. The median price paid on Oahu for condominiums in
2009 was $305,000, a decrease of 6.2% compared to the median price in 2008.

On the island of Maui, the second largest real estate market in Hawaii, sales of existing single-family homes totaled 693 units
for 2009, a decrease of 23.9% compared to similar sales during 2008. The number of condominium sales increased by 4.3% in 2009
compared to 2008. The median price paid for a single-family home on Maui in 2009 was $493,000, a decrease of 15.0% compared to
the median price in 2008. The median price paid on Maui for condominiums in 2009 was $485,900, a 10.0% decrease compared to the
median price in 2008.

The slowing Hawaiian economy also resulted in a rise in delinquency and foreclosure rates. For the third quarter of 2009,
Hawaii’s foreclosure rate of one filing per 185 households was ranked 14" highest in the nation, lower than the national average of one
foreclosure for every 136 households. The number of foreclosures has recently increased from an average of approximately 630
foreclosures per month during the first six months of 2009 to 1,534 foreclosures in the month of December 2009. Approximately one
in 21 Hawaii homeowners was delinquent in their mortgage payments as of September 2009, which was lower than the national
average of one in 16 homeowners that was delinquent.

Competition

We face intense competition in our market area both in making loans and attracting deposits. We compete with commercial
banks, savings institutions, mortgage brokerage firms, credit unions, finance companies, mutual funds, insurance companies and
investment banking firms. Some of our competitors have greater name recognition and market presence that benefit them in attracting
business, and offer certain services that we do not or cannot provide.

Our deposit sources are primarily concentrated in the communities surrounding our banking offices, located in all four counties
in the State of Hawaii. As of June 30, 2009 (the latest date for which information is publicly available), we ranked fifth in deposit
market share (out of 11 banks and thrift institutions with offices in Hawaii) in the State of Hawaii, with a 4.31% market share. As of
that date, our largest market share was in the County of Honolulu, where we ranked fifth in deposit market share (out of 11 banks and
thrift institutions with offices in Hawaii) with a 4.59% market share.

Lending Activities

Our primary lending activity is the origination of one- to four-family residential mortgage loans. To a much lesser extent, we
also originate home equity loans and lines of credit, construction, commercial and other non-residential real estate loans, consumer
loans, multi-family mortgage loans and commercial business loans.

One- to Four-Family Residential Mortgage Loans. At December 31, 2009, $555.5 million, or 91.3% of our total loan portfolio,
consisted of one- to four-family residential mortgage loans. We offer conforming, fixed-rate and adjustable-rate residential mortgage
loans with maturities generally up to 30 years, and to a much more limited extent, of up to 40 years and non-conforming loans with
maturities of up to 50 years. There has been little demand for adjustable-rate mortgage loans in our market area.

One- to four-family residential mortgage loans are generally underwritten according to Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac guidelines,
and we refer to loans that conform to such guidelines as “conforming loans.” We generally originate both fixed- and adjustable-rate
mortgage loans in amounts up to the maximum conforming loan limits as established by the Office of Federal Housing Enterprise
Oversight, which is currently $625,500 for single-family homes located in the State of Hawaii. We also originate loans above this
amount, which are referred to as “jumbo loans.” Our maximum loan amount for these loans is generally $1.0 million. We originate
fixed-rate jumbo loans with terms of up to 30 years due to customer preference for fixed-rate loans. We have not originated significant
amounts of adjustable-rate jumbo loans in recent years due to customer preference for fixed-rate loans in our market area. We
generally underwrite jumbo loans in a manner similar to conforming loans. Jumbo loans are not uncommon in our market area.
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We will originate loans with loan-to-value ratios in excess of 80%, up to and including a loan-to-value ratio of 100%. We
generally require private mortgage insurance for loans with loan-to-value ratios in excess of 80%. During the year ended
December 31, 2009, we originated $17.2 million of one- to four-family residential mortgage loans with loan-to-value ratios in excess
of 80%. We currently retain the servicing rights on loans sold to generate fee income, although we expect that we will be selling loans
on a servicing-released basis at some point in the year ending December 31, 2010. For the year ended December 31, 2009, we
received servicing fees of $333,000. As of December 31, 2009, the principal balance of loans serviced for others totaled $135.6
million.

We offer a variety of credit programs for low- to moderate-income and first-time home purchasers. These include our first time
home purchaser program, where the borrower will receive a 100 basis points reduction in points charged in connection with the loan.
We will also originate first mortgage loans to lower-income individuals who reside in rural census tracts where the U.S. Department of
Agriculture will issue a second mortgage and complete the underwriting of the loan, subject to our review before origination. We also
offer both FHA and VA fixed-rate loans.

Other than our loans for the construction of one- to four-family residential mortgage loans (described under “— Nonresidential
Real Estate Loans™), we currently do not originate new “interest only” mortgage loans on one- to four-family residential properties
(where the borrower pays interest for an initial period, after which the loan converts to a fully amortizing loan). We also do not offer
loans that provide for negative amortization of principal, such as “Option ARM” loans, where the borrower can pay less than the
interest owed on their loan, resulting in an increased principal balance during the life of the loan. We do not offer “subprime loans”
(loans that generally target borrowers with weakened credit histories typically characterized by payment delinquencies, previous
charge-offs, judgments, bankruptcies, or borrowers with questionable repayment capacity as evidenced by low credit scores or high
debt-burden ratios) or Alt-A loans (traditionally defined as non-conforming loans having less than full documentation).

Home Equity Loans and Lines of Credit. In addition to traditional one- to four-family residential mortgage loans, we offer
home equity loans and home equity lines of credit that are secured by the borrower’s primary residence. Home equity lines of credit
have a maximum term of 10 years during which time the borrower is required to make payments to principal based on the
amortization of 0.125% of principal outstanding per month. The borrower is permitted to draw against the line during the entire term.
Our home equity lines of credit are originated with adjustable rates of interest or with fixed rates of interest that convert to adjustable
rates of interest after an initial period of up to three years. Our home equity loans are originated with fixed rates of interest and with
terms of up to 30 years. Home equity loans and lines of credit are generally underwritten with the same criteria that we use to
underwrite one- to four-family residential mortgage loans. Home equity loans may be underwritten with a loan-to-value ratio of 80%
when combined with the principal balance of the existing mortgage loan, while lines of credit for owner-occupied properties and
investment properties may be underwritten with loan-to-value ratios of 75% and 65%, respectively, when combined with the principal
balance of the existing mortgage loan. We require appraisals on home equity loans and lines of credit when the aggregate loan amount
exceeds 60% of the property’s tax assessed value or when the home equity loan or line of credit is $250,000 or greater. At the time we
close a home equity loan or line of credit, we record a mortgage to perfect our security interest in the underlying collateral. At
December 31, 2009, the outstanding balance of home equity loans totaled $13.4 million, or 2.2% of our total loan portfolio, and the
outstanding balance of home equity lines of credit totaled $8.4 million, or 1.4% of our total loan portfolio.

Nonresidential Real Estate Loans. Our non-residential real estate loans consist primarily of commercial real estate loans and
construction loans for residential real estate projects. These loans totaled $20.8 million, or 3.4% of our loan portfolio as of
December 31, 2009. The commercial real estate properties primarily include owner-occupied light industrial properties. We seek to
originate commercial real estate loans with initial principal balances of $1.0 million or less. Loans secured by commercial real estate
totaled $9.1 million, or 1.5%, of our total loan portfolio at December 31, 2009, and consisted of 14 loans outstanding with an average
loan balance of approximately $652,000, although we originate loans with balances greater than this average. All of our nonresidential
real estate loans are secured by properties located in our primary market area. At December 31, 2009, our largest commercial real
estate loan had a principal balance of $1.7 million and was secured by real property and a building. This loan was performing in
accordance with its terms at December 31, 2009.

In the underwriting of commercial real estate loans, we generally lend up to the lesser of 75% of the property’s appraised value
or purchase price. We base our decision to lend primarily on the economic viability of the property and the creditworthiness of the
borrower. In evaluating a proposed commercial real estate loan, we emphasize the ratio of the property’s projected net cash flow to the
loan’s debt service requirement (generally requiring a minimum ratio of 115%), computed after deduction for a vacancy factor and
property expenses we deem appropriate. Personal guarantees are usually obtained from commercial real estate borrowers. We require
title insurance, fire and extended coverage casualty insurance, and, if appropriate, flood insurance, in order to protect our security
interest in the underlying property. Almost all of our commercial real estate loans are generated internally by our loan officers.



Commercial real estate loans generally carry higher interest rates and have shorter terms than one- to four-family residential
mortgage loans. Commercial real estate loans, however, entail greater credit risks compared to one- to four-family residential
mortgage loans, as they typically involve larger loan balances concentrated with single borrowers or groups of related borrowers. In
addition; the payment of loans secured by income-producing properties typically depends on the successful operation of the property,
as repayment of the loan generally is dependent, in large part, on sufficient income from the property to cover operating expenses and
debt service. Changes in economic conditions that are not in the control of the borrower or lender could affect the value of the
collateral for the loan or the future cash flow of the property. Additionally, any decline in real estate values may be more pronounced
for commercial real estate than residential properties.

We also originate a limited amount of construction loans to experienced developers, almost exclusively for the construction of
residential real estate projects. Construction loans are also made to individuals for the construction of their personal residences.
Construction loans to individuals are generally “interest-only” loans during the construction period, and convert to permanent,
amortizing financing following the completion of construction. At December 31, 2009, construction loans totaled $5.3 million, or
0.9% of total loans receivable. At December 31, 2009, the additional unadvanced portion of these construction loans totaled $4.1
million.

Advances on construction loans are made in accordance with a schedule reflecting the cost of construction, but are generally
limited to an 80% loan-to-completed-appraised-value ratio. Repayment of construction loans on residential properties is normally
expected from the sale of units to' individual purchasers. In the case of income- -producing property, repayment is usually expected
from permanent financing upon completion of construction. We typically provide the permanent mortgage flnancmg on our
construction loans on income-producing property.

Before making a commitment to fund a construction loan, we require an appraisal of the property by a licensed appraiser. We
review and inspect properties before disbursement of funds during the term of the construction loan.

Construction financing generally involves greater credit risk than long-term financing on improved, owner-occupied real estate.
Risk of loss on a construction loan depends largely upon the accuracy of the initial estimate of the value of the property at completion
of construction compared to the estimated cost (including interest) of construction and other assumptions. If the estimate of
construction cost is inaccurate, we may be required to advance additional funds beyond the amount originally committed in order to
protect the value of the property. Moreover, if the estimated value of the completed project is inaccurate, the borrower may hold a
property with a value that is insufficient to assure full repayment of the construction loan upon the sale of the property. In the event we
make a land acquisition loan on property that is not yet approved for the planned development, there'is the risk that approvals will not
be granted or will be delayed. Construction loans also expose us to the risk that improvements will not be completed on time in
accordance with specifications and projected costs. In addition, the ultlmate sale or rental of the property may not occur as anticipated.

Loan Originations, Purchases, Sales, Parttctpatzons and Servtcmg All loans that we originate are underwritten pursuant to
our policies and procedures, which incorporate standard underwriting guidelines, including those of Freddie Mac and Fannie Mae, to
the extent applicable. We originate both adjustable-rate and fixed-rate loans. However, in our market area, customer demand is
primarily for fixed-rate loans. Our loan origination and sales activity may be adversely affected by a rising interest rate environment
that typically results in decreased loan demand. Most of our one- to four-family residential mortgage loan originations are generated
by our branch managers and employees located in our banking offices and our additional commissioned loan officers located in our
corporate headquarters. We also advertise throughout our market area.

Historically, we have retained the servicing rights on residential mortgage loans we sell, although we expect that we will be
selling loans on a servicing-released basis at some point in the year ending December 31, 2010. In 2007, in an effort to manage
interest rate risk, we sold $43.0 million of fixed-rate loans with terms of 10, 15 and 20 years that we had been holding in our portfolio.
In addition, we are authorized to sell loans as originated to assist us in managing interest rate risk. We sold $85.2 million and $1.4
million of residential mortgage loans (all fixed-rate loans, with terms of 10 years or longer) during the years ended December 31, 2009
and 2008. We had four loans totaling $1.1 million classified as held for sale at December 31 2009

We sell our loans without recourse, except for normal representatlons and warranties provided in sales transactions. Historically,
we have retained the servicing rights on residential mortgage loans that we sell. At December 31, 2009, we were servicing loans
owned by others with a principal balance of $135.6 million. Loan servicing includes collecting and remitting loan payments,
accounting for principal and interest, contacting delinquent borrowers, supervising foreclosures and property dispositions in the event
of unremedied defaults, making certain insurance and tax payments on behalf of the borrowers and generally administering the loans.
We retain a portion of the interest paid by the borrower on the loans we service as consideration for our servicing activities. We have
not entered into loan participations in recent years.



Loan Approval Procedures and Authority. Our lending activities follow written, non-discriminatory underwriting standards and
loan origination procedures established by our Board of Directors. The loan approval process is intended to assess the borrower’s
ability to repay the loan and value of the property that will secure the loan. To assess the borrower’s ability:to repay, we review the
borrower’s employment and credit history and information on the historical and projected income and expenses of the borrower.

Our policies and loan approval limits are established by the Board of Directors. Aggregate lending relationships in amounts up
to $2.0 million can be approved by designated individual officers or officers acting together with specific lending approval authority.
Relationships in excess of $2.0 million require the approval of the Board of Directors.

Territorial Savings Bank also uses automated underwriting systems to review one- to-four-family residential mortgage loans.
We require appraisals of all real property securing one- to four-family residential real estate loans, and on property securing home
equity lines of credit when the aggregate loan amount exceeds 60% of the property’s tax assessed value or when the line of credit is
$250,000 or greater. All appraisers are licensed appraisers and all th1rd—party appraisers are approved by the Board of Directors
annually.

Investments

Our Board of Directors has primary responsibility for establishing and overseeing our investment policy. The Board of Directors
has delegated authority to implement the investment policy to our Investment Committee, consisting of the same members as our
Asset/Liability Management Committee. The investment policy is reviewed at least annually by the Investment Committee, and any
changes to the policy are subject to approval by the full Board of Directors. The overall objectives of the Investment Policy are to
maintain a portfolio of high quality and diversified investments to maximize interest income over the long term and to minimize risk,
to provide collateral for borrowings, to provide additional earnings when loan production is low, and to reduce our tax liability. The
policy dictates that investment decisions give consideration to the safety of principal, liquidity requirements. and potential returns. Our
Senior Vice President and Treasurer executes our securities portfolio transactions as directed by the Investment Committee. All
purchase and sale transactions ate reported to the Board of Directors on a monthly basis.

Our current investment policy permits investments in securities issued by the United States Government as well as mortgage-
backed securities and direct obligations of Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac and Ginnie Mae. The investment policy also permits, with certain
limitations, investments in certificates of deposit, bank owned life insurance, collateralized mortgage obligations, trust preferred
securities, municipal securities and stock in the Federal Home Loan Bank of Seattle. We purchased stock in the Federal Home Loan
Bank of Seattle in order to obtain services such as demand deposit accounts, certificates of deposit, security safekeeping services and
borrowings in the form of advances. - '

Our current investment policy does not permit investment in stripped mortgage-backed securities, complex securities and
derivatives as defined in federal banking regulations and other high-risk securities. As of December 31, 2009, we held no asset-backed
securities other than mortgage-backed securities. As a federal savings bank, Territorial Savings Bank is not permitted to invest in
equity securities. This general restriction does not apply to Territorial Bancorp Inc.

Our current policies do not permit hedging activities, such as engaging in futures, options or swap transactions, or investing in
high-risk mortgage derivatives, such as collateralized mortgage obligation residual interests, real estate mortgage investment conduit
residual interests or stripped mortgage-backed securities.

The Investments — Debt and Equity Securities topic of the FASB ASC requires that, at the time of purchase, we designate a
security as either held to maturity, available-for-sale, or trading, based upon our ability and intent. Securities available-for-sale and
trading securities are reported at market value and securities held to maturity are reported at amortized cost. A periodic review and
evaluation of the available-for-sale and held to maturity securities portfolios is conducted to determine if the fair value of any security
has declined below its carrying value and whether such decline is other-than- -temporary. If we do not have the intent to sell a security
and it is not more likely than not that we will be required to sell a security, impairment occurs when the present value of the remaining
cash flows is less than the remaining amortized cost basis. The difference between the present value of current remaining cash flows
and the remaining amortized cost basis is considered a credit loss. If a credit loss has occurred, impairment is recorded by writing
down the value of a security to its fair market value. The difference between the write down and the credit loss is considered other
comprehensive loss, which is a reduction of net worth.



Our securities portfolio at December 31, 2009, consisted primarily of securities with the following amortized cost:
$419.8 million of mortgage-backed securities, $175.1 million of collateralized mortgage obligations and $3.5 million of trust preferred
securities, all of which were issued by pools of issuers consisting primarily of financial institution holding companies. All of our
mortgage-backed securities and collateralized mortgage obligations were issued by Ginnie Mae, Freddie Mac or Fannie Mae. At
December 31, 2009, all of such securities were classified as held to maturity. At December 31, 2009, none of the collateral underlying
our securities portfolio was considered subprime or Alt-A, and we did not hold any common or preferred stock issued by Freddie Mac
or Fannie Mae as of that date. See “Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations —Balance Sheet Analysis— Securities” for a discussion of the recent performance of our securities portfolio. The fair
values of our securities, which, at December 31, 2009, consisted primarily of mortgage-backed securities, are based on published or
securities dealers’ market values. '

We purchase mortgage-backed securities insured or guaranteed by Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac or Ginnie Mae. Historically, we
invested in mortgage-backed securities to achieve positive interest rate spreads with minimal administrative expense and to lower our
credit risk as a result of the guarantees provided by Freddie Mac, Fannie Mae or Ginnie Mae. However, in September 2008, the
Federal Housing Finance Agency placed Freddie Mac and Fannie Mae into conservatorship. The U.S. Treasury Department has
established financing agreements to ensure that Freddie Mac and Fannie Mae meet their obligations to holders of mortgage-backed
securities that they have issued or guaranteed. These actions have not affected the markets for mortgage-backed securities issued by
Freddie Mac or Fannie Mae.

Mortgage-backed securities are securities issued in the secondary market that are collateralized by pools of mortgages. Certain
types of mortgage-backed securities are commonly referred to as “pass-through” certificates because the principal and interest of the
underlying loans is “passed through” to investors, net of certain costs, including servicing and guarantee fees. Mortgage-backed
securities typically are collateralized by pools of one- to four-family or multifamily mortgages, although we invest primarily in
mortgage-backed securities backed by one- to four-family mortgages. The issuers of such securities pool and resell the participation
interests in the form of securities to investors such as Territorial Savings Bank. The interest rate of the security is lower than the
interest rates of the underlying loans to allow for payment of servicing and guaranty fees. Ginnie Mae, a United States Government
agency, and government sponsored enterprises, such as Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac, either guarantee the payments or guarantee the
timely payment of principal and interest to investors. Mortgage-backed securities are more liquid than individual mortgage loans since
there is an active trading market for such securities. In addition, mortgage-backed securities may be used to collateralize our
borrowings. Investments in mortgage-backed securities involve a risk that actual payments will be greater or less than the prepayment
rate estimated at the time of purchase, which may require adjustments to the amortization of any premium or accretion of any discount
relating to such interests, thereby affecting the net yield on our securities. Curtent prepayment speeds determine whether prepayment
estimates require modification that could cause amortization or accretion adjustments.

Sources of Funds

General. Deposits traditionally have been our primary source of funds for our investment and lending activities. We also borrow
from the Federal Home Loan Bank of Seattle and from securities dealers to supplement cash flow needs, to lengthen the maturities of
liabilities for interest rate risk management purposes and to manage our cost of funds. Our additional sources of funds are scheduled
loan payments, maturing investments, loan repayments, retained earnings, income on other earning assets and the proceeds of loan
sales.

Deposits. We accept deposits primarily from the areas in which our offices are located. We rely on our competitive pricing and
products, convenient locations and quality customer service to attract and retain deposits. We offer a variety of deposit accounts with a
range of interest rates and terms. Our deposit accounts consist of passbook and statement savings accounts, certificates of deposit,
money market accounts, commercial and regular checking accounts and Super NOW accounts. Historically, we have not accepted
brokered deposits.

Interest rates paid, maturity terms, service fees and withdrawal penalties are established on a periodic basis. Deposit rates and
terms are based primarily on current operating strategies and market interest rates, liquidity requirements and our deposit growth
goals. ’

Borrowings. Our borrowings consist of advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank of Seattle and funds borrowed from
securities dealers under repurchase agreements. At December 31, 2009, our repurchase agreements totaled $130.2 million, or 11.1% of
total liabilities, and there were no outstanding Federal Home Loan Bank advances. At December 31, 2009, we had access to additional
Federal Home Loan Bank advances of up to $339.1 million. Advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank of Seattle are secured by
our investment in the common stock of the Federal Home Looan Bank of Seattle as well as by a blanket pledge on our assets not
otherwise pledged. Repurchase agreements are secured by mortgage-backed securities.



Subsidiary Activities

Territorial Savings Bank owns 100% of the common stock of Territorial Holdings, Inc., a Hawaii corporation, which in turn
owns 100% of the voting common stock of Territorial Realty, Inc. Territorial Realty, Inc. is a Hawaii real estate investment trust that
holds mortgage loans and mortgage-backed securities. These entities enable Territorial Savings Bank to segregate certain assets for
management purposes, and promote Territorial Savings Bank’s ability to raise regulatory capital in the future through the sale of
preferred stock or other capital-enhancing securities by these entities. At December 31, 2009, Territorial Savings Bank’s investment in
Territorial Holdings, Inc. was $480.3 million, and Territorial Holdings, Inc. had assets of $480.4 million at that date. At December 31,
2009, Territorial Holdings, Inc.’s investment in Territorial Realty, Inc. was $480.3 million, and Territorial Realty, Inc. had $480.5
million in assets at that date. ‘

Territorial Savings Bank owns 100% of the common stock of Territorial Financial Services, Inc., a Hawaii corporation that
engages primarily in insurance activities. At December 31, 2009, Territorial Savings Bank’s investment in Territorial Financial
Services, Inc. was $12,000, and Territorial Financial Services, Inc. had assets of $59,000 at that date. Territorial Savings Bank also
owns 100% of the common stock of Territorial Real Estate Co., Inc., an inactive Hawaii corporation that is authorized to manage and
dispose of troubled real estate.

Personnel

As of December 31, 2009, we had 250 full-time employees and 11 part-time employees. Our employees are not represented by
any collective bargaining group. Management believes that we have a good working relationship with our employees.

FEDERAL AND STATE TAXATION

Federal Taxation

General. Territorial Bancorp Inc. and Territorial Savings Bank are subject to federal income taxation in the same general
manner as other corporations, with some exceptions discussed below. The following discussion of federal taxation is intended only to
summarize material federal income tax matters and is not a comprehensive description of the tax rules applicable to Territorial
Bancorp Inc. and Territorial Savings Bank. .

Method of Accounting. For federal income tax purposes, Territorial Savings Bank currently reports its income and expenses on
the accrual method of accounting and uses a tax year ending December 31st for filing its consolidated federal income tax returns. The
Small Business Protection Act of 1996 eliminated the use of the reserve method of accounting for bad debt reserves by savings
institutions, effective for taxable years beginning after 1995. ’

Minimum Tax. The Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, imposes an alternative minimum tax at a rate of 20% on a
base of regular taxable income plus certain tax preferences, referred to as “alternative minimum taxable income.” The alternative
minimum tax is payable to the extent alternative minimum taxable income is in excess of an exemption amount. Net operating losses
can, in general, offset no more than 90% of alternative minimum taxable income. Certain payments of alternative minimum tax may
be used as credits against regular tax liabilities in future years. At December 31, 2009, Territorial Savings Bank had no alternative
minimum tax credit carryforward.

Net Operating Loss Carryovers. A financial institution may carry back net operating losses to the preceding two taxable years
and forward to the succeeding 20 taxable years. However, as a result of recent legislation, subject to certain limitations, the carryback
period for net operating losses incurred in 2008 or 2009 (but not both years) has been expanded to five years. At December 31, 2009,
Territorial Savings Bank had no net operating loss carryforward for federal income tax purposes.

Corporate Dividends. We may exclude from our income 100% of dividends received from Territorial Savings Bank as a
member of the same affiliated group of corporations.

Audit of Tax Returns. Territorial Savings Bank’s federal income tax returns have not been audited in the most recent five-year
period.

State Taxation

Territorial Bancorp Inc. and Territorial Savings Bank are subject to a franchise tax imposed under Hawaii law at a rate of 7.92%
of net income. The net income to which the tax rate is applied is determined in a manner consistent with the taxable income
determined for federal purposes with some adjustments. The principal adjustment to federal taxable income is the inclusion of interest
received on municipal bonds in gross income for Hawaii franchise tax purposes.



SUPERVISION AND REGULATION

General

Territorial Savings Bank is examined and supervised by the Office of Thrift Supervision and is subject to examination by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. This regulation and supervision establishes a comprehensive framework of activities in which
an institution may engage and is intended primarily for the protection of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation’s deposit
insurance fund and depositors, and not for the protection of security holders. Under this system of federal regulation, financial
institutions are periodically examined to ensure that they satisfy applicable standards with respect to their capital adequacy, assets,
management, earnings, liquidity and sensitivity to market interest rates. Territorial Savings Bank also is regulated to a lesser extent by
the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System, or Federal Reserve Board, governing reserves to be maintained against
deposits and other matters. The Office of Thrift Supervision examines Territorial Savings Bank and prepares reports for the
consideration of its Board of Directors on any operating deficiencies. Territorial Savings Bank’s relationship with its depositors and
borrowers also is regulated to a great extent by federal law and, to a much lesser extent, state law, especially in matters concerning the
ownership of deposit accounts and the form and content of Territorial Savings Bank’s loan documents.

Any change in these laws or regulations, whether by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, the Office of Thrift Supervision
or Congress, could have a material adverse impact on Territorial Bancorp Inc., Territorial Savings Bank and their operations.

Territorial Bancorp Inc., as a savings and loan holding companys, is required to file certain reports with, is subject to examination
by, and otherwise must comply with the rules and regulations of the Office of Thrift Supervision. Territorial Bancorp Inc. is also
subject to the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission under the federal securities laws.

Certain of the regulatory requirements that are applicable to Territorial Savings Bank and Territorial Bancorp Inc. are described
below. This description of statutes and regulations is not intended to be a complete description of such statutes and regulations and
their effects on Territorial Savings Bank and Territorial Bancorp Inc. and is qualified in its entirety by reference to the actual statutes
and regulations. ‘

Proposed Federal Legislation

Legislation has been proposed that would implement sweeping changes to the current bank regulatory structure, including
eliminating our current primary federal regulator, the Office of Thrift Supervision, by merging the Office of Thrift Supervision into
the Comptroller of the Currency (the primary federal regulator for national banks). The proposed legislation would also establish a
Financial Services Oversight Council and grant the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System exclusive authority to regulate
all bank and thrift holding companies. As a result, Territorial Bancorp Inc. would become a holding company subject to supervision
by the Federal Reserve Board as opposed to the Office of Thrift Supervision, and would become subject to the Federal Reserve’s
regulations, including holding company capital requirements, that Territorial Bancorp Inc. would not be subject to as a savings and
loan holding company. In addition, compliance with new regulations and being supervised by one or more new regulatory agencies
could increase our expenses.

Federal Banking Regulation

Business Activities. A federal savings bank derives its lending and investment powers from the Home Owners’ Loan Act, as
amended, and the regulations of the Office of Thrift Supervision. Under these laws and regulations, Territorial Savings Bank may
invest in mortgage loans secured by residential and commercial real estate, commercial business and consumer loans, certain types of
debt securities and certain other assets, subject to applicable limits. Territorial Savings Bank also may establish subsidiaries that may
engage in activities not otherwise permissible for Territorial Savings Bank, including real estate investment and securities and
insurance brokerage.

Capital Requirements. Office of Thrift Supervision regulations require savings banks to meet three minimum capital standards:
a 1.5% tangible capital ratio, a 4% leverage ratio (3% for savings banks receiving the highest rating on the CAMELS rating system)
and an 8% risk-based capital ratio.

The risk-based capital standard for savings banks requires the maintenance of Tier 1 (core) and total capital (which is defined as
core capital and supplementary capital) to risk-weighted assets of at least 4% and 8%, respectively. In determining the amount of risk-
weighted assets, all assets, including certain off-balance sheet assets, are multiplied by a risk-weight factor of 0% to 100%, assigned
by the Office of Thrift Supervision, based on the risks believed inherent in the type of asset. Core capital is defined as common
stockholders’ equity (including retained earnings), certain noncumulative perpetual preferred stock and related surplus and minority
interests in equity accounts of consolidated subsidiaries, less intangibles other than certain mortgage servicing rights and credit card
relationships. The components of supplementary capital include cumulative preferred stock, long-term perpetual preferred stock,
mandatory convertible securities, subordinated debt and intermediate preferred stock, the allowance for loan and lease losses limited
to a maximum of 1.25% of risk-weighted assets and up to 45% of net unrealized gains on available-for-sale equity securities with
readily determinable fair market values. Overall, the amount of supplementary capital included as part of total capital cannot exceed
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100% of core capital. Additionally, a savings bank that retains credit risk in connection with an asset sale may be required to maintain
additional regulatory capital because of the recourse back to the savings bank. In assessing an institution’s capital adequacy, the Office
of Thrift Supervision takes into consideration not only these numeric factors but also qualitative factors as well, and has the authority
to establish higher capital requirements for individual associations where necessary.

At December 31, 2009, Territorial Savings Bank’s capital exceeded all applicable requirements.

Loans-to-One Borrower. Generally, a federal savings bank may not make a loan or extend credit to a single or related group of
borrowers in excess of 15% of unimpaired capital and surplus. An additional amount may be loaned, equal to 10% of unimpaired
capital and surplus, if the loan is secured by readily marketable collateral, which generally does not include real estate. As of ,
December 31, 2009, Territorial Savings Bank’s largest lending relationship with a single or related group of borrowers totaled $3.3
million, which represented 1.5% of unimpaired capital and surplus. Therefore, Territorial Savings Bank was in compliance with the
loans-to-one borrower limitations.

Qualified Thrift Lender Test. As a federal savings bank, Territorial Savings Bank must satisfy the qualified thrift lender, or
“QTL,” test. Under the QTL test, Territorial Savings Bank must maintain at least 65% of its “portfolio assets” in “qualified thrift
investments” (primarily residential mortgages and related investments, including mortgage-backed securities) in at least nine months
of the most recent 12-month period. “Portfolio assets” generally means total assets of a savings institution, less the sum of specified
liquid assets up to 20% of total assets, goodwill and other intangible assets, and the value of property used in the conduct of the
savings bank’s business. -

Territorial Savings Bank also may satisfy the QTL test by qualifying as a “domestic building and loan association” as defined in
the Internal Revenue Code.

A savings bank that fails the qualified thrift lender test must either convert to a commercial bank charter or operate under
specified restrictions set forth in the Home Owners’ Loan Act. At December 31, 2009, Territorial Savings Bank maintained
approximately 95.1% of its portfolio assets in qualified thrift investments and, therefore, satisfied the QTL test.

Capital Distributions. Office of Thrift Supervision regulations govern capital distributions by a federal savings bank, which
include cash dividends, stock repurchases and other transactions charged to the savings bank’s capital account. A savings bank must
file an application for approval of a capital distribution if:

» the total capital distributions for the applicable calendar year exceed the sum of the savings bank’s net income for that
year to date plus the savings bank’s retained net income for the preceding two years;

e the savings bank would not be at least adequately capitalized following the distribution;

»  the distribution would violate any applicable statute, regulation, agreement or Office of Thrift Supervision-imposed
condition; or

* the savings bank is not eligible for expedited treatment of its filings.

Even if an application is not otherwise required, every savings bank that is a subsidiary of a holding company must still file a
notice with the Office of Thrift Supervision at least 30 days before the Board of Directors declares a dividend or approves a capital
distribution. '

The Office of Thrift Supervision may disapprove a notice or application if:

* the savings bank would be undercapitalized following the distribution;
» the proposed capital distribution raises safety and soundness concerns; or
» the capital distribution would violate a prohibition contained in any statute, regulation or agreement.

In addition, the Federal Deposit Insurance Act provides that an insured depository institution shall not make any capital
distribution, if after making such distribution the institution would be undercapitalized.

Liquidity. A federal savings bank is required to maintain a sufficient amount of liquid assets to ensure its safe and sound
operation. Our primary source of liquidity to meet our short- and long-term funding needs are cash-balances at the Federal Reserve
Bank, savings deposits, loan repayments, reverse repurchase agreements with security dealers and borrowing lines at the Federal
Home Loan Bank of Seattle. At December 31, 2009, we had $136.0 million of cash and cash equivalents which primarily represents
the proceeds from our stock offering. We also had the capacity to borrow up to $339.1 million from the Federal Home Loan Bank of
Seattle at December 31, 2009. :
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Community Reinvestment Act and Fair Lending Laws. All savings banks have a responsibility under the Community
Reinvestment Act and related regulations of the Office of Thrift Supervision to help meet the credit needs of their communities,
including low- and moderate-income borrowers. In connection with its examination of a federal savings bank, the Office of Thrift
Supervision is required to assess the savings bank’s record of compliance with the Community Reinvestment Act. In addition, the
Equal Credit Opportunity Act and the Fair Housing Act prohibit lenders from discriminating in their lending practices on the basis of
characteristics specified in those statutes. A savings bank’s failure to comply with the provisions of the Community Reinvestment Act
could, at a minimum, result in denial of certain corporate applications such as branches or mergers, or in restrictions on its activities.
The failure to comply with the Equal Credit Opportunity Act and the Fair Housing Act could result in enforcement actions by the
Office of Thrift Supervision, as well as other federal regulatory agencies and the Department of Justice. Territorial Savings Bank
received a satisfactory Community Reinvestment Act rating in its most recent federal examination. The Community Reinvestment Act
requires all Federal Deposit Insurance-insured institutions to publicly disclose their rating.

Transactions with Related Parties. A federal savings bank’s authority to engage in transactions with its affiliates is limited by
Office of Thrift Supervision regulations and by Sections 23A and 23B of the Federal Reserve Act and its implementing Regulation W
promulgated by the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System. An affiliate is generally a company that controls, is controlled
by, or is under common control with an insured depository institution such as Territorial Savings Bank. Territorial Bancorp Inc. is an
affiliate of Territorial Savings Bank. In general, transactions between an insured depository institution and its affiliates are subject to
certain quantitative and collateral requirements. In addition, Office of Thrift Supervision regulations prohibit a savings bank from
lending to any of its affiliates that are engaged in activities that are not permissible for bank holding companies and from purchasing
the securities of any affiliate, other than a subsidiary. Finally, transactions with affiliates must be consistent with safe and sound
banking practices, not involve low-quality assets and be on terms that are as favorable to the institution as comparable transactions
with non-affiliates. The Office of Thrift Supervision requires savings banks to maintain detailed records of all transactions with
affiliates.

Territorial Savings Bank’s authority to extend credit to its directors, executive officers and 10% stockholders, as well as to
entities controlled by such persons, is currently governed by the requirements of Sections 22(g) and 22(h) of the Federal Reserve Act
and Regulation O of the Federal Reserve Board. Among other things, these provisions require that extensions of credit to insiders:

()  be made on terms that are substantially the same as, and follow credit underwriting procedures that are not less stringent
than, those prevailing for comparable transactions with unaffiliated persons and that do not involve more than the normal
risk of repayment or present other unfavorable features, and

(ii) not exceed certain limitations on the amount of credit extended to such persons, individually and in the aggregate, which
limits are based, in part, on the amount of Territorial Savings Bank’s capital.

In addition, extensions of credit in excess of certain limits must be approved by Territorial Savings Bank’s Board of Directors.

Enforcement. The Office of Thrift Supervision has primary enforcement responsibility over federal savings institutions and has
the authority to bring enforcement action against all “institution-affiliated parties,” including directors, officers, stockholders,
attorneys, appraisers and accountants who knowingly or recklessly participate in wrongful action likely to have an adverse effect on an
insured institution. Formal enforcement action by the Office of Thrift Supervision may range from the issuance of a capital directive
or cease and desist order to removal of officers and/or directors of the institution, and the appointment of a receiver or conservator.
Civil penalties cover a wide range of violations and actions, and range up to $25,000 per day, unless a finding of reckless disregard is
made, in which case penalties may be as high as $1 million per day. The Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation also has the authority
to terminate deposit insurance or to recommend to the Director of the Office of Thrift Supervision that enforcement action be taken
with respect to a particular savings institution. If action is not taken by the Director, the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation has
authority to take action under specified circumstances.

Standards for Safety and Soundness. Federal law requires each federal banking agency to prescribe certain standards for all
insured depository institutions. These standards relate to, among other things, internal controls, information systems and audit
systems, loan documentation, credit underwriting, interest rate risk exposure, asset growth, compensation, and other operational and
managerial standards as the agency deems appropriate. Interagency guidelines set forth the safety and soundness standards that the
federal banking agencies use to identify and address problems at insured depository institutions before capital becomes impaired. If
the appropriate federal banking agency determines that an institution fails to meet any standard prescribed by the guidelines, the
agency may require the institution to submit to the agency an acceptable plan to achieve compliance with the standard. If an institution
fails to meet these standards, the appropriate federal banking agency may require the institution to implement an acceptable
compliance plan. Failure to implement such a plan can result in further enforcement action, including the issuance of a cease and
desist order or the imposition of civil money penalties.
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Prompt Corrective Action Regulations. Under prompt corrective action regulations, the Office of Thrift Supervision is
authorized and, under certain circumstances, required to take supervisory actions against undercapitalized savings banks. For this
purpose, a savings bank is placed in one of the following five categories based on the savings bank’s capital:

»  well-capitalized (at least 5% leverage capital, 6% Tier 1 risk-based capital and 10% total risk-based capital);

e adequately capitalized (at least 4% leverage capital (3% for savings banks with a composite examination rating of 1), 4%
Tier 1 risk-based capital and 8% total risk-based capital);

e undercapitalized (less than 4% leverage capital (3% for savings banks with a composite examination rating of 1), 4%
Tier 1 risk-based capital or 8% total risk-based capital);

¢ significantly undercapitalized (less than 3% leverage capital, 3% Tier 1 risk-based capital or 6% total risk-based capital);
and

¢ critically undercapitalized (less than 2% tangible capital).

Generally, the Office of Thrift Supervision is required to appoint a receiver or conservator for a savings bank that is “critically
undercapitalized” within specific time frames. The regulations also provide that a capital restoration plan must be filed with the Office
of Thrift Supervision within 45 days of the date a savings bank receives notice that it is “undercapitalized,” “significantly
undercapitalized” or “critically undercapitalized.” Any holding company for the savings bank required to submit a capital restoration
plan must guarantee the lesser of an amount equal to 5% of the savings bank’s assets at the time it was notified or deemed to be
undercapitalized by the Office of Thrift Supervision, or the amount necessary to restore the savings bank to adequately capitalized
status. This guarantee remains in place until the Office of Thrift Supervision notifies the savings bank that it has maintained
adequately capitalized status for each of four consecutive calendar quarters, and the Office of Thrift Supervision has the authority to
require payment and collect payment under the guarantee. Failure by a holding company to provide the required guarantee will result
in certain operating restrictions on the savings bank, such as restrictions on the ability to declare and pay dividends, pay executive
compensation and management fees, and increase assets or expand operations. The Office of Thrift Supervision may also take any one
of a number of discretionary supervisory actions against undercapitalized associations, including the issuance of a capital directive and
the replacement of senior executive officers and directors.

At December 31, 2009, Territorial Savings Bank met the criteria for being considered “well-capitalized.”

Insurance of Deposit Accounts. In October 2008, deposit insurance by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation was
increased to a maximum of $250,000 per depositor. On January 1, 2014, the maximum insurance amount will return to $100,000 per
depositor for all deposit accounts except certain retirement accounts, which will remain at $250,000 per depositor. In addition, under
the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation’s Transaction Account Guarantee Program, most of our non-interest-bearing transaction
accounts are guaranteed regardless of amount until June 30, 2010.

Pursuant to the Federal Deposit Insurance Reform Act of 2005 (the “Reform Act”), the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation
is authorized to set the reserve ratio for the Deposit Insurance Fund annually at between 1.15% and 1.5% of estimated insured
deposits. As of June 30, 2008, the reserve ratio had decreased to 1.01% as a result of bank failures. As part of a plan to restore the
reserve ratio to 1.15%, the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation imposed a special assessment equal to five basis points of assets
less Tier 1 capital as of June 30, 2009, which was payable on September 30, 2009. In addition, the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation has increased its quarterly deposit insurance assessment rates and amended the method by which rates are calculated.
Beginning in the second quarter of 2009, institutions are assigned an initial base assessment rate ranging from 12 to 45 basis points of
deposits depending on risk category. The initial base assessment is then adjusted based upon the level of unsecured debt, secured
liabilities, and brokered deposits to establish a total base assessment rate ranging from seven to 77.5 basis points.

On November 12, 2009, the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation approved a final rule requiring insured depository
institutions to prepay on December 30, 2009, their estimated quarterly risk-based assessments for the fourth quarter of 2009, and for
all of 2010, 2011, and 2012. Estimated assessments for the fourth quarter of 2009 and for all of 2010 are based upon the assessment
rate in effect on September 30, 2009, with three basis points added for the 2011 and 2012 assessment rates. In addition, a 5% annual
growth in the assessment base is assumed. Prepaid assessments are to be applied against the actual quarterly assessments until
exhausted, and may not be applied to any special assessments that may occur in the future. Any unused prepayments will be returned
to the institution on June 30, 2013. On December 30, 2009, we prepaid $4.3 million in estimated assessment fees for the fourth quarter
of 2009 through 2012. Because the prepaid assessments represent the prepayment of future expense, they do not affect our regulatory
capital (the prepaid asset will have a risk-weighting of 0%) or tax obligations.

Insurance of deposits may be terminated by the FDIC upon a finding that an institution has engaged in unsafe or unsound
business practices, is in an unsafe or unsound condition to continue operations or has violated any applicable law, regulation, rule,
order or condition imposed by the FDIC.

We do not currently know of any practice, condition or violation that might lead to termination of our deposit insurance.
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Besides the FDIC assessments, the Financing Corporation (“FICO”) is authorized to impose and collect, with the approval of the
FDIC, assessments for anticipated payments, issuance costs and custodial fees on bonds issued by the FICO in the 1980s to
recapitalize the former Federal Savings and Loan Insurance Corporation. The bonds issued by the FICO are due to mature in 2017
through 2019. For the quarter ended December 31, 2009, the annualized FICO assessment was equal to 1.06 basis points for each
$100 in domestic deposits maintained at an institution.

Temporary Liquidity Guarantee Program. On October 14, 2008, the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation announced a new
program — the Temporary Liquidity Guarantee Program. This program has two components. One guarantees newly issued senior
unsecured debt of a participating organization, up to certain limits established for each institution, issued between October 14, 2008
and June 30, 2009. The guarantee will remain in effect until June 30, 2012. We opted not to participate in this component of the
Temporary Liquidity Guarantee Program.

The remaining applicable component of the program provides full federal deposit insurance coverage for non-interest bearing
transaction deposit accounts, regardless of dollar amount, until June 30, 2010. An annualized 10 basis point assessment on balances in
noninterest-bearing transaction accounts that exceed the existing deposit insurance limit of $250,000 will be assessed on a quarterly
basis to insured depository institutions that have not opted out of this component of the Temporary Liquidity Guarantee Program. We
opted to participate in this component of the Temporary Liquidity Guarantee Program.

U.S. Treasury’s Troubled Asset Relief Program Capital Purchase Program. The Emergency Economic Stabilization Act of
2008 was enacted to provide the U.S. Secretary of the Treasury with broad authority to implement certain actions to help restore
stability and liquidity to U.S. markets. One of the provisions resulting from the legislation is the Troubled Asset Relief Program
Capital Purchase Program (“CPP”), which provides direct equity investment in perpetual preferred stock by the U.S. Treasury
Department in qualified financial institutions. Participation in the program is not automatic and is subject to approval by the U.S.
Treasury Department. We opted not to participate in the CPP.

Prohibitions Against Tying Arrangements. Federal savings banks are prohibited, subject to some exceptions, from extending
credit to or offering any other service, or fixing or varying the consideration for such extension of credit or service, on the condition
that the customer obtain some additional service from the institution or its affiliates or not obtain services of a competitor of the
institution.

Federal Home Loan Bank System. Territorial Savings Bank is a member of the Federal Home Loan Bank System, which
consists of twelve regional Federal Home Loan Banks. The Federal Home Loan Bank System provides a central credit facility
primarily for member institutions as well as other entities involved in home mortgage lending. As a member of the Federal Home
Loan Bank of Seattle, Territorial Savings Bank is required to acquire and hold shares of capital stock in the Federal Home Loan Bank.
As of December 31, 2009, Territorial Savings Bank held $12.3 million of capital stock in the Federal Home Loan Bank of Seattle and
was in compliance with this requirement.

Overdraft fees. New testrictions mandated by the Federal Reserve Board under Regulation E are currently set to take effect on
July 1, 2010. These restrictions will ban overdraft fees on ATM withdrawals or signature debit transactions unless consumers
voluntarily opt in for overdraft protection.

We are currently assessing the impact of the new regulation on future earnings. However, we expect compliance with this new
regulation to reduce our non-interest income.

Other Regulations

Interest and other charges collected or contracted for by Territorial Savings Bank are subject to state usury laws and federal laws
concerning interest rates. Territorial Savings Bank’s operations are also subject to federal laws applicable to credit transactions, such
as the:

e Truth-In-Lending Act, governing disclosures of credit terms to consumer borrowers;

*  Real Estate Settlement Procedures Act, requiring that borrowers for mortgage loans for one- to four-family residential real
estate receive various disclosures, including good faith estimates of settlement costs, lender servicing and escrow account
practices, and prohibiting certain practices that increase the cost of settlement services;

* Home Mortgage Disclosure Act, requiring financial institutions to provide information to enable the public and public
officials to determine whether a financial institution is fulfilling its obligation to help meet the housing needs of the
community it serves;

*  Equal Credit Opportunity Act, prohibiting discrimination on the basis of race, creed or other prohibited factors in
extending credit;

*  Fair Credit Reporting Act, governing the use and provision of information to credit reporting agencies;
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*  Fair Debt Collection Act, governing the manner in which consumer debts may be collected by collection agencies;
e Truth in Savings Act; and

* rules and regulations of the various federal agencies charged with the responsibility of implementing such federal laws.

The operations of Territorial Savings Bank also are subject to the:

*  Right to Financial Privacy Act, which imposes a duty to maintain confidentiality of consumer financial records and
prescribes procedures for complying with administrative subpoenas of financial records;

e Electronic Funds Transfer Act and Regulation E promulgated thereunder, which govern automatic deposits to and
withdrawals from deposit accounts and customers’ rights and liabilities arising from the use of automated teller machines
and other electronic banking services;

¢ Check Clearing for the 21* Century Act (also known as “Check 217), which gives “substitute checks,” such as digital
check images and copies made from that image, the same legal standing as the original paper check;

* The USA PATRIOT Act, which requires savings banks to, among other things, establish broadened anti-money
laundering compliance programs, due diligence policies and controls to ensure the detection and reporting of money
laundering. Such required compliance programs are intended to supplement existing compliance requirements, also
applicable to financial institutions, under the Bank Secrecy Act and the Office of Foreign Assets Control regulations; and

¢ The Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act, which places limitations on the sharing of consumer financial information by financial
institutions with unaffiliated third parties. Specifically, the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act requires all financial institutions
offering financial products or services to retail customers to provide such customers with the financial institution’s privacy
policy and provide such customers the opportunity to “opt out” of the sharing of certain personal financial information
with unaffiliated third parties.

Holding Company Regulation

General . Territorial Bancorp Inc. is a non-diversified savings and loan holding company within the meaning of the Home
Owners’ Loan Act. As such, Territorial Bancorp Inc. is registered with the Office of Thrift Supervision and subject to Office of Thrift
Supervision regulations, examinations, supervision and reporting requirements. In addition, the Office of Thrift Supervision has
enforcement authority over Territorial Bancorp Inc. and its subsidiaries. Among other things, this authority permits the Office of
Thrift Supervision to restrict or prohibit activities that are determined to be a serious risk to the subsidiary savings institution. Unlike
bank holding companies, federal savings and loan holding companies are not subject to any regulatory capital requirements or to
supervision by the Federal Reserve Board.

Permissible Activities. The business activities of Territorial Bancorp Inc. are generally limited to those activities permissible for
financial holding companies under Section 4(k) of the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956, as amended, or for multiple savings and
loan holding companies. A financial holding company may engage in activities that are financial in nature, including underwriting
equity securities and insurance as well as activities that are incidental to financial activities or complementary to a financial activity. A
multiple savings and loan holding company is generally limited to activities permissible for bank holding companies under
Section 4(c)(8) of the Bank Holding Company Act, subject to the prior approval of the Office of Thrift Supervision, and certain
additional activities authorized by Office of Thrift Supervision regulations.

Federal law prohibits a savings and ioan holding company, including Territorial Bancorp Inc., directly or indirectly, or through
one or more subsidiaries, from acquiring more than 5% of another savings institution or holding company thereof, without prior
written approval of the Office of Thrift Supervision. It also prohibits the acquisition or retention of, with certain exceptions, more than
5% of a nonsubsidiary company engaged in activities that are not closely related to banking or financial in nature, or acquiring or
retaining control of an institution that is not federally insured. In evaluating applications by holding companies to acquire savings
institutions, the Office of Thrift Supervision must consider the financial and managerial resources, future prospects of the company
and institution involved, the effect of the acquisition on the risk to the federal deposit insurance fund, the convenience and needs of the
community and competitive factors.

The Office of Thrift Supervision is prohibited from approving any acquisition that would result in a multiple savings and loan
holding company controlling savings institutions in more than one state, subject to two exceptions:

(i)  the approval of interstate supervisory acquisitions by savings and loan holding companies; and

(i) the acquisition of a savings institution in another state if the laws of the state of the target savings institution specifically
permit such acquisition.

The states vary in the extent to which they permit interstate savings and loan holding company acquisitions.
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Federal Securities Laws

Territorial Bancorp Inc.’s common stock is registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934. Territorial Bancorp Inc. is subject to the information, proxy solicitation, insider trading restrictions and other
requirements under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. '

Territorial Bancorp Inc. common stock held by persons who are affiliates (generally officers, directors and principal
shareholders) of Territorial Bancorp Inc. may not be resold without registration or unless sold in accordance with certain resale
restrictions. If Territorial Bancorp Inc. meets specified current public information requirements, each affiliate of Territorial Bancorp
Inc. is able to sell in the public market, without registration, a limited number of shares in any three-month period. |

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 addresses, among other issues, corporate governance, auditing and accounting, executive
compensation, and enhanced and timely disclosure of corporate information. As directed by the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, our Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer will be required to certify that our quarterly and annual reports do not contain any
untrue statement of a material fact. The rules adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission under the Sarbanes-Oxley Act have
several requirements, including having these officers certify that: they are responsible for establishing, maintaining and regularly
evaluating the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting; they have made certain disclosures to our auditors and the
audit committee of the Board of Directors about our internal control over financial reporting; and they have included information in
our quarterly and annual reports about their evaluation and whether there have been changes in our internal control over financial
reporting or in other factors that could materially affect internal control over financial reporting. We will be subject to further |
reporting and audit requirements beginning with the year ending December 31, 2010 under the requirements of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act. We.will prepare policies, procedures and systems designed to ensure compliance with these regulations.

ITEM 1A. - Risk Factors
Future changes in interest rates could reduce our profits.

Our ability to make a profit largely depends on our net interest income, which could be negatively affected by changes in
interest rates. Net interest income is the difference between:

«  the interest income we earn on our-interest-earning assets, such as loans and securities; and

+ the interest expense we pay on our interest-bearing liabilities, such as deposits and borrowings.

As a result of our focus on one- to four-family residential real estate loans and the low demand for adjustable-rate loans in our
market area, the interest rates we earn on our loans are generally fixed for a longer period of time. Additionally, many of our securities
investments are of longer maturities with fixed interest rates. Like many savings institutions, our focus on deposit accounts as a source
of funds, which have no stated maturity date or shorter contractual maturities than loans, results in our liabilities having a shorter
duration than our assets. For example, as-of December 31, 2009, 88.2% of our loans had maturities of 15 years or longer, while 81.6%
of our certificates of deposits had maturities of one year or less. This imbalance can create significant earnings volatility, because
market interest rates change over time. In-a period of rising interest rates, the interest income earned on our assets, such as loans and
investments, may not increase as rapidly as the interest paid on our liabilities, such as deposits. In a period of declining interest rates,
the interest income earned on our assets may decrease more rapidly than the interest paid on our liabilities, as borrowers prepay
mortgage loans, and mortgage-backed securities and callable investment securities are called or prepaid, thereby requiring us to
reinvest these cash flows at lower interest rates. See “Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations—Management of Market Risk.” ' ' ‘

In addition, changes in interest rates can affect the average life of loans and mortgage-backed and related securities. A reduction
in interést rates results in increased prepayments of loans and mortgage-backed and related securities, as borrowers refinance their
debt in order to reduce their borrowing costs. This creates reinvestment risk, which is the risk that we may not be able to reinvest
prepayments at rates that are comparable to the rates we earned on the prepaid loans or securities. Additionally, increases in interest
rates may decrease loan demand and/or make it more difficult for borrowers to repay adjustable-rate loans. '

Changes in interest rates also affect the current fair value of our interest-earning securities portfolio. Generally, the value of
securities moves inversely with changes in interest rates. At December 31, 2009, the fair value of our investment and mortgage-backed
securities, all classified as held to maturity, totaled $606.3 million. Net unrealized gains on these securities totaled $7.9 million at
December 31, 2009. ‘ '

At December 31, 2009, the Office of Thrift Supervision “rate shock” analysis indicated that our net portfolio value (the
difference between the present value of our assets and the present value of our liabilities) would decrease by $77.6 million if there was
an instantaneous 200 basis point increase in market interest rates. See “Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations—Management of Market Risk.”
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Our lending activities provide lower interest rates than financial institutions that originate more commercial loans.

Our principal lending activity consists of originating one- to four-family remdentlal real estate mortgage loans. As of
December 31, 2009, these loans totaled $555.5 million, or 91.3% of total 1oans as of that date. We originate our loans with a focus on”
limiting credit risk and not to generate the highest return or create the greatest difference between our cost of funds and the yield on
our interest-earning assets (interest rate spread). We intend to continue our focus on residential real estate lending.

Residential real estate mortgage loans generally have lower interest rates than commercial business loans, commercial real
estate loans and consumer loans. As a result, we may generate lower interest rate spreads and rates of return When compared to our
competitors who originate more consumer or commercial loans than we do.

We could record future losses on our holdings of trust preferred securities that we purchased from issuer pools consisting
primarily of financial institution holding companies. In addition, we may not receive full future interest payments on these
securities.

We own shares of trust preferred securities with an adjusted ‘cost basis of $3.5 million, and a fair value of $100,000 at
December 31, 2009. The trust preferred securities are debt obligatiops issued by two issuer pools (Preferred Term Securities XXIII,
Ltd. co-marketed by Keefe, Bruyette & Woods, Inc. and FTN Financial Capital Markets (“PreTSL XXIII”) and Preferred Term
Securities XXIV, Ltd. co-marketed by Keefe, Bruyette & Woods, Inc. and FTN Financial Capital Markets (“PreTSL XXIV™)),
consisting primarily of holding companies for Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation-insured finarncial institutions. Each of these
securities is a Class D security, and was originated with a credit rdting of BBB. As of December 31, 2009, PreTSL XXIII and PreTSL
XXIV were rated CC and C, respectively. PreTSL XXIII’s credit rating was downgraded to C on February 12, 2010. We recognized a
pre-tax loss for other-than- -temporary impairment of $2.5 million on PreTSL XXIV for the year endéd December 31, 2008. In
addition, effective January 1, 2009, the cumulative effect of our adoption of revisions to the Financial Accounting Standards Board
Accounting Standards Codification (FASB ASC) resulted in the reclassification of $1.5 million of securities impairment from retained
earnings to accumulated other comprehensive loss. In subsequent quarters, we determined that PreTSL XXIV was other-than-
temporarily impaired and recorded an additional impairment charge of $1.0 million in 2009, of which.$3.5 million was a credit loss
recorded through our income statement as a charge to non-interest income, and $2.5 million was recorded as a decrease to other
comprehensive loss. The $3.5 million impairment charge for 2009 includes the $2.5 million that was previously reflected as a charge
against income in the last quarter of 2008, but due to revisions in accounting pronouncements, the Company was required to once
again charge income in the amount of $2.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2009 for the same security. Our investment in
PreTSL XXIII is not other-than-temporarily impaired because we will not more likely than not be required to sell this security before
recovering the amortized cost basis of $3.5 million.”

The following table sets forth information with rcspcc.t‘kto these securities as of Dece_mber 31, 2009.

Deferrals
Number of and :
o . Financial Defaults as Excess
. Unrealized Credit Institutions ~a % of Subordination

Pool Deal Name Book Value Fair Value Gain (Loss) Rating " in Pool Collateral [6))]

) ) . (Dollars in Thousands) o ' )
PreTSL XXIII.....ccovvevvieeiirrnennns $ 3542 % 100 $ (3,442) cc 117 22.6% $ 181,000
PreTSL XXIV.............. PR $ 0 $ 0 $ .0 C 83 29.4% $ 0

1 Estimated present value of future cash flows in excess of amortized cost basis, assurmng that 50% of the securlty collateral is
called in the 10" year following issuance.

A number of factors or combinations of factors could cause us to conclude in one or more future reporting periods that an
unrealized loss that exists with respect to PreTSL XXIII constitutes an impairment that is other than temporary, which could result in
material losses to us. These factors include, but are not limited to, continued failure to make scheduled interest payments, an increase
in the severity of the unrealized loss on a particular security, an increase in the continuous duration of the unrealized loss without an
improvement in value or changes in market conditions and/or industry or issuer specific factors that would render us unable to forecast
a full recovery in value. In addition, the fair value of PreTSL XXIII could decline if the overall economy and the financial condition of
some of the issuers continue to deteriorate and there remains limited liquidity for these securities. ‘

For the year ended December 31, 2009, we received no interest payments on the trust preferred securities. The continued failure
of the trust preferred issuers to make interest payments for any quarter will reduce our earnings during that quarter.
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The United States.economy is in:a deep recession. A prolonged economic downturn, especially one affecting our geographlc
market area, would likely adversely affect our business and financial results.

Negative developments in the global credit and securitization markets have resulted in uncertainty in the financial markets
during the latter half of 2007 and during 2008 and 2009, with the expectation of the general economic downturn continuing into 2010.
Loan portfolio quality has deteriorated at many institutions, reflecting in part, the deteriorating U.S. economy and rising
unemployment. In addition, the values of real estate collateral supporting many commercial loans and home mortgages have declined
and may continue to decline. The continuing real estate slump also has resulted in reduced demand for the consttuction of new
housing and increased delinquencies in construction, residential and commercial mortgage loans. Bank and bank holding company
stock prices have declined substantlally, and 1t is 51gn1f1cant1y more difficult for banks and bank holding companies to ralse capital or
borrow in the debt markets

Specifically, the Federal Depos1t Insurance Corporatlon Quarterly Banking Profile has reported that noncurrent assets plus other
real estate owned as a percentage of assets for FDIC insured financial institutions rose to 5.37% as of December 31, 2009, compared
to0 2.97% as of December 31, 2008. For the year ended December 31, 2009, the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation Quarterly
Banking Profile has reported that return on average assets was 0.03% for FDIC insured financial institutions compared to -1. 10% for
the year ended December 31 2008 The NASDAQ Bank Index decllned 18.50% between December 31, 2008 and December 31,

2009.

Continued negative developments in the financial industry and the domestic and iiiternational credit markets, may significantly
affect the markets in which.we do business, the markets for and value of our loans and investments, and our ongoing operations, costs
and profltablhty Further continued declines in the stock market in general, or for stock of financial institutions and their holding
companies, could affect our stock performance.

Changes in laws and regulatlons and the cost of regulatory compllance with new laws and regulations may adversely affect our
operatrons and our income.

In response to the dévelopments descrlbed above Congress has taken actions that are 1ntended to strengthen confidence and
encourage liquidity in financial institutions, and the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation has taken actions to increase insurance
coverage on deposit accounts. In addition, there have been proposals made by members of Congress and others that would reduce the
amount distressed borrowers are otherwise contractually obhgated to pay under their mortgage loans and limit an institution’s ability
to foreclose on mortgage collateral.

The potent1a1 exists for additional federal or state laws and regulatlons or changes in policy, regarding lending and funding
practices and liquidity standards, and bank regulatory agenc1es are expected to be active in responding to concerns and trends
identified in examinations, 1nclud1ng the expected issuance of many formal enforcement ‘orders. Bank regulatory agencies, such as the
Office of Thrift Supervision and the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, govern the activities in which we may engage, primarily
for the protection of depositors, and not for the protection or benefit of potential investors. In'addition, new laws, regulations, and
other regulatory changes may increase our costs of regulatory: compliance and of doing business, and otherwise affect our operations.
New laws, regulations, and other regulatory changes may s1gn1flcantly affect the markets in which we do business, the markets for and
value of our loans and investments, and our ongoing operatlons costs and profitability. Proposals limiting our rights as a creditor
could result in credit losses or increased expense in pursuing our remedies as a creditor.

If our mvestment in the Federal Home Loan Bank of Seattle is classﬁ'ied as other-than-temporarrly 1mpa1red or as
permanently 1mpalred, our earnmgs and stockholders’ equity could decrease. -

We own common stock of the Federal Home Loan Bank of Seattle. We hold this stock to quahfy for membership in the Federal
Home Loan Bank System and to be eligible to borrow funds under the Federal Home Loan Bank of Seattle’s advance program, The
aggregate cost and fair value of our Federal Home Loan Bank of Seattle common stock as of December 31, 2009 was $12.3 million
based on its par value. There is no market for our Federal Home Loan Bank of Seattle common stock.

‘Recent pubhshed reports 1ndlcate that certain member banks of the Federal Home Loan Bank System may be subject to
accounting rules and asset quality risks that could result in materrally lower regulatory capital levels. Specifically, in 2009, the Federal
Home Loan Bank of Seattle has incurred credit losses on its investment in private-label mortgage-backed securities. These losses have
reduced the Federal Home Loan Bank of Seattle’s net income and net worth. The Federal Home loan Bank of Seattle has met all of its
regulatory capital requirements but its regulator, the Federal Housing Finance Agency; has classified it as undercapitalized because
further losses onprivate-label mortgage-backed securities will reduce capital. In an extreme situation, it is possible that the capital of a
Federal Home Loan Bank, including the Federal Home Loan Bank of Seattle, could be substantially diminished or reduced to zero.
Consequently, we believe that there is a risk that our investment in Federal Home Loan Bank of Seattle common stock could be
impaired at some time in the future, and if this occurs, it would cause our earnings and stockholders’ equity to decrease by the after-
tax amount of the impairment charge.
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The Federal Home Loan Bank of Seattle stopped paying leldends during the fourth quarter of 2008 Tlus will- negatlvely
affect our earnings.

The Federal Home Loan Bank of Seattle stopped paying dividends during the fourth quarter of 2008, and would be prohibited
from paying dividends in the future so long as it fails to meet any of its regulatory capital requirements. The failure of the Federal
Home Loan Bank of Seattle to pay dividends for any quarter will reduce our earnings during that quarter

Non-resrdentlal real estate loans increase our exposure to credit risks.

. At December 31, 2009, our portfolio of commercial real estate, construction and other non-residential real estate loans totaled
$20. 8 million, or 3.4% of total loans. These loans generally expose us to a greater risk of non-payment and loss than residential real
estate loans because repayment of such loans often depends on the successful operations and income stream of the borrowers.
Additionally, such loans typically involve larger loan balances to single borrowers or groups of related borrowers compared to -
residential real estate loans.

We target our business lending and marketmg strategy towards small to medium-sized busmesses These small to medrum—srzed
businesses generally have fewer financial resources in terms of capital or borrowing capacity than larger entmes If general economic
conditions negatively impact these businesses, our results of operations and financial condition may be adversely affected.

Strong competition within our market areas may limit our growth and profitability.

Competition in the banking and financial services industry is intense. In our market areas, we compete with commercial banks,
savings institutions, mortgagé brokerage firms, credit unions, finance companies, mutual funds, insurance companies, and brokerage -
and investment banking firms operating locally and elsewhere. Some of our competitors have greater name recognition and market
presence that benefit them in axtractmg business, and offer certain services that we do not or cannot provide. In addition, larger
competitors may be able to price loans and deposits more aggressively than we do, which could affect our ability to grow and remain
profitable on a long-term basis. Our profitability depends upon our continued ability to successfully compete in our market areas. If
we must raise interest rates paid on deposits or lower interest rates charged on our loans, our net interest margin and profitability could
be adversely affected. For additional information see “Item 1. Business —Competition.”

If our allowance for loan losses is not sufﬁcient to cover actual loan losses, our earnings will decrease.

We make various assumptions and judgments about the collectability of our loan portfolio, including the creditworthiness of our
borrowers and the value of the real estate and other assets serving as collateral for the repayment of many of our loans. In determmmg
the amount of the allowance for loan losses, we review our loans and our loss and delinquency experience, and we evaluate economic
conditions. If our assumpt1ons are incortect, our allowance for loan losses may not be sufficient to cover probable incurred losses in
our loan portfolio, resulting in additions to our allowance. While our allowance for loan losses was 0.3% of total loans at
Déecember 31, 2009, material additions to our allowance could materially decrease our net income.

In‘addition, bank regulators periodically review our allowance for loan losses and may require us to- increase our provision for-
loan losses or recognize further loan charge- -offs. Any increase in our allowance for loan losses or loan charge -offs as required by
these regulatory authorities might have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operatlons

Concentration of loans in our primary market area, which has recently experienced an economic downturn, may increase risk.

Our success depends primarily on the general economic conditions in the State of Hawaii, as‘nearly all of our loans are to
customers in the state. Accordingly, the local economic conditions in the State of Hawaii have a significant impact on the ability of
borrowers to repay loans as well as our ability to originate new loans. As such, a decline in real estate valuations in this market would
lower the value of the collateral securing those loans. In addition, a significant Weakenmg in general economic condrtlons such as
inflation, recession, unemployment or other factors beyond our control could negatively affect our financial results.

On the island of Oahu, the primary real estate market in Hawaii, sales of existing single-family homes totaled 2,658 units during
the year ended December 31, 2009, a decrease of 3. 0% compared to similar sales dunng the year ended December 31, 2008. The
number of condominium sales (which was greater than the number of single-family home resales) declined by 10.0% during the year
ended December 31, 2009 compared to the year ended December 31, 2008

* On the island of Maui, the second largest real estate market, sales of ex1st1ng single-family homes totaled 693 units for 2009, a
decrease of 23.9% compared to 2008, while the median price for the year -ended December 31, 2009 declined by 15.0% compared to
the median price for the year ended December 31,2008. The number of condominium sales increased by 4. 3% between 2008 and
2009. : . ,
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The slowing Hawaiian economy also resulted in a rise in delinquency and foreclosure rates. The number of foreclosures in the
State of Hawaii has recently increased from an average of approximately 630 foreclosure filings per month for the six months ended
June 2009 to 1,534 foreclosures during December 2009. Approximately one in twenty-one Hawaii homeowners was delinquent in
their mortgage payments as of September 2009.

Our local economy relies heavily on the tourism industry. Continued downturns in this industry could affect our operations
and resulits.

Tourism is one of the two largest components of Hawaii’s economy. The Hawaii Department of Business, Economic
Development and Tourism reported a 2.6% increase in tourists for the month of December 2009 compared to December 2008.
Tourism, however, declined 4.1% when comparing the first 11 months of 2009 to the first 11 months of 2008. Similarly, the
unemployment rate in the State of Hawaii increased to 6.5% as of December 2009, compared to 5.1% as of December 2008.
Continued downturns in the tourism industry, and the related loss of jobs or operating income for businesses, could have a significant
impact on our ability to originate loans, and the ability of borrowers to repay loans, either of which could adversely affect our financial
condition and results of operations.

We operate in a highly regulated environment and may be adversely affected by changes in laws and regulations.

We are subject to extensive regulation, supervision, and examination by the Office of Thrift Supervision and the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation. Such regulators govern the activities in which we may engage, primarily for the protection of depositors.
These regulatory authorities have extensive discretion in connection with their supervisory and enforcement activities, including the
imposition of restrictions on the operation of a bank, the classification of assets by a bank, and the adequacy of a bank’s allowance for
loan losses. Any change in such regulation and oversight, whether in the form of regulatory policy, regulation, or legislation, could
have a material impact on us and our operations. Because our business is highly regulated, the laws, rules and applicable regulations
are subject to regular modification and change. There can be no assurance that proposed laws, rules and regulations, or any other laws,
rules or regulations, will not be adopted in the future, which could make compliance more difficult or expensive or otherwise
adversely affect our business, financial condition or prospects.

Severe weather, natural disasters and other external events could significantly affect our operations and results.

Because all of our office locations are located in the State of Hawaii, severe weather or natural disasters, such as tsunamis,
hurricanes and earthquakes and other adverse external events could have a significant effect on our ability to conduct business. Such
events could affect the stability of our deposit base, impair the ability of borrowers to repay outstanding loans, impair the value of
collateral securing loans, cause significant property damage, result in loss of revenue and/or cause us to incur additional expenses.
Accordingly, the occurrence of any such event could have a material adverse effect on our business, which, in turn, could adversely
affect our financial condition and results of operations.

Higher Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation insurance premiums and special assessments will adversely affect our
earnings.

On May 22, 2009, the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation adopted a final rule levying a five basis point special assessment
on each insured depository institution’s assets minus Tier 1 capital as of June 30, 2009. We recorded an expense of $689,000 during
the quarter ended June 30, 2009, to reflect the special assessment. Any further special assessments that the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation levies will be recorded as an expense during the appropriate period. In addition, the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation increased the general deposit insurance assessment rate and, therefore, our Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation
insurance premium expense will increase compared to prior periods.

The Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation also adopted a rule pursuant to which all insured depository institutions were
required to prepay their estimated assessments for the fourth quarter of 2009, and for all of 2010, 2011 and 2012. The prepayment
amount was collected on December 30, 2009. The assessment rate for the fourth quarter of 2009 and for 2010 is based on each
institution’s total base assessment rate for the third quarter of 2009, modified to assume that the assessment rate in effect on
September 30, 2009 had been in effect for the entire third quarter, and the assessment rate for 2011 and 2012 will be equal to the
modified third quarter assessment rate plus an additional three basis points. In addition, each institution’s base assessment rate for
each period will be calculated using its third quarter assessment base, adjusted quarterly for an estimated 5% annual growth rate in the
assessment base through the end of 2012. We recorded the pre-payment as a prepaid expense, which will be amortized to expense over
three years. Based on our deposits and assessment rate as of September 30, 2009, our prepayment amount was $4.3 million.
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Legislative proposals have been introduced that would eliminate the Office of Thrift Supervision, which would require
Territorial Bancorp Inc. to become a bank holding company. '

Legislation has been proposed that would implement sweeping changes to the current bank regulatory structure, including
eliminating our current primary federal regulator, the Office of Thrift Supervision, by merging the Office of Thrift Supervision into
the Comptroller of the Currency (the primary federal regulator for national banks). The pproposed legislation would also establish a
Financial Services Oversight Council and grant the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System exclusive authority to regulate
all bank and thrift holding companies. As a result, Territorial Bancorp Inc. would become a holding company subject to supervision
by the Federal Reserve Board as opposed to the Office of Thrift Supervision, and would become subject to the Federal Reserve’s
regulations, including holding company capital requirements, that Territorial Bancorp Inc. would not be subject to as a savings and
loan holding company. In addition, compliance with new regulations and being supervised by one or more new regulatory agencies
could increase our expenses. :

System failure or breaches of our network security could subject us to increased operating costs as well as litigation and other
labilities.

The computer systems and network infrastructure we use could be vulnerable to unforeseen problems. Our operations are
dependent upon our ability to protect our computer equipment against damage from physical theft, fire, power loss,
telecommunications failure or a similar catastrophic event, as well as from security breaches, denial of service attacks, viruses, worms
and other disruptive problems caused by hackers. Any damage or failure that causes an interruption in our operations could have a
material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations. Computer break-ins, phishing and other disruptions could
also jeopardize the security of information stored in and transmitted through our computer systems and network infrastructure, which
may result in significant liability to us and may cause existing and potential customers to refrain from doing business with us.
Although we, with the help of third-party service providers, intend to continue to implement security technology and establish
operational procedures to prevent such damage, there can be no assurance that these security measures will be successful. In addition,
advances in computer capabilities, new discoveries in the field of cryptography or other developments could result in a compromise or
breach of the algorithms we and our third-party service providers use to encrypt and protect customer transaction data. A failure of
such security measures could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations.

Our stock value may be negatively affected by federal regulations that restrict takeovers.

For three years following our stock offering, Office of Thrift Supervision regulations prohibit any person from acquiring or
offering to acquire more than 10% of our common stock without the prior written approval of the Office of Thrift Supervision.

The corporate governance provisions in our articles of incorporation and bylaws, and the corporate governance provisions
under Maryland law, may prevent or impede the holders of our common stock from obtaining representation on our Board of
Directors and may impede takeovers of the company that our board might conclude are not in the best interest of Territorial
Bancorp Inc. or its stockholders.

Provisions in our articles of incorporation and bylaws may prevent or impede holders of our common stock from obtaining
representation on our Board of Directors and may make takeovers of Territorial Bancorp Inc. more difficult. For example, our Board
of Directors is divided into three staggered classes. A classified board makes it more difficult for stockholders to change a majority of
the directors because it generally takes at least two annual elections of directors for this to occur. Our articles of incorporation include
a provision that no person will be entitled to vote any shares of our common stock in excess of 10% of our outstanding shares of
common stock. This limitation does not apply to the purchase of shares by a tax-qualified employee stock benefit plan established by
us. In addition, our articles of incorporation and bylaws restrict who may call special meetings of stockholders and how directors may
be removed from office. Additionally, in certain instances, the Maryland General Corporation Law requires a supermajority vote of
our stockholders to approve a merger or other business combination with a large stockholder, if the proposed transaction is not
approved by a majority of our directors.

ITEM 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
Not applicable.
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ITEM 2.

Properties

We operate from our corporate office in Honolulu, Hawaii, and from our 25 full-service branches located in the State of Hawaii.
The net book value of our premises, land and equipment was $4.5 million at December 31, 2009. The following table sets forth
information with respect to our full-service banking offices, including the expiration date of leases with respect to leased facilities.

ALA MOANA CENTER
1450 Ala Moana Boulevard
Honolulu, Oahu 96814
12/31/2017

DOWNTOWN
1000 Bishop Street
Honolulu, Oahu 96813

KAIMUKI

1108 12™ Avenue
Honolulu, Oahu 96816
12/31/2018

KALIHI-KAPALAMA
1199 Dillingham Boulevard
Honolulu, Oahu 96817

12/31/2015 8/31/2012

HAWAII KAI KAMEHAMEHA SHOPPING

Hawaii Kai Shopping Center CENTER

377 Keahole Street 1620 North School Street

Honolulu, Oahu 96825 Honolulu, Oahu 96817

9/30/2013 9/30/2015

HILO KANEOHE

Waiakea Center 46-005 Kawa Street

315 Makaala Street Kaneohe, Oahu 96744

Hilo, Hawaii 96720 12/31/2014

12/31/2018

KAHALA KAPAHULU

4819 Kilauea Avenue Kilohana Square

Honolulu, Oahu 96816 1016 Kapahulu Avenue

3/16/2015 Honolulu, Oahu 96816
11/14/2013

KAHULUI KAPOLEI

Kaahumanu Center Ace Center at Kapolei

275 W. Kaahumanu Avenue 480 Kamokila Boulevard

Kahului, Maui 96732 Kapolei, Oahu 96707

12/31/2019 7/31/2014

KAILUA KAUAI

19 Oneawa Street Kukui Grove Shopping Center

Kailua, Oahu 96734 4393 Kukui Grove Street
Lihue, Kauai 96766
2/28/2013

ITEM 3. Legal Proceedings

KIHEI

Azeka Shopping Center
1279 South Kihei Road
Kihei, Maui 96753
1/31/2019

KONA

Crossroads Shopping Center
75-1027 Henry Street
Kailua-Kona, Hawaii 9674
8/31/2015 - '

LAHAINA

Old Lahaina Center
170 Papalaua Street
Lahaina, Maui-96761
3/31/2013

McCULLY _
1111 McCully Street
Honolulu, Oahu 96826
5/31/2013

MILILANI

Town Center of Mililani
95-1249 Meheula Parkway
Mililani, Oahu 96789
10/11/2014

NUUANU -
Nuuanu Shopping Center
1613 Nuuanu Avenue
Honolulu, Oahu 96817
7/22/2016

PEARL CITY

Pearl City Shopping Center
850 Kamehameha Highway
Pearl City, Oahu 96782
9/22/2014

PEARLRIDGE

98-084 Kamehameha Highway
Aiea, Oahu 96701

6/30/2012

SALT LAKE

Salt Lake Shopping Center
848 Ala Lilikoi Street
Honolulu, Oahu 96818

1312011

WAIPAHU

Waipahu Town Center
94-050 Farrington Highway
Waipahu, Oahu 96797
12/31/2014

WAIPIO
Laniakea Plaza

. 94-1221 Ka Uka Boulevard

Waipahu, Oahu 96797
9/30/2016

From time to time, we are involved as plaintiff or defendant in various legal proceedings arising in the ordinary course of
business. Except as previously disclosed, at December 31, 2009, we were not involved in any legal proceedings, the outcome of which
would be material to our financial condition or results of operations.

ITEM 4.

[Reserved]
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PART 11

ITEM 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity
Securities

(a) Market, Holder and Dividend Information. Our common stock is traded on the NASDAQ Global Select Market under the
symbol “TBNK.” The approximate number of holders of record of Territorial Bancorp Inc.’s common stock as of February 28, 2010
was 1,438. Certain shares of Territorial Bancorp Inc. are held in “nominee” or “street” name and accordingly, the number of beneficial
owners of such shares is not known or included in the foregoing number. The following table presents quarterly market information
for Territorial Bancorp Inc.’s common stock for the period beginning July 10, 2009 (the date of completion of our initial public
offering) and ended December 31, 2009. The following information with respect to trading prices was provided by the NASDAQ
Global Select Market. '

‘ Dividends
High Low Declared

Year Ended December 31, 2009
Quarter ended December 31, 2009 ........oovvveeriiiieieiiieecee e $ 1885 $ 15.69 —
Quarter ended September 30, 2009.........ccoeeeeevesioenenrnnenerennnionens $ 1623 $§ 10.00 —

Dividend payments by Territorial Bancorp Inc. are dependent on dividends it receives from Territorial Savings Bank, because
Territorial Bancorp Inc. has no source of income other than dividends from Territorial Savings Bank, earnings from the investment of
proceeds from the sale of shares of common stock retained by Territorial Bancorp Inc. and interest payments with respect to
Territorial Bancorp Inc.’s loan to the Employee Stock Ownership Plan. See “Item 1. Business —Supervision and Regulation— Federal
Banking Regulation —Capital Distributions.”

(b) Sales of Unregistered Securities. Not applicable.
(c) Use of Proceeds. Not applicable.

(d) Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans. See “Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain
Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters.”

(e) Stock Repurchases. Not applicable.

(f) Stock Performance Graph. Set forth hereunder is a stock performance graph comparing (a) the cumulative total return on
our shares of common stock between July 13, 2009 and December 31, 2009, (b) the cumulative total return on stocks included in the
Total Return Index for the Nasdaq Stock Market (US) over such period, and (c) the cumulative total return on stocks included in the
Nasdaq Bank Index over such period. Cumulative return assumes the reinvestment of dividends, and is expressed in dollars based on
an assumed investment of $100.
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There can be no assurance that the Company’s stock performance will continue in the future with the same or similar trend
depicted in the graph. The Company will not make or endorse any predictions as to future stock performance.
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Period Ending
7/13/09 8/31/09 9/30/09 10/31/09 11/30/09 12/31/09
100.00 106.67 104.60 110.01 113.28 120.41
100.00 122.92 122.73 113.14 117.32 114.18
100.00 112.04 118.36 114.05 119.60 126.54



ITEM 6. Selected Financial Data

The following selected consolidated financial and other data has been derived, in part, from the consolidated financial
statements and notes appearing elsewhere in this annual report.

Selected Financial Condition Data:

Total ASSELS cevuvviiiiciiieeeie e
Cash and cash equivalents............cooeecenvrenenenncncnsnn.
Investment securities held to maturity.........cccevvennnen
Loans receivable, Net.........ccovvivviveiiceiieeeeeeeeveeee
Bank owned life insurance ............cooeuv...... errrrrrrara—————.
Federal Home Loan Bank of Seattle stock, at cost......
DEPOSIES....vevviinienicririei ettt
Federal Home Loan Bank of Seattle advances............
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase ..........
Subordinated debentures ............ccoeeeviiievvevneerveennennns
Stockholders’ eqUity.........coeevvereriereriereneineeeereieenns

Selected Operating Data:

Interest and dividend income...........ccoovvivvivereineenennnn..
INterest EXPEnSe ....c.cevvvuecrerrereeirerteserteeiere e neeeeesnns

Net interest and dividend income after
provision (reversal of allowance) for loan

JOSSES ..

NON-INETESt EXPEMSE c.veuvevreriierrriianierarieiesreereeseesseeenns

Income before INCOME taXES......ovovvviieeeieeecreeeireeeeeane
INCOME tAXES...ccoiiiviiiiiieiee et

At December 31,
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
(In thousands)

1,389,612 $ 1224446 $ 1,162,018 $ 1299783 §$§ 1,244,834
135,953 11,216 19,755 88,512 15,085
598,394 527,767 538,025 621,339 669,853
597,700 633,160 554,795 546,201 516,090

28,249 27,107 26,068 20,026 19,301
12,348 12,348 12,348 12,348 12,348
1,014,668 923,914 892,316 981,354 1,016,051
— 35,791 72,000 100,000 100,317
130,200 115,200 55,200 60,545 —
— 24,221 24,199 24,178 24,156
219,671 99,381 92,479 86,829 79,367
Years Ended December 31,
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
(In thousands)
61,525 $ 61,220 $ 60,947 $ 61,887 $ 61,230
19,984 25,247 32,368 28,836 21,842
41,541 35,973 28,579 33,051 39,388
1,198 149 25 6 (15)
40,343 35,824 28,554 33,045 39,403
2,505 2,173 3,876 4,013 4,143
29,545 27,003 24,047 25,100 22,666
13,303 10,994 8,383 11,958 20,880
4,639 3,794 2,615 4,247 7,912
8,664 $ 7,200 $ 5,768 $ 7,711 $ 12,968
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At or For the Years Ended December 31,

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
Selected Financial Ratios and Other Data:
Performance Ratios:
Return on average assets (ratio of net income to average total

ASSEES) . tueteeuereeneete s eete e et et e tenae et et eeae et et et it e e s ne et e s e renneenes 0.66% 0.60% 0.48% 0.62% 1.04%
Return on average equity (ratio of net income to average equity) ..... 5.50% - 1.37% 6.35% 8.93% 17.42%
Interest rate spread (1) .vooieeiiiiiniie e, 3.04% 2.95% 2.25% 2.60% 3.20%
Net interest Margin (2) .c....ccueeereereerieerneieneeerrceee et ee e eseeeesnneesns 3.26% 3.14% 2.48% 2.78% 3.30%
Efficiency ratio (3).....cccveeerererienirie ettt 67.08% 70.79% 74.09% 67.72% 52.07%
Non-interest expense to average total assets ........cocevvevvvevreverenneenee 2.24% 2.25% 2.01% 2.03% 1.82%
Average interest-earning assets to average interest- bearmg ’

HADIIHES ..ot 114.30%  108.71% 108.16%  107.18% 105.55%
Average equity to average total asSets ........cc.coceeverierenuinienieenenenennn, 11.93% 8.15% 7.58% 6.99% 5.99%
Basic earnings per Share............cooociiiiiiiininnen $ 0.77 N/A N/A N/A N/A
Diluted earnings per Share ..........c..cceevinerieneneneninicne e, $ - 077 N/A N/A N/A N/A
Dividend payout Tatio .......c.cceeeeriinreririreniniieretctenene e e N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Asset Quality Ratios:

Non-performing assets to total ASSELS.......ccvveverierveereerrerieereerveenaen, 0.05% 0.02% 0.01% 0.05% 0.01%
Non-performing loans to total 10ans .........ccceeveevierceeenceennieeniireeenn, 0.09% 0.02% 0.02% 0.11% 0.02%
Allowance for loan losses to non-performing loans..........c.cccoeevenueee °323.27%  603.36%  724.53% 12951%  712.96%
Allowance for loan losses to total 10ans.........cccceeevereeereenirecercennenn, 0.28% 0.14% 0.14% 0.14% 0.15%
Capital Ratios (bank-level only):

Total capital (to risk-weighted assets).......cccccvvvevvrerceeeiveenieerereeennee. 37.18% 24.97% 25.33% 23.57% 23.60%
Tier I capital (to risk-weighted assets).......ccccereverenirenerieecieneneanns 36.85% 24.82% 25.17% 23.41% 23.43%
Tier I capital (to total aSSEtS)....ooveeirieceiieiieeiee et 13.67% 9.89% 9.83% 8.39% 8.11%
Other Data: ‘

Number of full service offiCes ........cccvevvieriininniniieiinicecre e, 25 24 24 24 22
Full time equivalent empIOYEes ....cccovierririerrrierneeeiieriresereeenesesrean. 256 250 244 226 220

(1) The average interest rate spread represents the difference between the weighted-average yield on interest-earning assets and the
weighted-average cost of interest-bearing liabilities for the year.

(2) The net interest margin represents net interest income as a percent of average interest-carning assets for the year.

(3) The efficiency ratio represents non-interest expense divided by the sum of net interest income and non-interest income.

ITEM 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The objective of this section is to help readers understand our views on our results of operations and financial condition. You
should read this discussion in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and notes to the consolidated financial statements
that appear elsewhere in the annual report.

Overview

We have historically operated as a traditional thrift institution. The significant majority of our assets consist of long-term, fixed-
rate residential mortgage loans and mortgage-backed securities, which we have funded primarily with deposit accounts, reverse
repurchase agreements and Federal Home Loan Bank advances. This has resulted in our being particularly vulnerable to increases in
interest rates, as our interest-bearing liabilities mature or reprice more quickly than our interest-earning assets.

We have continued our focus on originating one- to four-family residential real estate loans. Our emphasis on conservative loan
underwriting has resulted in low levels of non-performing assets at a time when many financial institutions are experiencing
significant asset quality issues. Our non-performing assets totaled $1.0 million, or 0.05% of total assets at December 31, 2009,
compared to $280,000 or 0.02% of total assets at December 31, 2008, and $106,000 or 0.01% of total assets at December 31, 2007. As
of December 31, 2009, we had $159,000 of real estate owned and one delinquent mortgage loan for $274,000. Total loan
delinquencies as of December 31, 2009 were $278,000. Our non-performing loans and loss experience has enabled us to maintain a
relatively low allowance for loan losses in relation to other peer institutions and correspondingly resulted in low levels of provisions
for loan losses. Our provision for loan losses was $1.2 million, $149,000 and $25,000 for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008
and 2007, respectively.
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Other than our loans for the construction of one- to four-family residential mortgage loans, we do not offer “interest only”
mortgage loans on one- to four-family residential properties (where the borrower pays interest for an initial period, after which the
loan converts to a fully amortizing loan). We also do not offer loans that provide for negative amortization of principal, such as
“Option ARM” loans, where the borrower can pay less than the interest owed on their loan, resulting in an increased principal balance
during the life of the loan. We do not offer “subprime loans” (loans that generally target borrowers with weakened credit histories
typically characterized by payment delinquencies, previous charge-offs, judgments, bankruptcies, or botrowers with questionable
repayment capacity as evidenced by low credit scores or high debt-burden ratios) or Alt-A loans (traditionally defined as non-
conforming loans having less than full documentation). We also do not own any private label mortgage-backed securities that are
collateralized by ALT-A, low or no documentation or subprime mortgage loans. :

. Our operations in 2008 and 2007 have been affected by our efforts to manage our interest rate risk position. Specifically, in
2007, we sold $43.0 million of 10-, 15- and 20-year fixed-rate mortgage loans and $21 .7 million of fixed- rate mortgage-backed
securities classified as held to maturity where we had already received a substantial portion (at least 85%) of the principal outstanding
at the acquisition date due to prepayments or scheduled repayments (as permitted by the Investments—Debt and Equity Securities
topic of the FASB ASC), and used the net proceeds of the sales to repay short-term borrowings. The loan sales resulted in a loss on ;
loan sales during 2007 of $1.1 million, while the securities sales resulted in gains on securities sales during 2007 of $731,000. In 2007
we also obtained $55.2 million of long-term fixed-rate reverse repurchase agreements to reduce our interest rate risk. We continued
our efforts to reduce interest rate risk in 2008 and 2009 by obtaining an additional $60.0 million and $15.0 million, respectively, of
long-term, fixed-rate reverse repurchase agreements and through the purchase of $36.8 million and $91.4 million, respectively, of
shorter-duration mortgage-backed securities. In 2009 we also sold $85.2 million of fixed-rate mortgage loan originations and raised
$122.3 million of capital in a stock conversion to reduce our interest rate risk. See “—Management of Market Risk” for a discussion
of all of the actions we took in 2007, 2008 and 2009 in managing interest rate risk. ’ :

All of the Bank’s mortgage-backed securities and collateralized mortgage obligations have been issued by Freddie Mac, Fannie -
Mae or Ginnie Mae, U.S. government-sponsored enterprises. These agencies guarantee the payment of principal and interest on the
Bank’s mortgage-backed securities. We do not own any preferred stock issued by Fannie Mae or Freddie Mac. As of December 31,
2009, our available credit line at the Federal Home Loan Bank of Seattle has not been reduced compared to levels from December 31
2008 or 2007."

Critical Accoimting Policies

We consider accounting policies that require management to exercise significant judgment or discretion or make significant
assumptions that have, or could have, a material impact on the carrying value of certain assets or on income, to be critical accountmg
policies. We consider the following to be our critical accounting policies:

Allowance for Loan Losses. We maintain an allowance for loan losses at an amount estimated to equal all credit losses incurred
in our loan portfolio that are both probable and reasonable to estimate.at a baldnce sheet date. We establish specific allowances for
impaired loans, and general allowances for the remaining loans in our loan portfolio. To estimate credit losses on impaired loans (in
accordance with the Receivables topic of the FASB ASC), we evaluate numerous factors, as described below in “— Allowance for
Loan Losses.” Based on our estimate of the level of allowance for loan losses requ1red we record a provision for loan losses to
maintain the allowance for loan losses at an appropriate level.

Since we cannot predict with certainty the amount of loan charge-offs that will be incurred and because the eventual level of
loan charge-offs is affected by numerous conditions beyond our control, a range of loss estimates can reasonably be’ used to determine
the allowance for loan losses and the related provisions for loan losses. In addition, various regulatory agencies, as an integral part of
their examination processes, periodically review our allowance for loan losses. Such agencies may require that we recognize add1t10ns
to the allowance for loan losses based on their judgments about information available to them at the time of their examination. -
Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Deterloratlon in the Hawaii real estate market could result in an 1ncrease in loan delinquencies, additional i 1ncreases in our,
allowance for loan losses and provision for loan losses, as well as an increase in loan charge-offs.

Securities Impairment. We periodically perform analyses to determine whether there has been an other-than-temporary decline
in the value of one or more of our securities. Our securities, all of which are classified as held to maturity, consist primarily of debt
securities for which we have a posmve intent and ability to hold to maturity, and are carried at amortized cost. We conduct a quarterly
review and evaluation of the securities portfolio to determine if the value of any security has declined below its cost or amortlzed cost,
and whether such decline is other-than-temporary. If such decline is deemed other-than-temporary, we would adjust the cost basis of
the security by writing down the security for any credit losses through a charge on the income statement. The market values of our
securities are affected by changes in interest rates as well as shifts in the market’s perception of the i issuers. The fair value of
investment securities is usually based on quoted market prices or dealer quotes, However, if there are no observable market inputs (for
securities such as trust preferred securities), we estimate the fair value using unobservable inputs. We obtain estimates of the fair value
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of trust preferred securities from pricing services and by discounting projected cash flows using a risk-adjusted discount rate in
accordance with the Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures topic of the FASB ASC. As discussed in greater detail below, the fair
value of the trust preferred securities for disclosure purposes is estimated by considering the reasonableness of the range of fair value
estimates provided by a pricing service and the discounted cash values.

On April 9, 2009, the Financial Accounting Standards Board revised the Investments —Debt and Equity Securities and the Fair
Value Measurements topics of the FASB ASC. The revisions amend the other-than-temporary impairment guidance for U.S. GAAP
for debt securities to make the guidance more operational and to improve the presentation and disclosure of other-than-temporary
impairments on debt and equity securities in a company’s financial statements. Before these recent revisions, to conclude that an
impairment was not other than temporary an entity was required, among other considerations, to assert that it had the intent and ability
to hold the security for a period of time sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery in fair value in accordance with Securities and
Exchange Commission Staff Accounting Bulletin Topic 5M, “Other Than Temporary Impairment of Certain Investments in Debt and
Equity Securities,” and other authoritative literature. As a result of these recent revisions, an entity should assess whether the entity
(a) has the intent to sell the debt security or (b) more likely than not will be required to sell the debt security before its anticipated
recovery (for example, if its cash or working capital requirements or contractual or regulatory obligations indicate that the debt
security will be required to be sold before the forecasted recovery occurs). The revisions also change the trigger used to assess the
collectability of cash flows from “probable that the investor will be unable to collect all amounts due” to “the entity does not expect to
recover the entire amortized cost basis of the security.” If the present value of cash flows expected to be collected is less than the
amortized cost basis of the security, an other-than-temporary impairment shall have occurred. We adopted the two revisions to the
FASB ASC for the quarter ended March 31, 2009.

We had previously considered our investment in one of the trust preferred securities (PreTSL XXIV) other-than-temporarily
impaired as of December 31, 2008, and we recorded a $2.5 million impairment charge during the quarter ended December 31, 2008.
In addition, effective January 1, 2009, the cumulative effect of our adoption of the revisions to the FASB ASC resulted in the
reclassification of $1.5 million of securities impairment from retained earnings to accumulated other comprehensive loss. In
subsequent quarters, we determined that PreTSL XXIV was other-than-temporarily impaired and recorded an additional impairment
charge of $1.0 million in 2009, of which $3.5 million was a credit loss recorded through our income statement as a charge to non-
interest income, and $2.5 million was recorded as an increase to other comprehensive loss. The $3.5 million impairment charge for
2009 includes the $2.5 million that was previously reflected as a charge against income in the last quarter of 2008, but due to the
revisions in accounting pronouncements, the Company was required to once again charge income in the amount of $2.5 million for the
year ended December 31, 2009 for the same security. Our investment in PreTSL XXIII is not other-than-temporarily impaired because
it is not more likely than not that we will be required to sell this security before recovering the amortized cost basis of $3.5 million.

The trust preferred securities market is considered to be inactive as only five sales transactions of similarly rated PreTSL
securities have occurred in 2009. In addition, there have been no new issues of pooled trust preferred securities since 2007. Because
the trust preferred securities market is inactive, we use a discounted cash flow model to determine the estimated fair value of the trust
preferred securities and to determine whether they are other-than-temporarily impaired.

As stated above, the fair value of the trust preferred securities for disclosure purposes is estimated by considering the
reasonableness of the range of fair value estimates provided by a pricing service and the discounted cash values. The primary
difference between the fair value estimates prepared by our pricing service and our estimates is the discount rate assumption. As of
December 31, 2009, we utilized a yield on corporate bonds issued by banks and thrifts plus a 4.69% liquidity premium to arrive at a
risk-adjusted discount rate of 18.72%. Our discounted cash flow determined fair value to be $3.74 per $100 of par value. Our pricing
service uses a discount rate of 21.00% and determined fair value to be $2.41 per $100 of par value.

Management considered the range of values and decided that our pricing service’s estimate of value should be assigned a 70%
weight and our discounted cash flow estimate should be assigned a 30% weight, which, as of December 31, 2009, resulted in a fair
value estimate for PreTSL XXIII of $2.81 per $100 of par value. We give a greater weighting to the value established by the pricing
service because of its experience in these matters as an independent third-party service provider.

At December 31, 2009, PreTSL XXIII has a book value of $3.5 million and a fair value of $100,000. PreTSL XXIV is other-
than temporarily impaired and has a book value of $0.

We evaluated our $12.3 million investment in FHLB stock for other-than-temporary impairment as of December 31, 2009.
Considering the long-term nature of this investment, the liquidity position of the FHLB of Seattle, the actions taken by the FHLB of
Seattle to meet its regulatory capital requirement, and our intent and ability to hold this investment for a period of time sufficient to
recover the par value, our FHLB stock was not considered other-than-temporarily impaired. As of December 31, 2009, the FHLB of
Seattle has met all of its regulatory capital requirements. Moody’s Investor Services and Standard and Poor’s have given the FHLB of
Seattle a long-term credit rating of AAA. Even though we did not recognize an other-than-temporary impairment loss on our
investment in FHLB stock in 2009, continued deterioration in the FHLB of Seattle’s financial position may result in future impairment
losses.
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Deferred Tax Assets. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the estimated future tax effects attributable to
temporary differences and carryforwards. A valuation allowance may be required if, based on the weight of available evidence, it is
more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. In determining whether a valuation
allowance is necessary, we consider the level of taxable income in prior years, to the extent that carrybacks are permitted under
current tax laws, as well as estimates of future taxable income and tax planning strategies that could be implemented to accelerate
taxable income if necessary. If our estimates of future taxable income were materially overstated or if our assumptions regarding the
tax consequences of tax planning strategies were inaccurate, some or all of our deferred tax assets may not be realized, which would
result in a charge to earnings.

Defined Benefit Retirement Plan. Defined benefit plan obligations and related assets of our defined benefit retirement plan are
presented in Note 17 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. Effective December 3 1, 2008, the defined benefit retirement plan was
frozen and all plan benefits were fixed as of that date. Plan assets, which consist primarily of marketable equity and debt securities, are
typically valued using market quotations. Plan obligations and the annual pension expense are determined by independent actuaries
through the use of a number of assumptions. Key assumptions in measuring the plan obligations include the discount rate and the
expected long-term rate of return on plan assets. In determining the discount rate, we utilize a yield that reflects the top 50% of the
universe of bonds, ranked in the order of the highest yield. Asset returns are based upon the anticipated average rate of earnings
expected on the invested funds of the plans.

At December 31, 2009, we used weighted-average discount rates of 6.30% and 6.20% for calculating annual pension expense
and projected plan liabilities, respectively, and an expected long-term rate of return on plan assets of 8.00% for calculating annual
pension expense. At December 31, 2008, we used a weighted-average discount rate of 6.00% and 6.30% for calculating annual
pension expense and projected plan liabilities, respectively, and an expected long-term rate of return on plan assets of 8.00% for
calculating annual pension expense. For both the discount rate and the asset return rate, a range of estimates could reasonably have
been used, which would affect the amount of pension expense and pension liability recorded.

An increase in the discount rate or asset return rate would reduce pension expense in 2009, while a decrease in the discount rate
or asset return rate would have the opposite effect. A 25 basis point decrease in the discount rate assumptions would increase 2009
pension expense by $4,000 and year-end 2009 pension liability by $325,000, while a 25 basis point decrease in the asset return rate
would increase 2009 pension expense by $21,000. '

Balance Sheet Analysis

Assets. At December 31, 2009, our assets were $1.390 billion, an increase of $165.2 million, or 13.5%, from $1.224 billion at
December 31, 2008. The increase was caused by an increase in cash and cash equivalents of $124.7 million, or 1,112.1% due
primarily to the receipt of net proceeds from our stock offering, which closed on July 10, 2009. In addition, investment securities
increased by $70.6 million, or 13.4%, as we invested the increase in deposits and loan repayments into Freddie Mac and Ginnie Mae
mortgage-backed securities and collateralized mortgage obligations. This was partially offset by a $35.5 million, or 5.6% decrease in
the loan portfolio. The decrease was caused primarily by an increase in loan repayments and the sale of mortgage loans which resulted
in a $25.8 million or 4.4% decrease in one- to four-family residential real estate loans and a $8.2 million or 27.3% decrease in home
equity loans and lines of credit. :

Cash and Cash Equivalents. At December 31, 2009, we had $136.0 million of cash and cash equivalents, which primarily
represents the proceeds from our stock offering.
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Loan Portfolio Maturities and Yields. The following table summarizes the scheduled maturities of our loan portfolio at
December 31, 2009. Demand loans, loans having no stated repayment schedule or maturity, and overdraft loans are reported as being

due in one year or less.

One- to four-family

Muiti-family residential

Construction, commercial

residential real estate real estate and other real estate
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Amount Rate Amount Rate Amount Rate
(Dollars in thousands)
Due During the Years
Ending December 31,
210) (1 F O $ 43 6.63% $ — — % $ 1464 5.75%
201110 2014 vveerreerereeeereeeeeeere e seseesene 904 6.32.. 834 7.01 1,858 6.82
2015 and beyond...............ooeevererereverereeereesnenne. 554,526 540 - 2973 7.03. 17,440 6.08
TOtal .o $ 555473 541% $ 3,807 7.02% $ 20,762 6.12%
Home equity loans and
lines of credit Other loans Total
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Amount Rate Amount Rate Amount Rate
(Dollars in thousands) ’
Due During the Years - ‘
Ending December 31, ,
2010 et $ 1,327 526% $ 1,540 6.02% $ 4,374 5.71%
2011102014 ..ottt 2,532 5.86 1,846 7.41 7,974 6.61
2015 and beyond.........cocceeeveericveierernieeeieenieens 17,930 6.62 3,509 6.29 596,378 . 5.47
TOtal ...ovvvrieieieeeccercrreree e $ 21,789 645% $ 6,895 6.53% $ 608,726 5.49%

The following table sets forth the scheduled repayments of fixed- and adjustable—rafe loans at December 31, 2009 that are
contractually due after December 31, 2010.

Due After December 31, 2010

Fixed . Adjustable Total
(In thousands)
Real estate loans:

First mortgage: ' L
One- to four-family residential .........cccccocoevvvriecvcnecnens. $ 547,526 - $ 7904 $ 555430
Multi-family residential.........c.ccoceveeirenieenennenieersuennennn 3,420 387 3,807
Construction, commercial and other..............ccccveevennnneen. 15,694 3,604 19,298
Home equity loans and lines of credit......cc.cccoeeveeeeevereencnnen. 13,383 7,079 20,462
Other J0ANS.......cccvieeeiieieetie et cecere et et eeste e s teesae e tveeaseenseeenneenes 4,615 740 5,355
TOtAl IOANS...c.vvievieeieeeeeecieeeeeeeerreeresssoreesaesnesens $ 584,638 $ 19,714 $ 604,352

Securities. At December 31, 2009, our securities portfolio totaled $598.4 million, or 43.1% of assets. At that date, our securities
portfolio consisted primarily of securities with the following amortized cost: $419.8 million of mortgage-backed securities and $175.1
million of collateralized mortgage obligations and $3.5 million of trust preferred securities. All of the mortgage-backed securities and
collateralized mortgage obligations were issued by Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac or Ginnie Mae. At December 31, 2009, all of such
securities were classified as held to maturity, and none of the underlying collateral consisted of subprime or Alt-A loans (traditionally
defined as non-conforming loans having less than full documentation). At December 31, 2009, we held no common or preferred stock
of Fannie Mae or Freddie Mac. '

During the year ended December 31, 2009, our securities portfolio increased $70.6 million, or 13.4%, as we invested the
increase in deposits and loan repayments into Freddie Mac and Ginnie Mae mortgage-backed securities and collateralized mortgage
obligations. ‘ :
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The following table sets forth the amortized cost and estimated fair value of our securities portfolios (excluding Federal Home
Loan Bank of Seattle common stock) at the dates indicated. All of such securities were classified as held to maturity at the dates
indicated.

. At December 31,
2009 2008 2007
Amortized : Amortized Amortized
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value

(In thousands)

U.S. government sponsored mortgage-backed

securities: '
Fannie Mae........coooovvviveivieiieec e, $ 81234 $ 83,538 $ 103,313 $ 105272 $ 115004 $ 113,040
Freddie Mac .......oooovvevvieiiiecieee e 299,143 305,166 308,522 315,823 316,546 310,614
Collateralized mortgage obligations.............. 175,100 178,049 111,328 112,358 88,779 88,481
OthEr ..o e 39,375 39,416 65 61 83 80

Total U.S. government sponsored

mortgage-backed securities............. 594,852 606,169 523,228 533,514 520,412 512,215
Municipal bonds .......ccccocvevininiiininiin, — — — — 10,539 10,592
Trust preferred SECUrIties ......coecevvveeieeiicrineeccaene. 3,542 100 4,539 2,076 7,074 6,500
o121 SN $ 598,394 $ 606,269 $ 527,767 $ 535,590 $ ' 538,025 $ 529,307

Unrealized losses on individual mortgage-backed securities as of December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 were caused by increases
in current market interest rates. All of our mortgage-backed securities are guaranteed by U.S. government-sponsored enterprises. Since
the decline in market value had been attributable to changes in interest rates and not credit quality, and we have had, and continue to
have, the intent and ability to hold these investments to maturity, we have not considered these investments to be other-than-
temporarily impaired as of December 31, 2009, 2008 or 2007.

We sold our municipal bonds in 2008 because $5.5 million of these securities had experienced a credit downgrade and because
of the possibility of a potential downgrade of both the issuers of and the insurers on the remaining bonds. The unrealized losses on our
investment in municipal bonds at December 31, 2007 were caused by increases in current market interest rates. All of the municipal
bonds were rated AA or better by S&P and/or Moody’s and insured. Prior to sale, we expected full repayment at maturity, and had the
ability to hold these investments to maturity. Therefore, we did not consider these investments to be other-than-temporarily impaired
as of December 31, 2007.

At December 31, 2009, we owned trust preferred securities with a carrying value of $3.5 million. This portfolio consists of two
securities, which represent investments in a pool of debt obligations issued by Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation-insured
financial institutions, insurance companies and real estate investment trusts.

Since the trust preferred securities market is considered to be inactive, we used a discounted cash flow model to determine the
estimated fair value and to determine whether these securities are other-than-temporarily impaired. Based on our review, we
considered our investment in one of the trust preferred securities, PreTSL XXIV other-than-temporarily impaired as of December 31,
2008, for which we recorded a $2.5 million impairment charge in accordance with the accounting pronouncements at that time. In
addition, effective January 1, 2009, the cumulative effect of our adoption of revisions to the FASB ASC resulted in the reclassification
of $1.5 million of securities impairment from retained earnings to accumulated other comprehensive loss. During the year ended
December 31, 2009, we recognized an additional $1.0 million impairment charge on PreTSL XXIV, of which $3.5 million was a-
credit loss recognized through our income statement as a charge to non-interest income, and $2.5 million was recorded as an increase
to other comprehensive loss. The $3.5 million impairment charge for 2009 includes the $2.5 million that was previously reflected as a
charge against income in the last quarter of 2008, but due to revisions in accounting pronouncements, the Company was required to
once again charge income in the amount of $2.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2009 for the same security. Our investment
in PreTSL XXIII is not other-than-temporarily impaired because we will not more likely than not be required to sell this security
before recovering the amortized cost basis of $3.5 million. :

At December 31, 2009, we had no investments in a single company or entity that had an aggregate book value in excess of 10%
of our consolidated equity. :

Bank Owned Life Insurance. We invest in bank owned life insurance to provide us with a funding source for our benefit plan
obligations. Bank owned life insurance also generally provides us non-interest income that is non-taxable. Federal regulations
generally limit our investment in bank owned life insurance to 25% of our Tier 1 capital plus our allowance for loan losses. At
December 31, 2009, this limit was $47.9 million, and we had invested $28.2 million in bank owned life insurance at that date.
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Deposits. We accept deposits primarily from the areas in which our offices are located. We rely on our competitive pricing,
convenient locations and customer service to attract and retain deposits. We offer a variety of deposit accounts with a range of interest
rates and terms. Our deposit accounts consist of passbook and statement savings accounts, certificates of deposit, money market
accounts, commercial and regular checking accounts and Super NOW accounts. Historically, we have not accepted brokered deposits.

Interest rates paid, maturity terms, service fees and withdrawal penalties are established on a periodic basis. Deposit rates and
terms are based primarily on current operating strategies and market interest rates, liquidity requirements and our deposit growth

goals.
During the year ended December 31, 2009, our deposits grew $90.8 million, or 9.8%. The increase was caused by our promoting

higher than market rates for our passbook and statement savings accounts. Savings accounts grew by $231.5 million or 56.8% because
of higher interest rates and the ability to get immediate access to their funds without incurring an early withdrawal penalty appealed to

customers.

At December 31, 2009, we had a total of $254.4 million in certificates of deposit, of which $207.7 million had remaining
maturities of one year or less. Based on historical experience and our current pricing strategy, we believe we will retain a portion of

these accounts upon maturity.

The following tables set forth the distribution of our average total deposit accounts (including interest-bearing and non-interest
bearing deposits), by account type, for the periods indicated.

For the Years Ended December 31,

2009 2008
Weighted Weighted
Average Average " Average Average
Balance Percent Rate Balance Percent Rate

{Dollars in thousands)

Deposit type:
Noninterest bearing ........ccoceeeeeereeiereneienereeeienans $ 33,583 3.4% — % $ 13,303 1.4% — %
SAVINES ACCOUNLS ...eoeeeieiiiiieiieicere et seeaeieeineas 511,152 51.3 1.52% 392,041 43.0 1.53%
Certificates of deposit.......ccccvvververeenereiienienieenennne. 337,487 33.9 1.81% 403,405 44.3 3.09%
Money market .........ccooerriiinietie e 94,857 9.5 0.25% 81,691 9.0 0.06%
Checking and Super NOW .......ccooconiiniiiiniirniinne 19,554 1.9 0.06% 20,530 2.3 0.05%
Total deposits.......vveeuieivneeeiieieeieareneeneenee $ 996,633 100.0% 1.42% $ 910,970 . 100.0% 2.03%
For the Year Ended
December 31, 2007
Weighted
Average Average
Balance Percent Rate
(Dollars in thousands)
Deposit type:
INORINEETESE DEATINE ...cvevevreveerieierieterereniereeeerseiereneesessrsesessessessesesnes $ 12,319 1.4% — %
SAVINGS BCCOUNTS. ....eiuririiiireriieireiec it eeeere e s e s 396,209 42.5 1.40%
Certificates of depOSIt.....c.ccoviirierieiieienece e 422,173 45.3 4.32%
MOREY MATKEL. c...eeieiriiieiiirceneii ettt et eneeanens 80,283 8.6 0.07%
Checking and Super NOW ... e 20,799 22 0.07%
Total dEPOSILS ....veueetiatieie ettt s $ 931,783 100.0% 2.56%
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As of December 31, 2009, the aggregate amount of outstanding certificates of deposit in amounts greater than or equal to
$100,000 was approximately $147.2 million. The following table sets forth the maturity of those certificates as of December 31, 2009.

At
December 31, 2009
(In thousands)
Three MONthS OF 1I8SS..ccuvvviiieiie et e e et eveeenas $ 117,771
Over three months through six months..........cc.ccooeeeiiviii, 2,958
Over six months through one year...........ccovevveeieeceeeeceeee e ‘ 8,685
Over one year t0 three YEars .......oovecveecvveeierti st cve e . 8,414
OVET ThICE YEAIS....veiiteitieereicreeet e cteeee et seesses st st s e e e eeneseesmeeeneas 9,411
TOtAL .ot e e e $ 147,239

Borrowings and Subordinated Debentures. Our borrowings consist primarily of advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank
of Seattle and funds borrowed under repurchase agreements. At December 31, 2009, our repurchase agreements totaled $130.2
million, or 11.1% of total liabilities. During 2009, all Federal Home Loan Bank advances were paid off and no advances were
outstanding as of December 31, 2009. At December 31, 2009, we had the capability to borrow up to $339.1 million in the form of
advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank. ‘

During the year ended December 31, 2009, our borrowings decreased $20.8 million, or 13.8%. The decrease was caused by the
pay off of $35.8 million of Federal Home Loan Bank advances using the funds received from our increase in deposits. This was
partially offset by the addition of $15.0 million of long-term, fixed-rate reverse repurchase agreements. The shift from short-term
Federal Home Loan Bank advances to longer-term reverse purchase agreements is part of our continued effort to reduce interest rate
risk. See “—Management of Market Risk.”

The following table sets forth information concerning balances and interest rates on our Federal Home Loan Bank advances at
the dates and for the years indicated.

At or For the Years Ended
December 31,
2009 2008 2007
(Dollars in thousands)
Balance at end of Year........ccocooeivinienecieiiniee e $ — $ 35791 $ 72,000
Average balance during year ............ccoccocvvevvvvviennen. s $ 3932 $ 21,033 $ 70,178
Maximum outstanding at any month end..........c.ceeveveveereeerenrrnnnne. $ 29381 $ 43875 $ 127,659
Weighted average interest rate at end of year........ccccoceeevereenninnne. 0.00% 0.63% 4.62%
Average interest rate during YEar.........coeoereivereererererereeerrernsereones 0.84% 2.45% 5.28%

The following table sets forth information concerning balances and interest rates on our repurchase agreements at the dates and
for the years indicated.

At or For the Years Ended
December 31,
2009 2008 2007
(Dollars in thousands)
Balance at end of Year..........ccccevvvvevieviietictecee e, $ 130200 $ 115200 $ 55200
Average balance during year ........c.coceevevevieveeieceeeneenieiereeeeenin $ 129214 $§ 110871 $ 48912
Maximum outstanding at any month end...........c..ccoevveverrenennneen, $ 130,200 $ 123200 $ 61422
Weighted average interest rate at end of year.........c...ccocueeeene.. 3.82% 3.95% 4.85%
Average interest rate during year.........c.oceeevevveeveereeeceeeeeeenn, 3.88% 4.05% 5.26%

In the quarter ending September 30, 2009, we repaid $24.7 million of subordinated debentures. We recognized a loss of
$507,000 relating to the cost of issuing these debentures.

Stockholders’ Equity. At December 31, 2009, our stockholders’ equity was $219.7 million, an increase of $120.3 million, or
121.0%, from $99.4 million at December 31, 2008. The increase resulted from the completion of our stock offering in July 2009, as
well as net income of $8.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2009.
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Average Balances and Yields

The following tables set forth average balance sheets, average yields and rates, and certain other information for the years
indicated. No tax-equivalent yield adjustments were made, as the effect thereof was not material. All average balances are daily
average balances. Non-accrual loans were included in the computation of average balances, but have been reflected in the table as
loans carrying a zero yield. The yields set forth below include the effect of net deferred costs, discounts and premiums that are
amortized or accreted to interest income:

For the Year Ended
December 31, 2009
Average
Outstanding
Balance Interest Yield/ Rate
(Dollars in thousands)
Interest-earning assets:
Loans:
Real estate loans:
First mortgage: ,
One- to four-family residential............cccceeneee S $ 563,094 $ 32,267 5.73%
Multi-family residential ........c.ccooooeirviiinniinnennenn. 3,742 266 7.11
Construction, commercial and other ....................... 17,733 1,169 6.59
Home equity loans and lines of credit ..........ccccecvevenennne. 24,709 1,630 6.60
OhET JOAIS .o ieeeeeeiiieieeie s eesir e e teessesiareseras s sasseeeeesesesbanrnnenes 6,679 443 6.63
Total 10ANS. .. uvveiviesiiieceieee e 615,957 35,775 5.81
Investment securities ‘
U.S. government sponsored mortgage-backed securities........... 536,441 25,609 4.77
Municipal bonds..........cooooviiiiiininiiii e - — — —
Trust preferred SeCUrities (4) .....covevreerrarrcorenirecicecececnee, 3,751 (8) -0.21
(0117 SO e e eeeeeteeerbeesebraeaanraeaiereeerannns — — —
TOtal SECUTTHES .....voeevreeeceeee e 540,192 25,601 474
OTDET 1ttt e et e et e e ste et e e seneesae s sabaesntn e e saesaseaenaaas s 117,045 149 0.13
Total interest-earning assets ......cecvevrerereerrrerereerreeenneres 1,273,194 61,525 4.83
Non-interest-earning assetS.........occeeeereereeerererreesurrereeraereronesineseneareeane 48,574
TOtAL ASSELS e eeereeeeeeereeeeeeneee e ere e eeeeee e e e seeate s s sraneeeaas $ 1,321,768
Interest-bearing liabilities:
SAVINZS ACCOUNLS ..vuieereiiiiiiieieenieieieeie et ete st esbestessebesreeneebeneees $ 511,152 71,761 1.52%
Certificates Of dePOSIt.....ccceveiveivieiiiiirierincrincner e 337,487 6,118 1.81
Money market aCCOUNLS. ........c.oociiiiiiiicii it 94,857 239 0.25
Checking and Super NOW acCOUNLS .......cocviivvueierirerieninneiieeenneeenns 19,554 11 0.06
Total interest-bearing deposits.......ccoceceereireenvencenieaiinens 963,050 14,129 . 147
Federal Home Loan Bank advances ...........cccoovveieiieeiiiiienieesesrecnennnns 3932 33 0.84
OtNET DOTTOWITZS . seeviverierreeenere it ntcee et e seeesreeeiee et e sees e reeessbee s 146,878 5,822 3.96
Total interést—bearing HabilitiesS e, 1,113,860 19,984 1.79
Non-interest-bearing liabilities ........cocvvvevrvenninciininiercens 50,285
Total LHabIlItIES ...ecvviivrerveerieerireieeireireneereeeeeeseeeeaesseeseeenes 1,164,145
Stockholders’ equity ......c.ocovviiinmeriiiiii i 157,623
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity........ccccoeeereeenecns $ 1,321,768
Net interest income................. ettt ee e e e ———taeeee s e raet et e ie et bntrrerenaans $ 41,541
Net interest rate SPread (1) ..o viereeneeneeniiiinnceee e 3.04%
Net interest-earning assets (2) ....covveeververerrirrereriereereeeseereeseneseeenseeenes $ 159,334
Net interest Mmargin (3)...c..ccoueevereiereenieereerienireerreser oo ee s e 3.26%
Average interest-earning assets to interest-bearing liabilities.............. - 114.30% '

(footnotes on following page)
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For the Years Ended December 31,

2008 2007
Average Average '
Outstanding Outstanding
Balance ;- Interest Yield/ Rate Balance Interest Yield/ Rate
(Dollars in thousands)
Interest-earning assets:
Loans:
Real estate 10anS: ........coceveveeveriiveeeciiceineeene,
First mortgage:
One- to four-family residential.... $ 544920 $ 31,087 570% $ 521,348 $ 29,524 5.66%
Multi-family residential............... 4,174 301 7.21 4,746 343 7.23
Construction, commercial and
1611 11=2 R 19,168 1,319 6.88 12,946 952 7.35
Home equity loans and lines of credit ..... 28,910 2,012 6.96 18,060 1,293 7.16
Other 10ans ...........ooovvevvieieieiiiececeeeeeeeeeeens 6,074 434 7.15 5472 402 7.35
Total I0anS......c.veevvvievvricineeninee, 603,246 35,153 5.83 562,572 32,514 5.78
Investment securities
U.S. government sponsored mortgage-
backed SECUrItieS.....cvvvveeuveeerecieecieeeee e, 519,400 25,439 4.90 556,629 27,356 491
Municipal bonds.....cc.cccvevvevvrecrieiiiececrerecnnee, 3,000 112 3.73 10,544 392 3.72
Trust preferred securities.............cccveveeennrennee. 7,049 361 5.12 7,096 539 7.60
Other. ..., 459 9 1.96 150 13 8.67
Total securities .........coccveeeiennnne. 529,908 25,921 4.89 574,419 28,300 493
Other ..o e e 13,957 146 1.05 13,528 133 0.98
Total interest-earning assets.................. 1,147,111 61,220 5.34 1,150,519 60,947 5.30
Non-interest-arning assets .....ooiuerverererieesveereerreernnes 50,362 47,400
TOtal ASSELS...coueeeeeeeeeiee e eeeeeeeeean, $ 1,197,473 $ 1,197,919
Interest-bearing liabilities:
SaVINGS ACCOUNLS ....cvviereerietiererereere e cteceeeneereenn $ 392,041 6,003 1.53% $ 396,209 $ 5,546 1.40%
Certificates of depOSIt......ccceevvveviecievirecirceere e, 403,405 12,457 3.09 422,173 18,243 4.32
Money market acCOUNtS ..........ccceeveveeevveeeneiieeeenenn, 81,691 51 0.06 80,283 60 0.07
Checking and Super NOW accounts..........c.coeuveneenn, 20,530 10 0.05 20,799 - 14 0.07
Total interest-bearing deposits.............. 897,667 18,521 2.06 919,464 23,863 2.60
Federal Home Loan Bank advances..........ccccuue....... 21,033 515 2.45 70,178 3,709 5.29
Other DOITOWINES «....vvveveeiieeerecee e 136,493 6,211 4.55 74,051 4,796 6.48
Total interest-bearing liabilities ............ 1,055,193 25,247 2.39 1,063,693 32,368 3.05
Non-interest-bearing liabilities...........ccccovveriivnreennnnn, 44,642 43,379
Total Liabilities ..........cccovvvvvviiiieeeeeanee, 1,099,835 1,107,072
Stockholders’ €qUItY .......ceeveeerrrreecrierenieensaneernnenss 97,638 90,847
Total liabilities and stockholders’
10| 151 TSRO $ 1,197,473 $ 1,197,919
Net INtEereSt INCOMIE «..vveeveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeereee e eens $ 35973 $ 28,579
Net interest rate spread (1) .....ccoooeeirenveverinreecennnn. 2.95% 2.25%
Net interest-earning assets (2).......ccceevevveereereerernnnns. $ 91,918 $ 86,826
Net interest margin (3) ....coceevereeevrevvecereecreeeeieennn, 3.14% 2.48%
Average of interest-ecarning assets to interest-
bearing liabilities...........covverreriverrerenireeecnrrenennn, 108.71% 108.16%

(1) Net interest rate spread represents the difference between the yield on average interest-earning assets and the cost of average

interest-bearing liabilities.

(2)  Net interest-earning assets represent total interest-earning assets less total interest-bearing liabilities.
(3)  Net interest margin represents net interest income divided by average total interest-earning assets.
(4) Interest on trust preferred securities has a negative balance because interest owed on these securities was reversed in 2009
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Rate/Volume Analysis

The following table presents the effects of changing rates and volumes on our net interest income for the years indicated. The
rate column shows the effects attributable to changes in rate (changes in rate multiplied by prior volume). The volume column shows
the effects attributable to changes in volume (changes in volume multiplied by prior rate). The total column represents the sum of the
prior columns. For purposes of this table, changes attributable to both rate and volume, which cannot be segregated, have been
allocated proportionately based on the changes due to rate and the changes due to volume.

Years Ended December 31, . Years Ended December 31,

2009 vs. 2008 2008 vs. 2007
Increase (Decrease) Total Increase (Decrease) Total
Due to . Increase Due to Increase
Volume Rate . (Decrease) Volume Rate (Decrease)
(In theusands)
Interest-earning assets:
Loans:
Real estate loans:
First mortgage: ......c.coeveeeveceiinnvninnecncnennnn ’
One- to four-family residential ........... $ 1,041 $ 139 § 1,180 $ 1343 $ 220 % 1,563
Multi-family residential .............c.c..... 31) @ (35) 41 )] 42)
Construction, commercial and other ... (96) 54 (150) 424 7 367
Home equity loans and lines of credit........... (281) (101) (382) 754 (35) 719
Other 10aNS.....ccuveeriecieiere e e seeeeeereeeeesese s 32 (23) 9 43 (11) 32
Total 10aNnS .....ccveevverieiecerereenceeeeeenns 665 (43) 622 2,523 116 2,639
Investment securities ‘ '
U.S. government sponsored mortgage-backed
SECUTTHIES...evvvervevereeseesereerenseeensseessassensaesssneess 742 (572) 170 (1,824) 93 a9
Municipal bonds .......c.coccevvnieniiiniinininnene (112) — (112) - (282) 2 (280)
Trust preferred SECUTILIES ....cocvvvvveriiriiriviniieieiencans (114 (255 (369) 4) (174) (178)
OhET ..ottt rree e svee s s neesene s enessseas 9 — 9 6) 2 ' @
Total SECULItIES ....vereereereereneereeneeenne 507 (827) (320) 2,116) - (263) 2,379)
ONET..cvvieveeerecreere e etee e esee e e rressreesresseesreesresressbesssasaes 3 — 3 4 9 13
Total interest-earning assets.......... $ 1,175 $ (870) % 305 $ 411 $ (138) $ 273
Interest-bearing liabilities:
SAVINES ACCOUNLS ..vvvvrerererreneaeeereneeerearenessaeeserenersrasssans $ 1,808 $ G0y $ 1,758 % (58 $ 515 ' $ 457
Certificates of depOSit......coeeveveveeerecrcrniiiininiinirnsieenes (1,797) (4,542) 1(6,339) (780) (5,006) (5,786)
Money market aCCOUNLS......cccverveeiirieiiienisseseerereeieenes 9 179 188 1 (10) 9
Checking and Super NOW accounts ..........c.cceevuerennnnsin — 1 I — @) , @
Total interest-bearing deposits ........ccccevuenne 20 (4,412) (4,392) (837) 4,505) (5,342)
Federal Home Loan Bank advances ........cccceeeveericevrennnnns 267) (215) (482) (1,808) (1,386) (3,194)
Other DOITOWINES.....ccvceerieieriises et 560 (949) (389) 2,186 a7 1,415

Total interest-bearing liabilities .... $ 313 $ (5576) $ (5.263) $ (459 $ (6,662) $ (7,121)

Change in net interest iNCOME .......ocvvvrrerriricresisisnsreneienes $ 862 $ 4,706 $ 5,568 $ 870 $ 6,524 $ 7,394

Comparison of Operating Results for the Years Ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007

General. Net income increased $1.5 million, or 20.3%, to $8.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2009 from $7.2 million
for the year ended December 31, 2008. The increase was primarily caused by a $5.3 million decrease in interest expense, partially
offset by an increase in non-interest expense of $2.5 million and an increase in the provision for loan losses of $1.0 million.

Net income increased $1.4 million, or 24.8%, to $7.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2008 from $5.8 million for the
year ended December 31, 2007. The increase was primarily caused by a $7.1 million decrease in interest expense partially offset by an
increase in non-interest expense of $3.0 million and a decrease in non-interest income of $1.7 million.
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Net Interest Income. Net interest income increased $5.6 million, or 15.5%, for the year ended December 31, 2009, compared to
the prior year. Interest expense decreased $5.3 million as declining market interest rates for certificates of deposits allowed us to
reduce our deposit expense by $4.4 million. In addition, interest expense on borrowings and subordinated debt decreased $871,000 as
Federal Home Loan Bank advances and subordinated debentures were paid off. Interest and dividend income increased $305,000 as
interest income on loans increased $622,000 due to a higher average balance and interest income on investment securities declined by
$320,000 primarily due to lower yields on securities. The interest rate spread and net interest margin were 3.04% and 3.26%,
respectively, for the year ended December 31, 2009, compared to 2.95% and 3.14% for 2008. The improvement in the interest rate
spread was the result of a 60 basis points decrease in the average cost of interest-bearing liabilities that was partially offset by a 51
basis points decrease in the average yield on interest-earning assets.

Net interest income increased $7.4 million, or 25.9%, for the year ended December 31, 2008, compared to the prior year.
Interest expense decreased $7.1 million as declining market interest rates for certificates of deposit allowed us to reduce our interest
expense by $5.3 million. A $3.2 million decrease in interest expense on Federal Home Loan Bank advances was partially offset by an
increase in expense on reverse repurchase agreements and subordinated debt of $1.4 million. Interest and dividend income increased
$273,000 as interest income on loans increased $2.6 million due to portfolio growth and interest income on investment securities
declined by $2.4 million primarily due to a lower average balance of securities. The interest rate spread and net interest margin were .
2.95% and 3.14%, respectively, for the year ended December 31, 2008, compared to 2.25% and 2.48% for 2007. The improvement in
the interest rate spread was the result of a 66 basis point decrease in the average cost of interest-bearing liabilities and a four basis
point increase in the average yield on interest-earning assets. :

Interest and Dividend Income. Interest and dividend income increased $305,000 to $61:5 million for the year ended
December 31, 2009 from $61.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2008. An increase in interest income on loans offset a
decrease in interest income on investment securities. Interest income on loans increased $622,000, or 1.8%, to $35.8 million for the
year ended December 31, 2009 from $35.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2008, as our average balance of loans increased
$12.7 million, or 2.1%. Interest income on securities decreased $320,000, or 1.2%, to $25.6 million for the year ended December 31,
2009 from $25.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2008, as the average yicld on investments decreased 15 basis points.

Interest and dividend income increased $273,000 to $61.2 million for the year ended December 31; 2008 from $60.9 million for
the year ended December 31, 2007. An increase in interest income on loans offset a decrease in interest income on investment
securities. Interest income on loans increased $2.6 million, or 8.1%, to $35.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2008 from
$32.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2007, as our average balance of loans increased $40.7 million, or 7.2%. Our average
balance of loans increased despite our selling $43.0 million of 10-, 15- and 20-year fixed-rate residential mortgage loans in November
2007 as part of our efforts to manage interest rate risk. Interest income on securities decreased $2.4 million, or 8.4%, to $25.9 million
for the year ended December 31, 2008 from $28.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2007, as our average balance of
investment securities decreased $44.5 million, or 7.7%. In an effort to manage interest rate risk, we sold $21.7 million of fixed-rate
mortgage-backed securities in May 2007 and used the proceeds of the sales to repay borrowings. We sold these securities, which were
classified as held to maturity, without reclassifying the remainder of our mortgage-backed securities portfolio to available for sale, as
permitted by the Investments—Debt and Equity Securities topic of the FASB ASC as we had received a substantial portion (at least
85%) of the principal outstanding at the acquisition date due to prepayments or scheduled repayments in the securities sold. The
remaining reduction in our average securities portfolio was caused by principal repayments exceeding securities purchases. There
were no material changes in the rates we earned on loans or investment securities between the years.

Interest Expense. Interest expense decreased $5.3 million, or 20.8%, to $20.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2009
from $25.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2008. Interest expense on deposits decreased $4.4 million, or 23.7%, caused by a
$6.3 million or 50.9% decrease in interest expense on cettificates of deposit. The average balance of certificates of deposit decreased
by $65.9 million, or 16.3%, and the rates we paid on certificates of deposit decreased 128 basis points. In addition, interest expense on
Federal Home Loan Bank advances decreased $482,000, or 93.6%, and interest expense on other borrowings, primarily reverse
repurchase agreements, decreased by $389,000, or 6.3%.

Interest expense decreased $7.1 million, or 22.0%, to $25.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2008 from $32.4 million
for the year ended December 31, 2007. Interest expense on deposits decreased $5.3 million, or 22.4%, caused by a decrease in interest
expense on certificates of deposit of $5.8 million, or 31.7%. We were able to retain a significant portion of our certificates of deposit
during a period of declining market interest rates, as the rates we paid on certificates of deposit decreased 123 basis points. In addition,
interest expense on Federal Home Loan Bank advances decreased $3.2 million, or 86.1%, offsetting an increase in interest expense on
other borrowings, primarily reverse repurchase agreements, of $1.4 million, or 29.5%. We increased our balances of other borrowings
by $62.4 million, or 84.3%, to lengthen the term of our liabilities in an effort to reduce interest rate risk.
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Provision for Loan: Losses. Based on our analysis of the factors described in “— Allowance for Loan Losses,” we recorded
provisions for loan losses of $1.2 million, $149,000 and $25,000 for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively.
The provisions for loan losses reflected net chargeoffs of. $416,000, $18,000 and $25,000.for the years ended December 31, 2009,
2008 and 2007, respectively. The provisions recorded resulted in ratios of the allowance for loan losses to total loans of 0.28%, 0.14%
and 0.14% at December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively. Non-accrual loans totaled $1.0 million, $149,000 and $106,000 at
December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively. To the best of our knowledge, we have provided for all losses that are both probable
and reasonable to estimate at December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007

.. Non-Interest Income. The followmg table summarizes changes in non-lnterest income between the years ended December 31,
2009, 2008 and 2007. :

Years Ended December 31, k ) Change 2009/2008 Change 2008/2007 .
2009 2008 2007 $ Change % Change $ Change % Change
: ' (In thousands)
Service fees on loan and deposit _ ,

accounts....... s pareirenaes e 2611 % 2918 $ 2,729 § (307) (10.5% $ 189 6.9%
Income on bank-owned life o ‘ '

INSUTANCE ..o eeesaesenaees ~1,142 1,039 942 103 9.9% 97 10.3%
Other-than-temporary-impairment

loss on investments ........ccceeeeuerne (3,481) (2,483) — (998) 40.2% ~(2,483) —
Gain on sale of 1nvestment «.

SECUTIEIES ..iveevrieiiiovinreesrransadiaeaniss 266 146 731 . . 120 82.2% (585) (80.0)%
Gain (loss) on sale of loans ............... - 1,636 2 (1,062) - 1,634 - 81,700.0% 1,064 (100.2)%
Other....ivivreees el e © 331 551 536 = (220) (39.9% 15 2.8%

S Total v S $ 2505 $ 2173 $ 3876 $ 332 153% $ (1,703) 43.9%

During the year ended December 31, 2008, we recognized a loss of $2.5 million from an other-than-temporary impairment to
the carrying value of trust preferred securities in accordance with accounting pronouncements existing at that time. During the year
ended December 31,2009, we recognized an additional $1.0 million impairment charge with respect to our investments in trust
preferred securities, of which $3.5 million was a credit loss recorded through our income statement as a debit to non- -interest income,
and $2.5 million was recorded as an increase to other comprehensive loss. Gain on sale of investment securities decreased from the
year ended December 31, 2007 to the year ended December 31, 2008 due to the sale of $21.7 million of mortgage- -backed securities in
2007. As permitted by the Investments—Debt and Equity topic of the FASB ASC, these sales did not require us to reclassify our
remaining securities held to maturity as available for sale because we had already received a substantial portion (at least 85%) of the
principal outstanding at the acquisition date due to prepayments-or scheduled repayments. We also sold $14.8 million of securities in
2007 from our available-for-sale securities portfolio. We sold $9.7 million of available-for-sale mortgage-backed securities during the
year ended December 31, 2008 as well as $10.5 million of municipal bonds that were classified as held to maturity. Of these
municipal bonds, $5.5 million had experienced credit downgrades of two or more credit grades, thereby exhibiting a significant
decline in credit quality. The remaining bonds exhibited inherent credit risks because of the concerns of potential downgrades of both
the bond issuers and the bonds’ insurers. There were no securities classified as available for sale at December 31, 2009 and 2008. We
sold $85.2 million and $1.4 million of mortgage loans to reduce our interest rate risk during the years ended December 31, 2009 and
2008 and recognized gains of $1.6 million and $2,000, respectively. In 2007, we sold $43.0 million of mortgage loans as part of our
interest rate risk reduction plan and recognized a loss of $1.1 million.

Non-Interest Expense. The following table summarizes changes in non-interest expense between the years ended December 31,
2009, 2008 and 2007.

Years Ended December 31, Change 2009/2008 Change 2008/2007
2009 2008 2007 $ Change % Change $ Change % Change
(In thousands)
Salaries and employee benefits ............. $ 16449 $ 15430 $ 13,447 $ 1,019 6.6% $ 1,983 14.7%
OCCUPANCY .....ceovvirirrinririnnirnriseeieeenan, 4,492 4,291 3,990 201 4.7% 301 7.5%
Equipment .......c.c.coevvveninniiiiiniinninennns 2,967 2,866 2,858 101 3.5% 8 0.3%
Loss on extinguishment of debt............. 507 — — 507 — % — — %
Federal deposit insurance premiums ..... 1,747 1,079 548 668 61.9% 531 96.9%
(01117 JRUS PSSP OTSFTOTTRRN 3,383 3,337 3,204 46 1.4% 133 4.2%
Total.....eeerririeeeeee et $ 29545 $ 27003 $ 24,047 $ 2,542 94% $ 2,956 12.3%
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Salaries and employee benefits expense increased between 2009 and 2008 primarily due to a bank-wide budgeted salary.
increase of approximately 2.5%. In addition, we recognized $902,000 of expenses related to our ESOP plans that were partially offset
by a $576,000 decrease in pension plan expense. Federal deposit insurance premiums.increased by $668,000 as a result of a special
one-time premium imposed on all Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation insured financial institutions. In 2009, we also recognized a
$507,000 loss on extinguishment of debt when we paid off $24.7 million of subordlnated debentures and wrote off unamortlzed :
discounts related to the issuance of these debentures. : : o -

Salaries and employee benefits expense increased between 2008 and 2007 primarily because of a bank-wide budgeted salary
increase of approximately 3.50% and accruals for higher cash bonuses under our Executive Incentive Compensation Plan (which plan
is described in “Item 11. Executive Compensation —Executive Officer Compensation—Executive Incentive Compensation Plan”) and
to other senior officers at the Bank. Federal deposit insurance premiums increased due to higher insurance rates in 2008 and a one-
time credit of $363,000 that we recognized in 2007 resulting from the Federal Deposit Insurance Reform Act of 2005.

Income Tax Expense. Income taxes were $4.6 million for 2009, reﬂecting an effective tax rate of 34.9%, $3.8 million for 2008,
reflecting an effective tax rate of 34.5% and $2.6 million for 2007, reflecting an effective tax rate of 3 1.2%. The effective tax rate in
2007 was lower than the tax rates in 2009 and 2008 primarily due to the amount of income received from bank-6wned life insurance
and interest earned on municipal bonds, relative to the total pre-tax income for each year. Income received from bank-owned life
insurance is tax-free for both federal and state tax purposes, while interest earned on municipal bonds is tax free for federal tax
purposes.

N on-performmg and Problem Assets

When a residential mortgage loan or home. equity line of credit is 15 days past due, we attempt personal d1rect contact w1th the
borrower to determine when payment will be made. On the first day of the following month, we mail a letter reminding the borrower
of the delinquency, and will send an additional letter when a loan is 60 days or more past due. If necessary, subsequent late charges: -
are issued and the account will be monitored on @ regular basis thefeafter. By the 75 * day of delinquency, unless the borrower has
made arrangements to bring the loan current on its payments, we will refer the loan to.legal counsel to commence foreclosure
proceedings. Upon the recommendation of our Vice Pres1dent of Mortgage Loan Serv1c1ng, our Senror Vrce President of Spe01al
Credits can shorten these time frames : g ' -

Commermal business loans, commerc1a1 real estate loans and consumer. loans are generally handled in the same manner as
residential mortgage loans or home equity lines of credit. All commercial business loans that are 15 days past due are immediately
referred to our senior lending officer. In addition, we generate past due notices and attempt direct contact with a borrower when a
consumer loan is 10 days past due. Because of the nature of the collateral securing consumer loans, we may-commence:collection
procedures faster for consumer loans than for residential mortgage loans or home eq‘uity lines of credit. -

Loans are placed on non-accrual status when payment of pr1n01pa1 or interest is more than 90 days delmquent Loans are also
placed on non-accrual status if collection of principal or interest in full is in doubt. When loans are placed on a non-accrual status,
unpaid accrued interest is fully reversed, and further income is recognized only to the extent received. The loan may be returned to
accrual status if both prlnc1pal and interest payments are brought current and full payment of prrncrpal and interest is expected.
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Non-Performing Assets. The table below sets forth the amounts and categories of our non-performing assets at the dates
indicated. At December 31, 2009, 2008, 2007, 2006 and 2005, we had troubled debt restructurings (loans for which a portion of
interest or principal has been forgiven and loans modified at interest rates less than current market rates) of $3.0 million, $309,000, $0,
$0 and $0, respectively.

At December 31,
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
(Dollars in thousands)

Non-accrual loans:
Real estate loans:
First mortgage:

One- to four-family residential ..........iccoeeerrrericioeereeee oo $ 517 8 — $ 99 § 561 $ 104
Multi-family residential ........cc..cooeviiiiiilini e, — — — — —
Construction, commercial and other ...........ccocccereiervicinninniiinieciecen — — — — —
Home equity loans and lines of credit.........cccoveiinienicninininnnncics — 149 — 32 —
OHET JOANS ......veeevieiiietieceeeeesteree et s e e e esbeesteereeesetetesmetsseeesaesneenseanesameemereseninsens 3 — 7 — 4
Total NON-acCrual IOANS.........covveeveriierereerretre e et et e e seeemee e 520 149 106 593 108

Real estate owned:
Real estate loans:
First mortgage:

One- to four-family residential ..o, 159 131 — — —
Multi-family residential .........ccccoevviiviiiinininin — — — — —
Construction, commercial and Other ..........covvvvviieiiieiiiiiiiiieeeee e — — — — —
Home equity loans and lines of credit........cocoevvvviniiiiiinninininii e, — — — — —
Other LIOANS ..c...eiiiiiiiericc et s e eanee s — — — — —
Total real estate OWNEd .........cccoceeciiniiiiiiniiiiiii s 159 131 — — —

Total non-performing asSets .......c.ccvvrierrieriviinerieiies e 679 280 106 593 108

Loans delinquent 90 days or greater and still accruing interest:
Real estate loans:

First mortgage:
One- to four-family residential .........ccccoovvrvnincniiiinini — — — - —
Multi-family residential ........c...cocoocoiiiiiiiiii e — — — — —
Construction, commercial and Other ..........cccvvvvveeriieiiriiiiereee e eeecrieaeens — — — — —
Home equity loans and lines of credit ..o — — — — —
ONET OANS ..ceviiiiiii ittt eer e e e e e e e rivtreeeeesirbataeessessnsnsarsanaseessanansnaneeaees — — — — —
Total loans delinquent 90 days or greater and still accruing interest ........ — — — — —

Restructured loans still accruing interest:
Real estate loans:

First mortgage:
One- to four-family residential .........ccceeoreviiimeinciciiiie, 2,724 309 — — —
Multi-family residential ...........cccccooeriioiieiriinnin —_— — — — —
Construction, commercial and Other..........cccooeiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiieniieeieeeieeeeereeeeens — — — — —
Home equity loans and lines of credit ..o, — — — — —
Oher LIOANS . ...coiiiiiiiieie et et — — — — —
Total restructured loans still accruing interest .........cc.coccoiviniiiniiniiininnne, 2,724 309 — — —
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At December 31, » )
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

(Dollars in thousands)

Total non-performing assets, accruing loans delinquent for 90 days

or more and restructured loans still accruing interest .................... $ 3403 $ 589 $ 106 $ 593 $ 108
Ratios:
Non-performing loans to total 10ans.........cocveeviernenieenenneneninnenne, 0.09% 0.02% 0.02% 0.11% 0.02%
Non-performing assets to total aSSetS .......occvvecrviererereereerreseeniennnens 0.05% 0.02% 0.01% 0.05% 0.01%

For the year ended December 31, 2009, gross interest income that would have been recorded had our non-accruing loans been
current in accordance with their original terms was $21,000. We recognized $5,000 of interest income on such non-accruing loans on
a cash basis during the year.
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Delinquent Loans: The following table sets forth our loan delinquencies by type and by amount at the dates indicated. -

Loans Delinquent For. I )
60-89 Days .. 90 Days-and Over Total -
Number Amount Number- _ Amount - Number "~ Amount
(Dollars in thousands)
At December 31, 2009
Real estate loans:
First mortgage: « _
One- to four-family residential........cocoocereneiecencncc - 5 - 1.$ 274 . 1 $ 274
Multi-family residential ............ e — - — - R -
Construction, commercial and other ................. e — — L= R — —
Home equity loans and lines of credit.........ococveeeiveninnnnne . — - = - . = -
Other 10ans .........cveeemreeererereennnns prertine s s 1 1 4 3 5 4
Total 10anS.......oveeeemceererneresens 1 8 1 .5 % 277 6.% 278
At December 31, 2008
Real estate loans:
First mortgage: " : g : Lo o
One- to four-family residential..........cccccooervresinnnnan, o308 871 — % - .3 % 8N
Multi-family residential ............icoveeeneineiiniesininnn. - — - — B -—
Construction, commercial and other ........cccccceeceneen - ' — L= — L= —
Home equity loans and lines of credit.........ccoeveeeinencniivnes, L= — C= - — —
Other 10aNS.....ccvieeiiereeerteirr ettt aess e eerenbennais \ 1 3 — — 1 3
Total I0AMNS. ...veveieerereereseieereseesereesc e nereessesesaans 4 3 874 - 5 — 4 $§ 874
At December 31, 2007
Real estate loans:
. First mortgage: . . - : S A
One- to four-family residential...........ccoecerercesucnines - $ - 18 9 I $. 99
Multi-family residential ..........ccocreuerurereeirernrsrersenann, — - = — - —
Construction, commercial and Other ...............c.c.c.... - - .- - - =
Home equity loans and lines of credit..........ocooeveenncnnns 1 55 — — 1 55
Other 10ans .........iceceeeeeecenvinrrnenenns eiereiaeeeneanenenes e eaias 3 4 0 2 T 5 11
 TOMAL IOANS o evevcevrverevevevsevennenssmssasmsnsssssnsssssssssssssssssene | 4 $ 59 3§ 106 _ 7 $ 165
At December 31,2006
Real estate loans:
First mortgage:
One- to four-family residential........... rrrereseeseneenenrees 1 $ 99 2 $ . 561 3§ 660
Multi-family residential .........cocoemnimiiinnnienennninns v — = — — — —
_Construction, commercial and other.......ccc.cocevneee. — - - — — —
Home equity loans.and lines of credit.........ccooeneveneencscecs L - - 1 32 1 32
Other loans............. ieerererinaresssaaeasaneesasanen erteteseensbrrsaneeenrnraaeaans 1 3 —_ ppa— 1 3
Total 1oanS. ....oceceeeererereciienririsaessesnreressseneens reediesienin 2 $ 102 3% 593 : 5 8% 69
At December 31, 2005
Real estate loans:
First mortgage: ' '
One- to four-family residential..........ccoveeeieniennnc. —  $ — 13 104 13 104
Multi-family residential ........ocooereeeinesionniinninn — — —_ — o — .=
Construction, commercial and other ..........ccoceceenee - — — — = —
Home equity loans and lines of credit.........ccooveveencnnniinnn, — — — —. — —
OthEr 10ANS ......vevevevereverereeeseseesseseresestsesesesissessssasasssssssasasassssssnans 3 S8 2 4 5 12

TOtA] JOANS ... vveereeerereesesesereeereeessosssesesesssssessssasaensasees 3¢ 8 3% 108 6 $ 116
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Real Estate Owned. Real estate acquired by us as a result of foreclosure or by deed in lieu of foreclosure is classified as real
estate owned. When property is acquired it is recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of foreclosure less the cost to sell,
establishing a new cost basis. Estimated fair value generally represents the sale price a buyer would be willing to pay on the basis of
current market conditions, including normal terms from other financial institutions. Holding costs and declines in estimated fair
marketvalue result in charges to expense after acquisition. At December 31, 2009, 2008, 2007, 2006 and 2005 we had real estate
owned of $159,000, $131,000, $0, $0 and $0, respectively.

Classification of Assets. Our policies, consistent with regulatory guidelines, provide for the classification of Ioans and other
assets that are considered to be of lesser quality as substandard, doubtful, or loss assets. An asset is considered substandard if it is
inadequately protected by the current net worth and paying capacity of the obligor or of the collateral pledged, if any. Substandard
assets include those assets characterized by the distinct possibility that we will sustain some loss if the deficiencies are not corrected.
Assets classified as doubtful have all of the weaknesses inherent in those classified substandard with the added characteristic that the
weaknesses present make collection or liquidation in full, on the basis of currently existing facts, conditions and values, highly
questionable and improbable. Assets (or portions of assets) classified as loss are those considered uncollectible and of such little value
that their continuance as assets is not warranted. Assets that do not expose us to risk sufficient to warrant classification in one of the
aforementioned categories, but which possess potential weaknesses that deserve our close attention, are required to be designated as
special mention. As of December 31, 2009, we had no assets de51gnated as special mention.

We maintain an allowance for loan losses at an amount estimated to equal all credit losses incurred in our loan portfolio that are
both probable and reasonable to estimate at a balance sheet date. Our determination as to the classification of our assets and the
amount of our loss allowances is subject to review by our principal federal regulator, the Office of Thrift Supervision, which can
require that we establish additional loss allowances. We regularly review our asset portfolio to determine whether any-assets require
classification in accordance. with applicable regulations. On the basis of our.review of our assets at December 31, 2009, classified
assets consisted of substandard assets of $6.9 million, no doubtful assets and loss assets of $21. The classified assets total at
December 31, 2009 includes $269,000 of nonperforming Ioans, $3.5 million of trust preferred securities and $3.0 million of troubled
debt restructurrng

Allowance for Loan Losses

We provide for loan losses based upon the consistent application of our documented allowance for loan loss methodology. All
loan losses are charged to the allowance for loan losses and all recoveries are credited to it. Additions to the allowance for loan losses
are provided by charges to income based on various factors which, in our judgment, deserve current recoghition in estimating probable
losses. We regularly review the loan portfolio and make provisions for loan losses in order to maintain the allowance for loan losses in
accordance with GAAP. The allowance for loan losses consists primarily of two components:

(1)  specific allowances established for impaired loans (generally defined as loans dehnquent 90 days or greater) The amount
~ of impairment provided for as a specific allowance is represented by the deficiency, if any, between the estimated fair
value of the loan, or the loan’s observable market. price, if any, or the underlying collateral, if the loan is collateral
dependent, and the carrying value of the loan. Impaired loans for which the estimated fair value of the loan, or the loan’s
observable market price or the fair value of the underlying collateral, if the loan is collateral dependent, exceeds the
carrying value of the loan are not considered in establishing specific allowances for loan losses; and

(2)  general allowances established for loan losses on a portfolio basis for loans that do not meet the definition of impaired in
accordance with current accounting standards. The portfolio is grouped into similar risk characteristics, primarily loan
type, loan-to-value, if collateral dependent, and delinquency status. We apply an estimated 1oss rate to each loan group.
The loss rates applied are based upon our loss experience adjusted, as appropriate, for the environmental factors discussed
below. This evaluation is inherently subjective, as it requires material estimates that may be susceptible to significant
revisions based upon changes in economic and real estate market conditions. Actual loan losses may be significantly more
than the allowance for loan losses we have established, which could have a material negative effect on our financial
results.

The adjustments to historical loss experience are based on our evaluation of several qualitative and environmental factors,
including:

¢ changes in lending policies and procedures including changes in underwrltmg standards and collectlons chargeoff and
recovery practices; :

¢ changes in international, national, and local economic trends;
*  changes in the types of loans in the loan portfolio;
e changes in the experience and ability of i)ersennel in the'"mortgage loan origination and loan servicing departments;

*  changes in the number and amount of delinquent loans and classified assets;
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« changes in the type and volume of loans being originated;
»  changes in the value of underlying collateral for collateral dependent loans;
¢ changes in any concentration of credit; and

» external factors such as competmon legal and regulatory requirements on the level of estimated credit losses in the
existing loan portfolio.

In addition, if we have a limited loss experience for any segment of our portfolio, we may utilize the loan loss experience of
other financial institutions in the State of Hawaii. The unallocated allowance is established to provide for probable losses that have
been incurred as of the reporting date but are not reflected in the allocated allowance.

We evaluate the allowance for loan losses based upon the combined total of the specific and general components. Generally
when the loan portfolio increases, absent other factors, the allowance for loan loss methodology results in a higher dollar amount of
estimated probable losses than would be the case without the increase. Generally when the loan portfolio decreases, absent other
factors, the allowance for loan loss methodology results in a lower dollar amount of estimated probable losses than would be the case
without the decrease.

Commercial real estate loans generally have greater credit risks compared to one- to four-family residential mortgage loans, as
they typically involve larger loan balances concentrated with single borrowers or groups of related borrowers. In addition, the payment
experience on loans secured by income-producing properties typically depends on the successful operation of the related business and
thus may be subject to a greater extent to adverse conditions in the real estate market and in the general economy.

Construction loans generally have greater credit risk than traditional one- to four-family residential mortgage loans. The
repayment of these loans depends upon the sale of the property to third parties or the availability of permanent financing upon
completion of all improvements. In the event we make a loan on property that is not yet approved for the planned development, there
is the risk that approvals will not be granted or will be delayed. These events may adversely affect the borrower and the collateral
value of the property. Construction loans also expose us to the risk that improvements will not be completed on time in accordance
with specifications and projected costs. In addition, the ultimate sale or rental of the property may not occur as anticipated. An
increase in the balances or concentration of these loans generally results in an increase to our allowance for loan losses.

We evaluate the loan portfolio on a quarterly basis and the allowance is adjusted accordingly. While we use the best information
available to make evaluations, future adjustments to the allowance may be necessary if conditions differ substantially from the
information used in making the evaluations. In addition, as an integral part of their examination process, the Office of Thrift
Supervision will periodically review the allowance for loan losses. The Office of Thrift Supervision may require us to recognize
additions to the allowance based on their analysis of information available to them at the time of their examination.
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The following table sets forth activity in our allowance for loan losses for the years indicated.

Balance at beginning of period............... et

Charge-offs:
Real estate loans:
First mortgage:

One- to four-family residential..................
Multi-family residential ..........cccocvvererennnne

.. Construction, commercial and other .........

Home equity loans and lines of credit............ e
Other 10anSs ...

Recoveries:
Real estate loans:
First mortgage:

One- to four-family residential..................
Multi-family residential ............................
Construction, commercial and other .........

Home equity loans and lines of credit.................
Other LOANS ....coeovevveirieeieieeriree et e

Total recoveries........cccovvveunnin everrrrerree—..

Net (charge-offs) reCOVeries. ....covvvminricrniivereieennrni,
Provision (recovery to allowance) for loan losses........

Balance at end of year...........icoiinecioreeeceee e

Ratios: ,

.............

Net charge-offs (recoveries) to average loans outstanding.......
Allowance for loan losses to non-performing loans at end of

At or For the Years Ended December 31,

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
899 768 $ 768 $ 770 $ 750
268 i _ — _
149 — — _ 5

9 23 27 10 5
426 23 27 10 10
10 5 2 2 45
10 5 2 2 45
(416) (18) (25) (8) 35

1,198 149 25 6 (15)

1,681 899 $ 768 $ 768 $ 770
0.07% 000% - 0.00% 0.00% (0.01)%

32327%  60336%  724.53%  12951%  712.96%
0.28% 0.14% 0.14% 0.14% 0.15%
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Allocation of Allowance for Loan Losses. The following tables set forth the allowance for loan losses allocated by loan
category and the percent of loans in each category to total loans at the dates indicated. The allowance for loan losses allocated to each
category is not necessarily indicative of future losses in any particular category and does not restrict the use of the allowance to absorb
losses in other categories. We have reduced the amount of the unallocated portion of the allowance for loan losses in recent years as a
result of refinements to our allowance for loan loss methodology. The allowance for loan losses for each category is affected by
external factors affecting the national and Hawaii economies, specific industries and sectors and interest rates. In prior years, the effect

of these external factors was reflected in the unallocated category of the allowance for loan losses; however, beginning in 2007 these
factors are largely reflected in the allowance for loan losses allocated to each specific loan category.

At December 31,
2009 2008 2007
Percent of Percent of Percent of
Loans in Each Loans in Each Loans in Each
Allowance for Category to Allowance for Category to Allowance for Category to
Loan Losses Total Loans Loan Losses Total Loans Loan Losses Total Loans
(Dollars in thousands)
Real estate loans:
First mortgage:
One- to four-
family
residential ...... $ 536 91.25% $ 53 90.52% $ 17 90.21%
Multi-family
residential ...... 14 0.63 5 0.58 — 0.80
Construction,
commercial
and other........ 183 3.41 171 3.28 169 3.04
Home equity loans and
lines of credit........... 573 3.58 405 4.67 260 478
Other 10ans ........ccceeevverecenncs 219 1.13 222 0.95 238 1.17
Total allocated
allowance ................ 1,525 100.00 856 100.00 684 100.00
Unallocated...........ccccvveeennnen. 156 — 43 — 84 —
Total....coooeieeeeees $ 1,681 100.00% $ 899 100.00% $ 768 100.00%
At December 31,
2006 2005
Percent of Percent of
Loans in Each Loans in Each
Allowance for Category to Allowance for Category to
Loan Losses Total Loans Loan Losses Total Loans
(Dollars in thousands)
Real estate loans:
First mortgage:
One- to four-family residential............ $ 17 93.26% $ 17 95.69%
Multi-family residential ............ce.c..... — 0.90 — 0.91
Construction, commercial and other ... 109 2.67 114 1.65
Home equity loans and lines of credit .......... 221 2.30 134 1.13
Other J0anS ...cvve e eere et 174 0.87 124 0.62
Total allocated allowance ...........cceeeveeeeenne 521 100.00 389 100.00
Unallocated .......oceveiveiviiieeiriiereeercecerceeeceee e 247 — 381 —
TOtal oo $ 768 100.00% $ 770 100.00%
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Management of Market Risk

General . Our most significant form of market risk is interest rate risk because, as a financial institution, the majority of our
assets and liabilities are sensitive to changes in interest rates. Therefore, a principal part of our operations is to manage interest rate
risk and limit the exposure of our net interest income to changes in market interest rates. Our Board of Directors has established an
Asset/Liability Management Committee, which is responsible for evaluating the interest rate risk inherent in our assets and liabilities,
for determining the level of risk that is appropriate, given our business strategy, operating environment, capital, liquidity and
performance objectives, and for managing this risk consistent with the guidelines approved by the Board of Directors.

Because we have historically operated as a traditional thrift institution, the significant majority of our assets consist of long-
term, fixed-rate residential mortgage loans and mortgage backed securities, which we have funded primarily with checking and
savings accounts and short-term borrowings. In addition, there is little demand for adjustable-rate mortgage loans in the Hawaii
market area. This has resulted in our being particularly vulnerable to increases in interest rates, as our interest-bearing liabilities
mature or reprice more quickly than our interest-earning assets.

In 2007, our Board of Directors adopted an Interest Rate Risk Reduction Plan to assist us in reversing this trend and the negative
effect on our net income. We hired an outside third-party consultant to assist us in formulating strategies to restructure our balance
sheet and reduce our interest rate risk. Following our review of the consultant’s suggestions, we have implemented the following
strategies to manage our interest rate risk:

*  Selling $43.0 million of 10-, 15- and 20-year fixed-rate mortgage loans in November 2007 and using the net proceeds of
the loan sales to repay short-term borrowings;

*  Extending the maturity of our liabilities by obtaining $55.2 million of long-term, fixed-rate reverse repurchase agreements
at interest rates that were approximately 21 basis points lower than the rates paid on then-available Federal Home Loan
Bank advances;

*  Using cash generated from repayments on fixed-rate mortgage-backed securities to fund savings withdrawals; and

¢ Selling $21.7 million of fixed-rate mortgage-backed securities in May 2007 classified as held to maturity where we had
already received a substantial portion (at least 85%) of the principal outstanding at the acquisition date due to prepayments
or scheduled repayments (as permitted by the Investments —Debt and Equity Securities topic of the FASB ASC) and
using the net proceeds of the sales to repay short-term borrowings.

We continued our efforts to reduce interest rate risk in 2008 by obtaining an additional $60.0 million of long-term, fixed-rate
reverse repurchase agreements and through the purchase of $36.8 million of shorter-duration mortgage-backed securities. In 2009, we
obtained an additional $15.0 million of long-term, fixed-rate reverse repurchase agreements and purchased $91.4 million of shorter-
duration mortgage-backed securities. In 2009 we also sold $85.2 million of fixed-rate mortgage loan originations and raised $122.3
million of capital in a stock conversion to reduce our interest rate risk. In addition, we may utilize the following strategies to further
reduce our interest rate risk:

*  Continuing our efforts to increase our personal and business checking accounts, which are less rate-sensitive than
certificates of deposit and which provide us with a stable, low-cost source of funds;

*  Continuing to repay short-term borrowings;
¢ Purchasing mortgage-backed securities with shorter durations; and

*  Subject to the maintenance of our credit quality standards, originating commercial loans and home equity lines of credit,
which have adjustable interest rates and shorter average lives than first mortgage loans.

Our policies do not permit hedging activities, such as engaging in futures, options or swap transactions, or investing in high-risk
mortgage derivatives, such as collateralized mortgage obligation residual interests, real estate mortgage investment conduit residual
interests or stripped mortgage-backed securities. We have no current intention to sell additional loans classified as held for investment
at this time.

Net Portfolio Value. The Office of Thrift Supervision requires the computation of amounts by which the difference between the
present value of an institution’s assets and liabilities (the institution’s net portfolio value or “NPV”) would change in the event of a
range of assumed changes in market interest rates. The Office of Thrift Supervision provides all institutions that file a Consolidated
Maturity/Rate Schedule as a part of their quarterly Thrift Financial Report with a report that measures the sensitivity of net portfolio
value. The Office of Thrift Supervision simulation model uses a discounted cash flow analysis and an option-based pricing approach
to measure the interest rate sensitivity of net portfolio value. Historically, the Office of Thrift Supervision model estimated the
economic value of each type of asset, liability and off-balance sheet contract using the current interest rate yield curve with
instantaneous increases or decreases of 100 to 300 basis points in 100 basis point increments. A basis point equals one-hundredth of
one percent, and 100 basis points equals one percent. An increase in interest rates from 3% to 4% would mean, for example, a 100
basis point increase in the “Change in Interest Rates” column below. Given the current relatively low level of market interest rates, an
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NPV calculation for an interest rate decrease of greater than 100 basis points has not been prepared. The Office of Thrift Supervision
provides us with the results of the interest rate sensitivity model, which is based on information we provide to the Office of Thrift
Supervision to estimate the sensitivity of our net portfolio value.

The table below sets forth, as of December 31, 2009, the Office of Thrift Supervision’s calculation of the estimated changes in
our net portfolio value that would result from the designated instantaneous changes in the interest rate yield curve. Computations of
prospective effects of hypothetical interest rate changes are based on numerous assumptions, including relative levels of market
interest rates, loan prepayments and deposit decay, and should not be relied upon as indicative of actual results.

Increase
‘(Decrease) in
Estimated NPV Ratio as a NPV Ratio as a
Change in Increase Percent of Percent of
Interest Rates Estimated NPV (Decrease) in Percentage Present Value Present value of
(bp) (1) (2) NPV Change in NPV of Assets (3)(4) Assets (3)(4)
+300 $ 149514 $ (124,965) (45.53)% 11.10% (7.43)%
+200 $ 196,887 % (77,592) 28.27)% 14.09% 4.44)%
+100 $ 238,560 $ (35,919) (13.09)% 16.54% ; (1.99)%
0 $ 274,479 — — 18.53% —
(100) $ 294859 $ 20,380 7.42% 19.59% 1.06%

(1) Assumes an instantaneous uniform change in interest rates at all maturities.

(2) NPV is the difference between the present value of an institution’s assets and liabilities.

(3) Present value of assets represents the discounted present value of incoming cash flows on interest-earning assets.
(4) NPV Ratio represents NPV divided by the present value of assets.

"The table above indicates that at December 31, 2009, in the event of a 200 basis point increase in interest rates, we would
experience a 28.3% decrease in net portfolio value. In the event of a 100 basis point decrease in interest rates, we would experience a
7.4% increase in net portfolio value. ‘

Tn addition to the Office of Thrift Supervision’s calculations with respect to the effects of changes in interest rates on net
portfolio value, we prepare our own internal calculations, which utilizes a single interest rate scenario and prepayment assumption in
calculating the market value of fixed- and adjustable-rate loans (compared to the Office of Thrift Supervision model, which uses an

option-based pricing methodology). Our model also calculates the average life and value for core deposit intangibles that is based on a
core deposit study we completed in 2009, whereas the Office of Thrift Supervision model uses a nationwide study to estimate the
average life and value for core deposit intangibles. The following table presents our internal calculations of the estimated changes in
our net portfolio value as of December 31, 2009 that would result from the designated instantaneous changes in the interest rate yield
curve.

Increase
(Decrease) in
Estimated NPV Ratio as a NPV Ratio as a
Change in Increase Percent of Percent of
Interest Rates Estimated NPV (Decrease) in Percentage Present Value Present value of
(bp) (1) (2) NPV Change in NPV of Assets (3)(4) Assets (3)(4)
+300 $ 194501 % (77,724) - (28.55)% 14.00% (4.42)%
+200 $ 233332 $ (38,893) (14.29% 16.30% (2.12)%
+100 $ 260,782  $ (11,443) 4.20)% : 17.83% (0.59)%
-0 $ 272,225 — ' — o 18.42% T =
(100) $ 260,931 $ : (11,294) " (4.15)% 17.74% (0.68)%

(1)  Assumes an instantancous uniform change in interest rates at all maturities.

(2) NPV is the difference between the present value of an institution’s assets and liabilities.

(3) Present value of assets represents the discounted present value of incoming cash flows on interest- -earning assets.
(4) NPV Ratio represents NPV divided by the present value of assets.

Certain shortcomings are inherent in the methodologies used in determining interest rate risk through changes in net portfolio
value. Modeling changes in net portfolio value requires making certain assumptions that may or may not reflect the manner in which
actual yields and costs respond to changes in market interest rates. In this regard, the net portfolio value tables presented assume that
the composition of our interest-sensitive assets and liabilities existing at the beginning of a period remains constant over the period
being measured and assume that a particular change in interest rates is reflected uniformly across the yield curve regardless of the
duration or repricing of specific assets and liabilities. Accordingly, although the net portfolio value tables provide an indication of our
interest rate risk exposure at a particular point in time, such measurements are not intended to and do not provide a precise forecast of
the effect of changes in market interest rates on our net interest income and will differ from actual results.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

Liquidity is the ability to meet current and future financial obligations. Our primary sources of funds consist of deposit inflows,
cash balances at the Federal Reserve Bank, loan repayments, advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank of Seattle, reverse
repurchase agreements, maturities and principal repayments on held-to-maturity and available-for-sale securities and the sale of
available-for-sale securities. While maturities and scheduled amortization of loans and securities are predictable sources of funds,
deposit flows and mortgage prepayments are greatly influenced by general interest rates, economic conditions and competition. We
have established an Asset/Liability Management Committee, consisting of our President and Chief Executive Officer, our Vice
Chairman and Co-Chief Operating Officer, our Senior Vice President and Treasurer and our Vice President and Controller, which is
responsible for establishing and monitoring our liquidity targets and strategies in order to ensure that sufficient liquidity exists for
meeting the borrowing needs and deposit withdrawals of our customers as well as unanticipated contingencies. We believe that we
have enough sources of liquidity to satisfy our short- and long-term liquidity needs as of December 31, 2009.

We regularly monitor and adjust our investments in liquid assets based upon our assessment of:
(i) expected loan demand; '

(ii) expected deposit flows and borrowing maturities;

(iii) yields available on interest-earning deposits and securities; and

(iv) the objectives of our asset/liability management program.

Excess liquid assets are invested generally in interest-earning deposits or short-term securities and may also be used to pay off
short-term borrowings.

Our most liquid asset is cash. The level of this asset is dependent on our operating, financing, lending and investing activities
during any given period. At December 31, 2009, cash and cash equivalents totaled $136.0 million. On that date, we had no Federal
Home Loan Bank advances outstanding and $130.2 million in reverse repurchase agreements outstanding, with the ability to borrow
an additional $339.1 million under Federal Home Loan Bank advances.

Our cash flows are derived from operating activities, investing activities and financing activities as reported in our Consolidated
Statements of Cash Flows included in our Consolidated Financial Statements.

At December 31, 2009, we had $10.1 million in loan commitments outstanding, all of which were for fixed-rate loans. In
addition to commitments to originate loans, we had $16.4 million in unused lines of credit to borrowers. Certificates of deposit due
within one year of December 31, 2009 totaled $207.7 million, or 20.5% of total deposits. If these deposits do not remain with us, we -
may be required to seck other sources of funds, including loan sales, brokered deposits, reverse repurchase agreements and Federal
Home Loan Bank advances. Depending on market conditions, we may be required to pay higher rates on such deposits or other
borrowings than we currently pay on the certificates of deposit due on or before December 31, 2010. We believe, however, based on
past experience that a portion of such deposits will remain with us. We have the ability to attract and retain deposits by adjusting the
interest rates offered.

Our primary investing activity is originating loans and purchasing mortgage-backed securities. During the years ended
December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, we originated $189.2 million, $149.0 million and $114.7 million of loans, respectively. During
these years, we purchased $202.5 million, $62.8 million and $14.9 million of securities, respectively.

Financing activities consist primarily of activity in deposit accounts and Federal Home Loan Bank advances. We experienced a
net increase in deposits of $90.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2009 compared to a net increase in total deposits of $31.6
million for the year ended December 31, 2008. Deposit flows are affected by the overall level of interest rates, the interest rates and
products offered by us and our local competitors, and by other factors.

Liquidity management is both a daily and long-term function of business management. If we require funds beyond our ability to
generate them internally, borrowing agreements exist with the Federal Home Loan Bank of Seattle, which provide an additional
source of funds. We also utilize securities sold under agreements to repurchase as another borrowing source. Federal Home Loan
Bank advances decreased by $35.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2009, compared to a decrease of $36.2 million for the
year ended December 31, 2008. At December 31, 2009, we had the ability to borrow up to an additional $339.1 million from the
Federal Home Loan Bank of Seattle. Securities sold under agreements to repurchase increased by $15.0 million for the year ended
December 31, 2009, compared to an increase of $60.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2008.
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Territorial Savings Bank is subject to various regulatory capital requirements, including a risk-based capital measure. The risk-
based capital guidelines include both a definition of capital and a framework for calculating risk-weighted assets by assigning balance
sheet assets and off-balance sheet items to broad risk categories. At December 31, 2009, Territorial Savings Bank exceeded all
regulatory capital requirements. Territorial Savings Bank is considered “well capitalized” under regulatory guidelines. See Note 21 of
the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

The net proceeds from the stock offering significantly increased our liquidity and capital resources. Over time, the initial level
of liquidity will be reduced as net proceeds from the stock offering are used for general corporate purposes, including the funding of
loans. Our financial condition and results of operations will be enhanced by the net proceeds from the stock offering, resulting in
increased net interest-earning assets and net interest income. However, due to the increase in equity resulting from the net proceeds
raised in the stock offering, our return on equity will be adversely affected following the stock offering.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements and Aggregate Contractual Obligations

Commitments. As a financial services provider, we routinely are a party to various financial instruments with off-balance-sheet
risks, such as commitments to extend credit and unused lines of credit. While these contractual obligations represent our potential
future cash requirements, a significant portion of commitments to extend credit may expire without being drawn upon. Such
commitments are subject to the same credit policies and approval process accorded to loans we make. In addition, we enter into
commitments to sell mortgage loans. For additional information, see Note 20 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Contractual Obligations. In the ordinary course of our operations, we enter into certain contractual obligations..Such
obligations include operating leases for premises and equipment, agreements with respect to borrowed funds and deposit liabilities and
agreements with respect to investments.

The following table summarizes our significant fixed and determinable contractual obligations and other funding needs by
payment date at December 31, 2009. The payment amounts represent those amounts due to the recipient and do not include any
unamortized premiums or discounts or other similar carrying amount adjustments.

Payments Due by Period
More than More than
One year one year to three years to More than
Contractual Obligations or less three years five years five years Total
(In thousands)

Long-term debt .....c.ccoccrieerciiniiiiiiiiccree e $ 25000 $ 72,200 $ 33,000 $ — $ 130,200
Operating leases........oceeviiiiriiiiiiinie i 2,165 3,981 2,116 2,230 10,492
Capitalized 1eases..........ccocorreeiiniiiiiiiiieieeee e — — — — —
Purchase obligations .........cccovviiiriniicniininiiiiceeeee e, 2,420 3,921 3,559 — 9,900
Certificates of dePOSIt.....ccceevverriverericicriiiiiii e 207,715 28,458 18,253 — 254,426
Other long-term liabilities........cccoevveiricreciiiiiiiinireieeeeeae — — — — —

TOLAL .o n e et $ 237300 $ 108,560 $ 56,928 $ 2,230 $ 405,018
Commitments to eXtend Credit........oovviveivereereeereeiereeceeeeeneens $ 10,135 $ - 3 - $ — $ 10,135

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2009, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued the FASB Accounting Standards Codification
(“ASC”). The Codification supersedes all previously existing, non-SEC accounting and reporting standards and becomes the source of
authoritative U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) to be applied by nongovernmental entities. The Codification
primarily impacts the way GAAP is referenced in financial statements. The Company adopted the Codification on September 30, 2009
and such adoption did not have any impact on its consolidated financial statements.

In June 2009, the FASB amended the Transfers and Servicing topic of the FASB ASC. The amendment seeks to improve the
usefulness of the information a company provides about a transfer of financial assets, the effects of the transfer on its financial
position, performance and cash flows, and its continuing involvement in the transferred financial assets. The amendment is effective
as of the beginning of the first annual reporting period that ends after November 15, 2009. The Company does not expect the adoption
of this amendment to have a significant impact on its consolidated financial statements.
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In June 2009, the FASB amended the Consolidation topic of the FASB ASC. The amendment seeks to improve financial
reporting by enterprises involved with variable interest entities and also addresses the effects on consolidations of the June 2009
amendment to the Transfers and Servicing topic of the FASB ASC. The amendment is effective as of the beginning of the first annual:
reporting period that ends after November 15, 2009. The Company does not expect the adoption of this amendment to have any
impact on its consolidated financial statements.

In January 2010, the FASB amended the Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures topic of the FASB ASC. The amendment
requires disclosures about the significant transfers in and out of Level 1 and Level 2 fair value measurements and the reasons for the
transfers, and requires the reconciliation of activity in Level 3 fair value measurements be made on a gross basis. The amendment also’
clarifies the level of disaggregation required in disclosures and the valuation techniques and inputs used to measure fair value for both
recurring and non-recurring fair value measurements for Level 2 or Level 3 items. The part of the amendment related to the
reconciliation of Level 3 activity is effective for interim and annual periods beginning after December 15, 2010. The remaining parts
of the amendment are effective for interim and annual periods beginning after December 15, 2009. The Company does not expect the
adoption of this amendment to have a significant impact on its consolidated financial statements.

Impact of Inflation and Changing Prices

Our consolidated financial statements and related notes have been prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP. U.S. GAAP
generally requires the measurement of financial position and operating results in terms of historical dollars without consideration of
changes in the relative purchasing power of money over time due to inflation. The impact of inflation is reflected in the increased cost
of our operations. Unlike industrial companies, our assets and liabilities are primarily monetary in nature. As a result, changes in
market interest rates have a greater impact on performance than the effects of inflation. ‘

ITEM 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Information required by this item is included in “ITEM 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and .
Results of Operation,” above. :

ITEM 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm -

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Territorial Bancorp Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Territorial Bancorp Inc. as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, and
the related consolidated statements of income, stockholders’ equity and comprehensive income, and cash flows for each of the years in
the three-year period ended December 31, 2009. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Territorial Bancorp and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for
each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2009, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

/s/ KPMG LLP

Honolulu, Hawaii
March 31, 2010
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TERRITORIAL BANCORP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Balance Sheets ' -
(Dollars in thousands, except share data)

Assets

Cash and cash qUIVALENLS .......c.cccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiicrc e e bkt
Investment securities held to maturity, at amortized cost (fair value of $606,269 and $535,590 at

December 31, 2009 and 2008, reSPECIIVELY) ..ccverrrriiiriiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii st ss e
Federal Home Loan Bank StOCK, at COSE.......coiiiiiiiiiiiniiiiiiiiiiiis et
Loans held fOr SAlE ........ccociiiiiiiiiiiri e e e
LOANS TECEIVADIE, TNEL ...ciiviviriieeieeeetire e e e e ettt e e s eesabeeereeeeee s s areaese s seabbeaaseaeeeassansanne s ranaaesssssesesnnnns
ACCTUEA INLETESE TECEIVADIE .......v.vvivoieseeee et se e s s s st s e s e ees o necs
Premises and eqUIPIMENE, NEL.......c..coevietiieiieirieieiieieite sttt s e st e r e es s b s esn s e aaasaasnassenne
Real State OWNE ......covoviviiiiiiireiii sttt SRR

Bank-0Wned LIfe INSUTATICE ...oiocoveveiiiiiiiiiieeeieeieeieeeeeeee e eeiirtressetaseesesesssareeessasssssssstsaaaeiessasemnnssoennnsssesessess :

Prepaid expenses and OthEr ASSELS..........cccciuiiiiiiuiniiiiiiet ettt aa st e

TOAL ASSEES. . vaverereeeiieeeeeeeteieeeeeteittereeeeesseasnseressieeeasasssssabaaasseeiasssnsestessasasnansenaneasesssasomnmnareresaeses

Liabilities:
DEPOSILS ...eveeeeerranireiicriiiii ittt teeereereeteebe s ne e aree st e s ne st e tesbseaean s
Advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank ........c.cccoceviiiiiinniiiininiieiciciee s,
Securities sold under agreements tO FEPUICHASE .......coovvviiiiiiiriiiiiin it se e
SUbOTAINALEA AEDEITUIES ...eeveveeiieieeieeieeice ettt s ettt esae s s ae s b s tb e as e be e s reenen s
Accounts payable and aCCrUEd EXPEIISES .....covevirvirririeceiiririiitiretere s esee e etse s be e s esa s sesressaessens
Current income taxes PAYADIC ......coccevuieiiiieriiiciiiii e
Deferred income taxes Payable ........coeooveeieaiiiiiiniiiiiiiiiii e e
Advance payments by borrowers for taxes and INSUTANCE..........ocvoveeeiinieiieiiticeeece e

Total HADIITIES vvvivvivieiiiereiei et e e ce e rvrreeeee e e eancnnaneeesd eeeeseiessesiveressnnnrsnannnnsnnnnnreieeanes

Commitments and CONtINZENCIES ....cc.eevveererrececeiiciiiiciiii e e

Stockholders’ Equity:

Preferred stock, $.01 par value; authorized 50,000,000 shares, no shares issued or outstanding....

Common stock, $.01 par value; authorized 100,000,000 shares, issued and outstanding
12,233,125 and O shadres at December 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008.............ccoccvvinninennnn.

Additional paid-in capital...........cc.ciiiiiiiiionii i e e e

Unearned ESOP shares.........ccoocveciniiniinniiiniens e eerterne et eeceete e ke e beeee e ane e et e s am e e se b e s e na e foanrenes

Retained EarMings ..uioiiueeiereiiereeeieeesieie ettt st sa e ene e s et e st n Srae e e st

Accumulated other cOMPrehensiVe 1SS ....co.cvuiviriiiiiiiiiii it

Total stockhOlders” EqUILY.....c.ceveerieiiirrerecciii e e ans
Total liabilities and stockholders’ eqUity........cccccoeveiiiniiniiiniinniiiniecice i, eeeeeens

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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2009 2008
135953 $ 11216
598,394 . 527,767
12,348 12,348
1,084 -
597,700 633,160
4,781 4,787
4,495 4,444
159 131
28,249 27,107
6,449 3,486
1,389,612 $ 1,224,446
1014668 $ 923914
- 35,791
130,200 115,200
— 24221
18,837 18,634
670 963
2,661 3,228
2,905 3,114
1,169,941 1,125,065
122 -
118,823 —
(9,297) —
111,082 100,897
- (1,059) (1,516)
219,671 99381
1,389,612 $ 1,224,446




TERRITORIAL BANCORP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Income
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

2009 2008 2007
Interest and dividend income:
TNVESUMIENE SECUITLIES 1.vveivieiieeieeie ittt eeeee et e eeeee s teeesaeesseeesesssenenseesnsessssesssessseress $ 25,601 25,809 27,908
Tax-exempt iNVESTMENT SECUITHES .......ceceeiririrreriietereeceteeeteeebereseee e e sseseesialrteteseereeoes — 112 392
Dividends on Federal Home Loan Bank StOCK ..........ceceereevueeeeeeeeeeeeeessereeesseeesesseesessinnan — 117 74
LLOGIS .o ettt ettt s ne s et S et e ee e e e e ere et esae e eeraeereaen e » 35,775 35,153 32,514
Other INVESLMENLS . ......iiviiiieeieeeeierc et sttt eeae et esee e ee e seeeeseereesaeseeseessasessesseesseeserseness 149 29 59
Total interest and dividend INCOMIE .......covereeeeeeeeees e eeeeeeeeeeeee e eeese e, 61,525 61,220 60,947
Interest expense:
DIEPOSIES ...ttt ettt et et sttt s et ettt et e st e et et e e eeeeeeesereeesaeerreereneeeenson 14,129 18,521 23,863
Advances from the Federal Home Loan BanK .......cooovovueeeooeeee et oo eeeesesens : 33 515 3,709
Securities sold under agreements t0 TEPUICRASE ..........ccoiveviieeeieeeieeieee e 5,008 4,486 2,574
Subordinated debentures and other DOITOWINGS ........covceieeririeriiiereirecte e 814 1,725 2,222
TOtAl INTEIESE EXPEIISE ...ovvvivieeeeiirece ettt st ettt seeeaeseee st e eeeeeeseeeae s eseeeanean 19,984 25,247 32,368
NEt INTETESE INCOITIC «.evvrivviieieeeeesieeteereseteeeeeeese st eeseeeeeseeeeeereeeresssssessesssessseeessseons 41,541 35,973 28,579
Provision fOT 10AN JOSSES ...vivuiiuieieieieeeceeeecceccteee ettt s e e s v e e eae e eees e e esesssssassesasseensa 1,198 149 25
Net interest income after provision for 10an 10SSES........ccoccvivevvec oo v 40,343 35,824 28,554
Noninterest income:
Other-than-temporary impairmMent IOSSES ..........oviiveereereiiereiveeeeseeeeeeseeeeseeeeseseeeseeeeesessans (3,481) (2,483) —
Service fees on 1oan and depPoSit ACCOUNLS...........couiiieeiieieeireeeeeteetereeesee e e eeeeeereeesieeeeens 2,611 2,918 2,729
Income on bank-owned Life INSUTANCE........c.cooouiieiiieeieieeeeeeee e s e seseeesesesesee e 1,142~ 1,039 942
Gain on sale of INVESIMENt SECULIHES ......covevvreverereirivereeeeeeiere et enes 266 146 731
Gain (1055) 011 SAIE OF JOANS .....evivieieiiiciieiicticte ettt e se et eeeseneen 1,636 2 (1,062)
ORET .ttt et b ettt e et e et e st et e st e eteen e et e ereateenee s eneeans 331 551 536
Total noninterest inCOMe....................... e teirerererenta . —aaaeaesesesesieitisitraeaaaereeeereteaaes 2,505 2,173 3,876
Noninterest expense: ‘ ‘ :
Salaries and employee BEnefits ...........ccoerirenrinierneeresere e, 16,449, 15,430 13,447
OCCUPANCY ..ottt et e 4,492 4,291 3,990
BQUIPIMENT ..ottt bt a e en e 2,967 - 2,866 2,858
Loss on extinguishment 0f debl...........c.cciivieiiiiiieiieecet et sees 507 — —
Federal deposit inSUrance PremiUIms ........ccuovvivieeeeereeeeieeeteteseeeee et eeeeseeseeseeteseraneaeas 1,747 1,079 548
Other general and adminiStrative EXPENSES .......ccveierererererivienerseeereresereeese et ssssessenens ‘ 3,383 3,337 3,204
Total NONINLETESE EXPEIISE 1..vivvireeeeeeriereeeeete vttt eeteere et eeesseense s eneereseeseesaesesseneans 29,545 27,003 24,047
INCOmME DEfOre INCOME LAKES ....vvieeiieiii et e ee e e s e e sees e e eeeseessnneentens - 13,303 10,994 8,383
TTICOIIE TAXES oo vereeee e ee e ee e eeeee e e e e e e e e e e s oo e e e eeee oo 4,639 3,794 2,615
NEEICOMIC ... rvvveoeveeeeeeeeee e sees e s eee e ees e ereseen e e teeseeeseeneenee . $ 8,664 7,200 5,768
Basic earnings Per SNATE (1) ...c.oociiciiiriiei ettt et ettt e e e et e e e e e s e e eeeeesesssesseeeeeenes $ 77 N/A N/A
Basic weighted average shares OutStanding ...........oceviviuieeeceeeceeeieiereiieecceeeece e s 11,279,716 N/A N/A

(1)  Calculated from the effective date of July 10, 2009 to the period end

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

57



TERRITORIAL BANCORP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity
and Comprehensive Income
(Dollars in thousands, except share data)

Accumulated
Additional Unearned other Total
Common Paid-in ESOP Retained comprehensive Stockholders’
Stock Capital Shares earnings income (loss) Equity
Balances at December 31, 2000 ........ccccevvviiiniieniiiiieiannnnnn. $ — — — 87,935 (1,106) 86,829
Comprehensive income: ‘
INEL IICOMIE - evveeieiceeeeieeeeeireereeeeeeesenenreereeeeeennnanresaaees 5,768 — 5,768
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax: .....cc.coceceevenee :
Retirement benefit plans:.........cocovvvieienininniencn
Net losses arising during the period, net of tax
benefits of $121..cccveviviiiiiiiiiie (183) (183)
Less: Amortization of prior service credit and
net losses recognized during the period in net .
periodic benefit cost net of taxes of $45......... 68 68
Total comprehensive income................. 5,653
Cash dividends declared.........ccccovvvveneecoveiiiiininnnnerennnens 3) ) (3)
Balances at December 31, 2007 ......cccccocvvriiiiiniiniiiiniennne $ — — — 93,700 (1,221) 92,479
Comprehensive INCOME: .......coriinimieinieesieeeneieans ‘ '
NEE INCOMIE ..ovevveveeveri e sre st ereeeeere e sesasesassneses 7,200 — 7,200
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax: ........coceeeneniee.
Retirement benefit plans:
Net losses arjsing during the period, net of tax ,
benefits 0f $248.....ccvviivieieiiieceein (373) (373)
Less: Amortization of prior service credit and o
net losses recognized during the period in net " :
periodic benefit cost net of taxes of $51......... 78 78
Total comprehensive income................. 6,905
Cash dividends declared...........oooooeimnccrnnnciiiiins : - (3) - (3)
Balances at December 31, 2008 ......cooocciriiiiiiiiiiiiinneeens $ — — — 100,897 (1,516) 99,381
Cumulative effect from adoption of FASB ASC Topic
320, net of taxes of $958 ...iivicirererereeie i 1,524 (1,524) —
Balances at December 31, 2008, as revised.......ccccceevennennn. $ — — — 102,421 (3,040) 99,381
Comprehensive income: ' - '
NEt INCOIME .vovviieeeieeeeeiraree et ere st ssaeeees 8,664 — 8,664
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax: .........ccooienee
Retirement benefit plans:..........ocoooeiiiiinininnnncncns
Net gains arising during the period, net of taxes
OFf $284 i 428 428
Less: Net losses recognized during the period in
net periodic benefit cost net of taxes of $20... 29 29
Investment securities:
Reduction of noncredit related losses on
securities not expected to be sold, net of
taxes Of $958 ..ovviiiiiiiii 1,524 1,524
Total comprehensive income................. 10,645
Issuance of 12,233,125 shares of common stock net of
OFFETING COSES .. evivererireiiiiiiiiti it 122 118,521 118,643
Purchase of 978,650 ESOP shares........cccccoovviriinniiinnns (9,787) (9,787)
Allocation of 48,933 ESOP shares ........cccoeeeevveeiinnnenn. 302 490 792
Cash dividends declared.........ccveeveieenreiiiniiiiiiniiineenne 3) 3)
Balances at December 31, 2009 ..o $ 122 118,823 (9,297) 111,082 (1,059) 219,671

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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TERRITORIAL BANCORP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(Dollars in thousands)

2009 2008 2007
Cash flows from operating activities: ‘
Net iNCOME ....ouverrvmrerririrnirinere o, Lo r e R RS enAR s s en s es st seeas $ 8,664 7,200 5,768
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by (used in) operating
activities: ,
Provision for 10an 10SSES ............ouiueiuiiiieceeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee oo 1,198 149 25
Depreciation and amortization ..................co.o.ooeeeereeresesoseeeoeoooooooooeoooo 943 1,020 1,064
Deferred income tax (benefit) €XPense ..........v.evveeeveeeeeeresceeeeseoeeooeoooeoeoeooeoeoe (1,829) (1,014). 235
Amortization of fees, discounts, and Premiums. ...........ov.oveveveoeoveoooooooo (885) (375) (482)
Origination of loans held for Sale.................coueueeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeoeoooooo (85,060) (1,449) —
Proceeds from sales of loans held for Sale .............ocovoeroresereoooooo 85,612 1,438 —
(Gain) 10ss on sale Of 10ANS, NEL............c.omeeeeeereeeeeeseeeeeee e ses oo (1,636) 2) 1,062
Other-than-temporary impairment 10Ss 0N INVEStMENt..........v.oveveoeeoeeeooooooo 3,481 2,483 —
Gain on sale of INVEStMENt SECUTTHES. ...........v.eveveeeeeerereeoeeooeoeooeoeooooooeoo 266) (146) (731)
Loss on extinguiShment of debt................o..ovoveieeieeeeeeee oo 507 — —
Net (gain) loss on sale of premises and EQUIPIENL c..evvviviieeceieeeeee e, (€] (13) 7
ESOP expense.............. e et et es SOOI 792 — —
(Increase) decrease in accrued interest receivable .....oooomooooooo OTOT 6 216) - 292
Net increase in bank-owned life inSUTANCE ........ovveveeeveeeeeeeeooeoeoeeooooooo (1,142) (1,039) (6,042)
Net increase in prepaid expenses and Other aSSets ..........oo.vvvvveovemeoeoooooooooo (2,963) (1,493) (582)
Net increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued expenses........................... 964 71 (21,953)
Net increase (decrease) in federal and state income LaXes, NEt .eoeeeevvvieinieeviireennn, (293) 243 417
Net cash provided by (used in) operating aCtivities........eeeeveeeeeeeoveeereeerveeesen o, 8,089 6,857 (20,920)
Cash flows from investing activities: ‘
Purchases of investment securities held to MNALULILY vt e - (184,527)  (53,085) —
Purchases of investment securities available for SAle ............oo.ovooeovoooooooooo (17,928) (9,736)  (14,866)
Principal repayments on investment securities held to MALUTILY .o, 112,440 50,183 61,508
Principal repayments on investment securities available for sale...............o.coovvoovevvooo ] 23 — —
Proceeds from sale of investment securities held to MALUTILY evovveieiieneeeieeer e — 10,538 22,366
Proceeds from sale of investment securities available for sale.............ooovoooooooo 18,172 9,871 14,904
Loan originations, net of principal repayments on loans receivable ... 35,623 (78,082)  (50,142)
- Proceeds from sales of loans held for inVeStment .............oooovovevooooooooooo — — 41,098
Increase in acquisition value of real estate OWNed..............ooovvveoeeeeoeoooooooo 28) — —
Purchases of premises and €qUIPMENt ...............ocevoveoeeereeoeoeeeoeeooooooo 997) (1,022) 452)
Proceeds from disposals of premises and eqUipment ...............oo.ovovvoveoeoooeoooooo 7 31 —
Net cash (used in) provided by Investing activities .............cvevereeveivevrereennnon, (37,215) (71,302) 74,416
(Continued)
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TERRITORIAL BANCORP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(Dollars in thousands)

Cash flows from financing activities:
Net increase (decrease) in dePOSItS......coeireiriinmirisiiiiinreet et
Proceeds from advances from the Federal Home Loan BanK..........coovvvnenencnnnnes
Repayments of advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank.........ccooovviiiinininnnn.
Proceeds from reverse repurchase agreements .........coovenererrercriieniisiinrionenisnneneans
Repayments of reverse repurchase agreements ........ovrrieieiiriniiinnnsssesannscene

PUIChases OFf Fed FUNAS .. e nneeee i e e eeeeeieeeereeteereaeeeeisesaresssesetsastieteteseraaasassanernsetererannnanes

Sales OF FEd FUINAS ...uvoivieeeeeerereeeeeeie et it sre st ettt
Repayments of subordinated debt ..........covvvveineeiiiiii s
Net increase (decrease) in advance payments by borrowers for taxes and insurance
Proceeds from issuance of common stock, Net 0f COSES....vaiiiirinrirriiiiieiiiiieerienienn.
Cash dividends Paid.......ccoeceeererniiiiirniiite e

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities ......cocoveeeiiniinininniennnis

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents .........cooveeveneenninnnn

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the Year........ccooviiiiiiins

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the Year ...

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Cash PAIA FOT: w..vemiriericiiiieie et
Interest on deposits and DOITOWINES....ccviiviieieririentcincneniie e
IIICOIMIE LAXES ..eetveieireenieerereecrteenneestensaessnr e et e b s s s e s e e et bb s s nas s aa e cnnenses

Supplemental disclosure of noncash investing activities:
Loans transferred to real estate owned ........ccooovviiiiiiinniinnnni

Supplemental disclosure of noncash financing activities:
During July 2009, the Company loaned $9.8 million to the Employee Stock
Ownership Plan, which was used to acquire 978,650 shares of the Company’s
common stock. The loan is secured by the shares purchased and is shown as

Unearned ESOP shares in the consolidated balance sheets. ........ccccvveviiiiiiiinnniinennene

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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2009 2008 2007
$ 90,754 31,598 (89,038)
55692 645317 928,517
(91,483)  (681,526)  (956,517)
15000 205350 294,870
— (145,350)  (300,215)
39,367 - -
(39,367) — —
(24,744) — —
(209) 520 133
108,856 - —
(3) 3 3)
153,863 55906  (122,253)
124,737 (8,539)  (68,757)
11,216 19,755 88,512
$ 135953 11,216 19,755
$ 20,095 25,460 32,367
6,761 4,565 1,810

$ — 131 —



TERRITORIAL BANCORP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007

(1) Organization

On November 4, 2008, the Board of Directors of Territorial Mutual Holding Company approved a plan of conversion and
reorganization under which the Company would convert from a mutual holding company to a stock holding company. The
conversion to a stock holding company was approved by the depositors and borrowers of Territorial Savings Bank and the
Office of Thrift Supervision (OTS) and included the filing of a registration statement with the U.S. Securities and Exchange
Commission. Upon the completion of the conversion and reorganization on J uly 10, 2009, Territorial Mutual Holding Company
and Territorial Savings Group, Inc. ceased to exist as separate legal entities and Territorial Bancorp Inc. became the holding
company for Territorial Savings Bank. A total of 12,233,125 shares were issued in the conversion at $10 per share, raising
$122.3 million of gross proceeds. Approximately $3.7 million of conversion expenses have been offset against the gross
proceeds. Territorial Bancorp Inc.’s common stock began trading on the NASDAQ Global Select Market under the symbol
“TBNK” on July 13, 2009.

Upon completion of the conversion and reorganization, a special “liquidation account” was established in an amount equal to
the total equity of Territorial Mutual Holding Company as of December 31, 2008. The liquidation account is to provide eligible
account holders and supplemental eligible account holders who maintain their deposit accounts with Territorial Savings Bank
after the conversion with a liquidation interest in the unlikely event of the complete liquidation of Territorial Savings Bank after
the conversion. The liquidation account will be reduced annually to the extent that eligible account holders and supplemental
eligible account holders have reduced their qualifying deposits. Subsequent increases will not restore an eligible account
holder’s or supplemental eligible account holder’s interest in the liquidation account. In the event of a complete liquidation of
Territorial Savings Bank, and only in such event, each account holder will be entitled to receive a distribution from the
liquidation account in an amount proportionate to the adjusted qualifying account balances then held.

(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(a) Description of Business

The Company provides loan and deposit products and services primarily to individual customers through 25 branches
located throughout Hawaii. We deal primarily in residential mortgage loans in the state of Hawaii. The Company’s
earnings depend primarily on its net interest income, which is the difference between the interest income earned on
interest-earning assets (loans receivable and investments) and the interest expense incurred on interest-bearing liabilities
(deposit liabilities and borrowings). Deposits traditionally have been the principal source of the Bank’s funds for use in
lending, meeting liquidity requirements, and making investments. The Company also derives funds from receipt of
interest and principal on outstanding loans receivable and investments, borrowings from the Federal Home Loan Bank
(FHLB) of Seattle, securities sold under reverse repurchase agreements, and proceeds from issuance of common stock.

(b) Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts and results of operations of Territorial Bancorp Inc. and its
wholly owned subsidiaries, Territorial Savings Bank, Territorial Real Estate Company, Inc., Territorial Financial Services,
Inc., and Territorial Holdings, Inc. Territorial Holdings, Inc. includes the accounts and results of operations of Territorial
Realty, Inc. Significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

As of December 31, 2008, the Company had three wholly owned statutory trusts that were considered variable interest
entities. In accordance with then existing accounting standards, the trusts were not consolidated as the Company was not
the primary beneficiary. The Company determined the primary beneficiary based on the entity that received the majority
of the trusts’ expected losses and residual returns. All three trusts were terminated in September 2009.

(¢) Investment Securities

The Company classifies and accounts for its investment securities as follows: (1) held-to-maturity debt securities in which
the Company has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity are reported at amortized cost; (2) trading securities
that are purchased for the purpose of selling in the near term are reported at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses
included in current earnings; and (3) available-for-sale securities not classified as either held-to-maturity or trading
securities are reported at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses excluded from current earnings and reported as a
separate component of equity. At December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Company classified its investments as held-to-
maturity.
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A decline in the market value of any available-for-sale or held-to-maturity security below cost that is deemed to be other
than temporary results in an impairment to reduce the carrying amount to fair value. The impairment is charged to
earnings and a new cost basis for the security is established. To determine whether an impairment is other than temporary,
the Company considers whether it has the ability and intent to hold the investment until a market price recovery and
whether it is not more likely than not will be required to sell securities before recovering the remaining amortized cost
basis. Evidence considered in this assessment includes the reasons for the impairment, the severity and duration of the
impairment, changes in value subsequent to year-end, forecasted performance of the investee, and the general market
condition in the geographic area or industry the investee operates in.

In April 2009, the FASB amended the Investments—Debt and Equity Securities topic of the FASB ASC. This amendment
changes the other-than-temporary impairment guidance in U.S. GAAP and disclosure requirements in the financial
statements. For securities not expected to be sold, credit related other-than-temporary impairment is recognized in
earnings while noncredit related impairment is recognized in other comprehensive income. The amendment is effective
for interim and annual reporting periods ending after June 15, 2009, with early adoption permitted for periods ending after
March 15, 2009. The Company early adopted the provisions of the amendment on January 1, 2009. As a result, a $1.5
million cumulative adjustment for prior year impairment losses was recorded that increased retained earnings and
decreased accumulated other comprehensive income as of the beginning of the year.

Gains or losses on the sale of investment securities are computed using the specific-identification method. The Company
amortizes premiums and accretes discounts associated with investment securities using the interest method over the
contractual life of the respective investment security. Such amortization and accretion is included in the interest and
dividend income line item in the consolidated statements of income. Dividend and interest income are recognized when
earned.

(d) Loans Receivable

Loans receivable are stated at the principal amount outstanding, less the allowance for loan losses, loan origination fees
and costs, and commitment fees. Interest on loans receivable is accrued as earned. The Company has a policy of placing
loans on a nonaccrual basis when more than 90 days contractually delinquent, or when, in the opinion of management,
collection of all or part of the principal balance appears doubtful. Interest, net deferred fees, and discounts on loans
classified as nonaccrual are generally recognized on a cash basis. The Company, considering current information and
events regarding the borrowers’ ability to repay their obligations, considers a loan to be impaired when it is probable that
the Company will be unable to collect all amounts due according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement. When a
loan is considered to be impaired, the amount of the impairment is measured based on the present value of expected future
cash flows discounted at the loan’s effective interest rate or, if the loan is considered to be collateral dependent, based on
the fair value of the collateral. Impairment losses are included in the allowance for loan losses through a charge to the
provision for loan losses. Similarly, interest, net deferred fees, and discounts on impaired loans are recognized on a cash
basis. A nonaccrual loan may be restored to an accrual basis when principal and interest payments are current and full
payment of principal and interest is expected.

(e) Loans Held for Sale

Loans held for sale are stated at the lower of aggregate cost or market value. Net fees and costs of originating loans held
for sale are deferred and are included in the basis for determining the gain or loss on sales of loans held for sale.

() Deferred Loan Origination Fees and Unearned Loan Discounts

Loan origination and commitment fees and certain direct loan origination costs are being deferred, and the net amount 1s
recognized over the life of the related loan as an adjustment to yield. Net deferred loan fees are amortized using the
interest method over the contractual term of the loan, adjusted for actual prepayments. Net unamortized fees on loans paid
in full are recognized as a component of interest income.

(g) Real Estate Owned

Real estate operations, net, include operating income and expenses, gains and losses on sales of real estate, and provisions
for losses resulting from subsequent declines in fair values. Real estate is valued at the time of foreclosure at fair value,
less estimated cost to sell, thereby establishing a new cost basis. The Company obtains appraisals based on recent
comparable sales to assist management in estimating the fair value of real estate owned. Subsequent to acquisition, real
estate owned is valued at the lower of cost or fair value, less estimated cost to sell. Declines in value are charged to
expense through a valuation allowance. Costs related to holding real estate are charged to expense while costs related to
development and improvements are capitalized.
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Profits from the sale of real estate are recognized when title has passed, minimum down payment requirements are met,
the terms of any notes received are such as to satisfy continuing investment requirements, and the Company is relieved of
any requirements for continued involvement with the properties. If the minimum down payment or the continuing
investment is not adequate to meet the criteria specified in the Property, Plant and Equipment topic of the Financial
Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC), the Company will defer income
recognition and account for such sales using alternative methods, such as installment, deposit, or cost recovery.

(h) Allowance for Loan Losses

The Company’s allowance for credit losses is maintained at a level considered adequate to provide for losses that can be
estimated based upon specific and general conditions. All loan losses are charged, and all recoveries are credited, to the
allowance for loan losses. Additions to the allowance for loan losses are provided by charges to income based on various
factors, which, in the Company’s judgment, deserve current recognition in estimating probable losses. Charge-offs to the
allowance are made when management determines that collectibility of all or a portion of a loan is doubtful and available
collateral is insufficient to repay the loan. The allowance for loan losses consists primarily of two components:

(1) Specific allowances established for impaired loans. The amount of impairment provided for as a specific
allowance is represented by the deficiency, if any, between the estimated fair value of the loan, or the loan’s
observable market price, if any, or the underlying collateral, if the loan is collateral dependent, and the carrying
value of the loan. Impaired loans for which the estimated fair value of the loan, or the loan’s observable market
price or the fair value of the underlying collateral, if the loan is collateral dependent, exceeds the carrying value of
the loan are not considered in establishing specific allowances for loan losses.

(2)  General allowances are established for loan losses on a portfolio basis for loans that do not meet the definition of
impaired, in accordance with the Receivables topic of the FASB ASC. The portfolio is grouped into similar risk
characteristics, primarily loan type, loan-to-value, if collateral dependent, and delinquency status. The Company
applies an estimated loss rate to each loan group. The loss rates applied are based upon its loss experience
adjusted, as appropriate, for environmental factors. This evaluation is inherently subjective, as it requires material
estimates that may be susceptible to significant revisions based upon changes in economic and real estate market
conditions.

Actual loan losses may be significantly more than the allowance for loan losses the Company has established, which could
have a material negative effect on its financial results.

(i) Transfer of Financial Assets

Transfers of financial assets are accounted for as sales when control is surrendered. Control is surrendered when the assets
have been isolated from the Company, the transferee obtains the right to pledge or exchange the assets without constraint,
and the Company does not maintain effective control over the transferred assets. Mortgage loans sold for cash are
accounted for as sales as the above criteria have been met.

Mortgage loans may also be packaged into securities that are issued and guaranteed by U.S. government-sponsored
enterprises. The Company receives 100% of the mortgage-backed securities issued. Securitizations are not accounted for
as sales and no gain or loss is recognized. The mortgage-backed securities received in securitizations are valued at
amortized cost and classified as held-to-maturity.

Mortgage loan transfers accounted for as sales and securitizations are without recourse and the Company generally retains
the related rights to service the loans. The retained servicing rights create mortgage servicing assets that are accounted for
in accordance with the Transfers and Servicing topic of the FASB ASC. Mortgage servicing assets are initially valued at
fair market value and subsequently at the lower of cost or market value and are amortized in proportion to and over the
period of estimated net servicing income. Valuations are obtained from independent third-party appraisers on a quarterly
basis.

(j) Premises and Equipment

Premises and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Depreciation is principally
computed on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the respective assets. The estimated useful life of
buildings and improvements is 30 years, furniture, fixtures, and equipment is 3 to 10 years, and automobiles is 3 years.
Leasehold improvements are amortized on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term or estimated useful life of
the asset.
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(k) Income Taxes

The Company files a consolidated federal income tax return and a consolidated tax return for state franchise and corporate
income taxes. :

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized using the asset and liability method of accounting for the future tax
consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities
and their respective tax bases and net operating loss and tax credit carryforwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
measured using the enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary
differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates
is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date.

In June 2006, the FASB revised the Income Taxes topic of the ASC. The revision prescribes a “more-likely-than-not”
recognition threshold and measurement attribute (the largest amount of benefit that is greater than 50% likely of being
realized upon ultimate resolution with tax authorities) for the financial statement recognition and measurement of an
income tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. A liability for income tax uncertainties would be
recorded for unrecognized tax benefits related to uncertain tax positions where it is more likely than not that the position
will be sustained upon examination by a taxing authority. The Company adopted the ASC revision effective January 1,
2007. ' '

In 2009, the Company did not incur any interest or penalties on income taxes. The Company will record interest on
income tax penalties, if any, when they are incurred in other expense. '

As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Company has not recognized a liability for income tax uncertainties in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Management concluded that a liability for income tax uncertainties is not
expected to be recorded within the next 12 months.

Tax years 2006 to 2008 currently remain subject to examination by the Internal Revenue Service and by the Department
of Taxation of the State of Hawaii.

(1) Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets, such as premises and equipment, are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be held
and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of an asset to estimated undiscounted future cash flows
expected to be generated by the asset. If the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its estimated future cash flows, an
impairment charge is recognized by the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds the fair value of the
asset. Assets to be disposed of would be separately presented in the consolidated balance sheets and reported at the lower
of the carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell, and are no longer depreciated. The assets and liabilities of a disposed
group classified as held-for-sale would be presented separately in the appropriate asset and liability sections of the
consolidated balance sheets. ' ‘

(m) Pension Plan

Pension benefit costs (returns) are charged (credited) to salaries and employee benefits expense, and the corresponding
“prepaid (accrued) pension. cost is recorded in prepaid expenses and other assets or accounts payable and accrued expenses
in the consolidated balance sheets. The Company’s policy is to fund pension costs in amounts that will not be less than the
minimum funding requirements of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 and will not exceed the
maximum tax-deductible amounts. The Company generally funds at least the net periodic pension cost, subject to limits
and targeted funded status as determined with the consulting actuary.

(n) Employee Stock Ownership Plan (ESOP)‘

The cost of shares issued to the ESOP, but not yet allocated to participants, is shown as a reduction of stockholders’
equity. Compensation expense is based on the market price of shares as they are committed-to be released to participant
accounts. Dividends on allocated ESOP shares reduce retained earnings; dividends on unearned ESOP shares reduce debt
and accrued interest.

(o) Earnings Per Share

Basic earning per share is computed by dividing net income by the weighted average number of common shares
outstanding during the period. ESOP shares not committed to be released are not considered outstanding.
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(p) Bank-Owned Life Insurance

The Company invests in bank-owned life insurance to provide a funding source for benefit plan obligations. Bank-owned
life insurance also generally provides noninterest income that is nontaxable. Federal regulations generally limit the

_ investment in bank-owned life insurance to 25% of the Company’s Tier 1 capital plus the allowance for loan losses. At
December 31, 2009, this limit was $47.9 million, and the Company had invested $28.2 million in bank-owned life
insurance at that date. '

(q) Use of Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements requires management to make a number of estimates and
assumptions relating to the reported amount of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities
-at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Significant items subject to such estimates and assumptions include the allowance for loan losses; valuation of
certain investment securities and determination as to whether declines in fair value below amortized cost are other than
temporary; valuation allowances for deferred income tax assets; and assets and obligations related to employee benefit
plans. With respect to the allowance for loan losses, management believes the allowance for loan losses is adequate.
While management utilizes available information to recognize losses on loans, future additions to the allowance for loan
losses may be necessary based on changes in economic conditions, particularly in the state of Hawaii. In addition, various
regulatory agencies, as an integral part of their examination process, periodically review the Company’s allowance for
loan losses. Such agencies may require management to recognize additions to the allowance for loan losses based on their
judgments about information available to them at the time of their examination. Accordingly, actual results could differ
from those estimates. : .

(r) Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2009, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB™) issued the FASB Accounting Standards Codification
(“ASC”). The Codification supersedes all previously existing, non-SEC accounting and reporting standards and becomes
the source of authoritative U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) to be applied by nongovernmental
entities. The Codification primarily impacts the way GAAP is referenced in financial statements. The Company adopted
the Codification on September 30, 2009 and such adoption did not have any impact on its consolidated financial
statements.

In June 2009, the FASB amended the Transfers and Servicing topic of the FASB ASC. The amendment seeks to improve
the usefulness of the information a company provides about a transfer of financial assets, the effects of the transfer on its
financial position, performance and cash flows, and its continuing involvement in the transferred financial assets. The
amendment is effective as of the beginning of the first annual reporting period that ends after November 15, 2009. The
Company does not expect the adoption of this amendment to have a significant impact on its consolidated financial
statements.

In June 2009, the FASB amended the Consolidation topic of the FASB ASC. The amendment seeks to improve financial
reporting by enterprises involved with variable interest entities and also addresses the effects on consolidations of the June
2009 amendment to the Transfers and Servicing topic of the FASB ASC. The amendment is effective as of the beginning
of the first annual reporting period that ends after November 15, 2009. The Company does not expect the adoption of this
amendment to have any impact on its consolidated financial statements.

. In January 2010, the FASB amended the Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures topic of the FASB ASC. The
amendment requires disclosures about the significant transfers in and out of Level 1 and Level 2 fair value measurements
and the reasons for the transfers, and requires the reconciliation of activity in Level 3 fair value measurements be made on
a gross basis. The amendment also clarifies the level of disaggregation required in disclosures and the valuation
techniques and inputs used to measure fair value for both recurring and nonrecurring fair value measuremerits for Level 2
or Level 3 items. The part of the amendment related to the reconciliation of Level 3 activity is effective for interim and
annual periods beginning after December 15, 2010. The remaining parts of the amendment are effective for interim and
annual periods beginning after December 15, 2009. The Company does not expect the adoption.of this amendment to have
a significant impact on its consolidated financial statements.
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(3) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash and due from banks, interest-bearing deposits in other banks, federal funds sold, and
short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less. The table below presents the balances of
cash and cash equivalents as of December 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008.

December 31, December 31,
(Dollars in thousands) : 2009 2008
Cash and due from DAnKS ......icvvvireeeereeeerreeicereoneersensssesesnsenes $ 12,466 $ 10,136
Interest-bearing deposits inn other banks ........cccivveriivenieennie 123,487 1,080
Cash and cash eqUIVAIENTS ..........iiiermirieieierr e $ 135,953 $ 11,216

(4) Investment Securities

The amortized cost and fair values of securities classified as held-to-maturity are as follows:

Amortized Gross unrealized Estimated
(Dollars in thousands) Cost Gains Losses fair value
" December 31, 2009: ‘
Held to maturity:
U.S. government-sponsored mortgage-backed
SECUTIEIES +.nrevveeeereeeeeesesesseseessesessnsseatesesesesnsbosonsrssnns $ 594,852 12,555 (1,238) $ 606,169
Trust preferred SECUTIIES ovvevrinnrirerercciiniiicn 3,542 — (3,442) - 100
TOUAL v ee e eee et eereereerseve s e e e snentssesassr e e nensases $ 598,394 12,555 (4,680) $ 606,269
December 31, 2008:
Held to maturity: ‘
U.S. government-sponsored mortgage-backed ;
SECUTTEIES 1 -veeeeeionieereeeivreaenreessresenreeeonnessesensnssssseranseenans $ 523,228 10,617 (331) $ 533,514
Trust preférred SECUITHEs .....iovrr vt - 4,539 — (2,463) 2,076

TOtAL i vttt $ 527,767 10,617 2,794y $ 535,590

The amortized cost and estimated fair value of investment securities at December 31, 2009 are shown below. Incorporated in the
maturity schedule are mortgage-backed and trust preferred securities, which are allocated using the contractual matuftity as a
basis. Expected maturities may differ from contractual maturities because issuers may have the right to call or prepay
obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties. ‘

Amortized Estimated
(Dollars in thousands) cost fair value
Held to maturity:
Due after 5 years through 10 Years .......ccoviiiniiimiiiiienens $ 25,800 26,387
DUE after 10 YEATS...c.cerriiiieiieeriier st 572,594 579,882
TOLAL c.veeeiereceeevesre et ereni b st ns et ettt s [T $ 598,394 606,269

Realized gains and losses and the proceeds from sales of securities available for sale for the years ended December 31 are
shown in the table below. All sales of securities available for sale were U.S. government-sponsored mortgage-backed securities.

(Dollars in thousands) 2009 2008 2007
ProCeeds fTOM SALES ...voveeeeeeeeeereererrereesesseesesseererieeresiessensnessssnsasenserarsses $ 18,172 9,871 14,904
GIOSS ZAIMS 1evvrvrverceivrmanssnse st 266 145 38

GTOSS LOSSES o eeeeeieeeereereresesieretreesseesaassereeaeaaessssstesasansaasbanberereossssissinnnnes — — —

There were no sales of held-to-maturity securities during 2009. In 2008, the Company received proceeds of $10.5 million from
the sale of $10.5 million of held-to-maturity municipal bonds, resulting in gross realized gains and losses of $81,303 and
$80,242, respectively. Approximately $5.5 million of these securities experienced a credit downgrade. The remaining securities
were sold because of concerns about a potential downgrade of the bond’s insurers. In 2007, the Company received proceeds of
$22.4 million from the sale of $21.7 million of held-to-maturity debt securities, resulting in gross realized gains and losses of
$1.0 million and $0.3 million, respectively. The sale of the securities occurred after the Company had already collected a
substantial portion (at least 85%) of the principal outstanding at acquisition.
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Investment securities with carrying values of $315.5 million and $255.3 million at December 3 1, 2009 and 2008, respectively,
were pledged to secure public deposits, reverse repurchase agreements, and transaction clearing accounts.

Provided below is a summary of investment securities, which were in an unrealized loss position at December 31, 2009 and
2008. The Company has the intent and ability to hold these securities until such time as the value recovers or the securities
mature.

Less than 12 months 12 months or longer Total
Unrealized Unrealized Number of Unrealized
Description of securities Fair value losses Fair value Losses securities Fair value losses
(Dollars in thousands)
December 31,2009 ........cccoovmvvecunann...
Mortgage-backed securities....... $ 123,463 1,227 362 11 25 123,825 1,238
Trust preferred securities........... — — 100 3,442 1 100 3,442
Total...ccoovvveveirriierciie $ 123,463 1,227 462 3,453 26 123,925 4,680
December 31, 2008:
Mortgage-backed securities....... $ 7,423 7 60,241 324 16 67,664 331
Trust preferred securities........... - — 2,076 2,463 2 2,076 2,463
Total....ccceoveviiireree $ 7,423 7 62,317 2,787 18 69,740 2,794

Mortgage-Backed Securities. The unrealized losses on the Company’s investment in mortgage-backed securities were caused
by increases in current market interest rates. All of the mortgage-backed securities are guaranteed by Freddie Mac, Fannie Mae,
or Ginnie Mae, which are U.S. government-sponsored enterprises. Since the decline in market value is attributable to changes in
interest rates and not credit quality, and the Company has the intent and ability to hold these investments to maturity, the
Company does not consider these investments to be other-than-temporarily impaired as of December 31, 2009 and 2008.

Trust Preferred Securities. At December 31, 2009, the Company owned trust preferred securities with a carrying value of $3.5
million. Trust preferred securities represent investments in a pool of debt obligations issued by holding companies for Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC)-insured financial institutions, insurance companies, and real estate investment trusts.

The trust preferred securities market is considered to be inactive as only five transactions have occurred over the past twelve
months in similar tranches to the securities owned by the Company. The Company used a discounted cash flow model to
determine the estimated fair value of its trust preferred securities and whether they are other-than-temporarily impaired. The
assumptions used in preparing the discounted cash flow model include the following: estimated discount rates (using yields of
comparable traded instruments adjusted for illiquidity and other risk factors), estimated deferral and default rates on collateral,
and estimated cash flows.

Based on the Company’s review, the Company’s investment in one of the trust preferred securities is impaired. After
consideration of the duration and severity of the impairment, as well as the reasons for the decline in value and the potential
recovery period, the Company believes that such impairment is “other-than-temporary” at December 31, 2009. As a result, in
2009, the Company recorded a $3.5 million credit-related impairment charge. This amount is included in other-than-temporary
impairment loss on investments in the accompanying consolidated statements of income.

A discounted cash flow analysis indicates that the Company will be able to collect all of the principal and interest in accordance
with the original terms of the second trust preferred security it owns. The discounted cash flow analysis included a review of all
issuers within the collateral pool and incorporated higher deferral and default rates in the cash flow projections over the next
three years with a forecast of default and deferral rates reverting to historical averages in later periods. The Company has the
ability and intent to hold this security to maturity and does not consider this investment to be other-than-temporarily impaired as
of December 31, 2009. This security has been downgraded from its original Fitch’s BBB rating to CC and the Company is not
receiving interest payments on the security. :

It is reasonably possible that the fair values of the trust preferred securities could decline in the near term if the overall economy
and the financial condition of some of the issuers continue to deteriorate and the liquidity of these securities remains low. As a
result, there is a risk that other-than-temporary impairments may occur in the near term and any such amounts could be material
to the Company’s consolidated statements of income.
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The table below provides é cumulative roll forward of credit losses récdgnizcd in ea_imings for debt securities held and not

 intended to be sold:

(Dollars in thousands)

Balance, January 1, 2009 .........coommisirnisiiinmemisimissisiss s $ 1
Credit losses on debt securities for which other-than-temporary impairment
was not previously recognized.......c.oiniminnivinini e ereenns —
Credit losses on debt securities for which other-than-temporary impairment «
Was Previously TECOZMZEM .......rrrrmerrussrnersersccussiassimssis st 3,480
Balance at December 31, 2009.........coeveiriiiinmmiienesseneesesatien it

(5) Federal Home Loan Bank Stock

The Compariy evaluated its investment in FHLB stock for other-than-temporary impairment as of December 31, 2009,

consistent with its accounting policies. Based

on the Company’s evaluation of the underlying investment, including the long-

term nature of the investment, the liquidity position of the FHLB of Seattle, the actions being taken by the FHLB of Seattle to
address its regulatory capital situation and the Company’s intent and ability to hold the investment for a period of time sufficient
to recover the par value, the Company-did not consider its FHLB stock other-than-temporarily impaired. As of December 31,

2009, the FHLB of Seattle has met all of its regulatory capital

requirements. Moody’s Investor Service and Standard and Poor’s

Rating Services have given the FHLB

of Seattle’s credit ratings of Aaa and AA+, respectively. Even though the Company did

not recognize an OTTI loss on its investment in FHLB stock in 2009, continued deterioration in the FHLB of Seattle’s financial

position may result in future impairment losses.

(6) Loans Receivable

The components of loans receivable at December 31, 2009 and 2008 are as follows:

(Dollars in thousands)
. Real estate loans:
. First mortgages:
One- to four- family residential
Multifamily residential
Construction, commercial, and other
Home equity loans and lines of credit

Total real estate loans

Other loans:
Loans on deposit accounts
Consumer and other loans

Total dther loans

Less:
Net unearned fees and discounts
Undisbursed loan funds
Allowance for loan losses

Loans Receivable, net

December 31, December 31,
2009 2008
..................................... $ 555,473 581,251
3,807 3,756
............................ 20,762 21,042
.................................... 21,789 29,956
601,831 636,005
1,109 1,305
5,786 4,792
6,895 6,097
(5,255) (5,100)
(4,090) (2,943)
(1,681) (899)
(11,026) (8,942)
$ 597,700 633,160

$309,000, respectively, and included all

Impaired loans at December 31, 2009 and 2008 amounted to $3.2 million and

nonaccrual and restructured loans. There were no impaired loans requiring an allowance. In 2009, the average recorded
investment in impaired loans was $3.3 million and interest income recognized on impaired loans was $78,446. In 2008, the

average recorded investment in impaired loans was $309,000 and no interest income was recognized.

The Compahy had two nonaccrual loans for $1.0 million as of December 31, 2009 and one nonaccrual loan for $0.1 million as
of December 31, 2008. The Company collected and recognized interest income on nonaccrual loans of $5,067 and $0 during

2009 and 2008, respectively. The Company would have recognize
2009 and 2008, respectively, had the loans been accruing interest.
due and still accruing interest as of December 31, 2009 or 2008.
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The Company had nine restructured one- to four- family residential mortgage loans totaling $3.0 million as of December 31,
2009 that were considered to be impaired. Eight of the loans totaling $2.7 million were still accruing interest. There was one
restructured one- to four- family residential mortgage loan totaling $309,000 as of December 31, 2008 and the loan was still
accruing interest. Restructurings include deferrals of interest and/or principal payments and temporary or permanent reductions
in interest rates due to the financial difficulties of the borrowers. We have no commitments to lend any additional funds to these
borrowers.

The majority of loans receivable are collateralized by real estate located in the state of Hawaii. Loan-to-value ratios generally do
not exceed 80% at the time of origination. ' : : SO

The Company sold $85.2 million of mortgage loans held for sale in 2009 and recognized a gain of $1.6 million. In 2008, $1.4
million of mortgage loans were sold with a gain of $1,602. In 2007, $43.0 million of mortgage loans were sold at a loss of $1.1
million. At December 31, 2009, the Company had four loans held for sale totaling $1.1 million and none as of December 31,
2008.

The Company serviced loans for others of $135.6 million, $63.2 million, and $71.0 million at December 31, 2009, 2008, and
2007, respectively. Of these amounts, $10.4 million, $12.7 million, and $13.8 million relate to securitizations for which the
Company continues to hold the related mortgage-backed securities-at December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007. The amount of
contractually specified servicing fees earned was $0.3 million, $0.2 million, and $0.2 million for 2009,.2008, and 2007,
respectively. The fees are reported in service fees on loan and deposit accounts in the consolidated statements of income,

In the normal course of business, the Company has made loans to certain directors and executive officers under terms which
management believes are consistent with the Company’s general lending policies. Loans to directors and executive officers
amounted to $1.5 million and $1.6 million at December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

(7) Allowance for Loan Losses

The activity in the allowance for loan losses on loans receivable is as follows for the years ended December 31:

(Dollars in thousands) 2009 2008 2007

Balance, beginning Of Year .......cccov.oveiueiuiueeeceeeeeeseeee oo $ 899 768 768
Provision for 108N 10SSES ..........c.ecieveueeeeeeeeee oo e 1,198 149 .25
2,097 917 793

Charge-0fFS ..ot et s, (426) 23) 27N
Recoveries............ s bbbttt sttt 10 5 2

Net charge-offs .........oououiieirccceeee e, . (416) (18) (25)
Balance, end Of Year ........cciviiviuiieeeiieeeeee e et $ - 1,681 899 768

(8) Accrued Interest Receivable

The components of accrued interest receivable at December 31, 2009 and 2008 are as follows:

(Dollars in thousands) ‘ 2009 2008
INVEStMENt SECULIHES ....cevveeteieceeceeeeeee e $. 2,380 2,178
L0ans 1ECEIVADIE. ......co.iumeeeivetereceeeeeeee e e e 2,388 2,609
Interest-bearing depOSIts ........c.coverrurueieeeiriieceeeeeeeee e 13 -
TOLAL oottt e e et $ 4,781 4,787

9 Mortgage_Servicing Assets

Mortgage servicing assets are created when the Company sells mortgage loans and retains the rights to service the loans.
Mortgage servicing assets are accounted for in accordance with the Transfers and Servicing topic of the FASB ASC and are
initially valued at fair value and subsequently at the lower of cost or fair value, We amortize mortgage servicing assets in
proportion to and over the period of estimated net servicing income. All servicing assets are grouped into categories based on
the interest rate and original term of the loan sold. Mortgage servicing assets related to loan sales are recorded as a gain on sale
of loans and totaled $1,011,000 and $0 for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively. '
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The table below presents the changes in our mortgage servicing assets for the year ended December 31, 2009:

(Dollars in thousands) 2009 2008
Balance at beginning of YEaT ..o $ 376 465

T AGAIEIONS weeveeeeeririeeerieeiressssebererseseassssssseesessesssssssrrssssararaassissonnestdssesissinnnrnes 1,011 —
Impalrments 21) @
AINOTTIZATION ¢ v eeeeereteeeeeeeeseesveeeessseesessseasesereesosssrnnteesesrsassssreeesneeeessaseens (129) (85)
Balance at end Of YEAT ....c.ccceaiomiereniiiirin et $ 1,237 376

The table below presents the gross carrying values, accumulated amortization, and net carrying values of our mortgage servicing
assets for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008:

(Dollars in thousands) 2009 2008
GroSS CAITYING VAIUE ..oviiiiieicnciitiriieieieies et s $ 1458 468
Accumulated amMOTHIZATION cov...vvieevierieeereeeseeereriisee e saessrn e st s ee e sstsssas o saeneans 221 92)
NEt CAITYING VAU ....evvvorcerrsrrereneereeesesenssssssrsesisssssssesssesssesssessenisss e ssnssasessss $ 1,237 376

The estimated amortization expense for our mortgage servicing assets for the next five years and all years thereafter are as
follows: - : -

(Dollars in thousands)

L0 ) L RO OO OO OO PSSRSO PRPPRIoRs $ 168
2103 & TR RO SO O OO PP PP OO PP 157
20 ) 5 TSSOSO U O PO PRSP PP TOTPPPPOPO 140
20} 1 TP U OO PSPPI YRR TP PR 122
0 L RO O U OO OO TP PP PP PPOTRPP 105
BN TS Vi1 SUTTTUREURU U OO U TS UOT ORI UPSTOT P TOPIPPPPR 545

$ 1,237

The valuation of new servicing assets is obtained from a cash flow model prepared by an independent third-party appraiser. The
valuation reports prepared by the third party are also used to assess impairment of servicing assets. Impairments are recorded as
adjustments to amortization expense and included in service fees on loan and deposit accounts in the statements of income.
Critical assumptions used in the discounted cash flow model include mortgage prepayment speeds, discount rates, cost of
servicing and ancillary income.

Prepayment speed may be affected by economic factors such as home price appreciation, market interest rates, the availability of
other loan products to our borrowers and customer payment patterns. Prepayment speeds include the impact of all borrower
prepayments, including full payoffs, additional principal payments and the impact of loans paid off due to foreclosure
liquidations. As market interest rates decline, prepayment speeds will generally increase as customers refinance existing
mortgage loans under more favorable interest rate terms and anticipated cash flows will generally decline resulting in a potential
reduction, or impairment, to the fair value of the mortgage servicing assets. Alternatively, an increase in market interest rates
may cause a decrease in prepayment speeds and therefore an increase in the fair value of mortgage servicing assets.

The table below presents the fair values and key assumptions used in determining the fair values of our mortgage servicing
assets as of December 31, 2009 and 2008:

(Dollars in thousands) 2009 2008
Fair value, beginning of Year........ccocveneieininninincnniiesnenen, $ 382 472
Fair value, end Of Year......cocoveverriniienrrinsineensseceeseeesssn, 1,346 382
‘Weighted average diSCOUNT FALE ......ccovvvereraieinincsineeeresisiiinennisenens. 10.00% 10.00%
Weighted average prepayment speed assumption
(PSA prepayment SPEed) .........couvurvrenrriirsnsrssseserensnniensissann: 152.4 PSA 1259 PSA

The PSA prepayment model assumes increasing prepayment rates for the first 30 months of a loan’s term and constant
prepayment rates thereafter.
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(10) Interest Rate Lock and Forward Loan Sale Commitments

The Company may enter into interest rate lock commitments with borrowers on loans intended to be sold. To manage interest
rate risk on the lock commitments, the Company may also enter into forward loan sale commitments. The interest rate lock
commitments and forward loan sale commitments are treated as derivatives and are recorded at their fair values in prepaid
expenses and other assets or in accounts payable and accrued expenses. Changes in fair value are recorded in current earnings.
At December 31, 2009, interest rate locks and forward loan sale commitments on loans held for sale amounted to $3.1 million

and $4.2 million, respectively.

The table below presents the location of assets and liabilities related to derivatives:

Asset Derivatives

Liability Derivatives

Fair Value at

Fair Value at

Fair Value at Fair Value at

Location on December 30, December 31, December 30, December 31,
(Dollars in thousands) Balance Sheet 2009 2008 2009 2008
Interest rate contracts Prepaid expenses and
other assets $ 69 0 — —
Interest rate contracts Accounts payable and
accrued expenses — — 20
Total derivatives $ 69 0 20
The table below presents the location of gains related to derivatives:
Location of
gain on
(Dollars in thousands) Statement of Income 2009 2008
Interest rate CONtracts............o.oveveveeeeenernnnnn, Gainonsale of loans $ 49
Total derivatives .........ocooeveeeueviviremereereseerennnn, 49
(11) Premises and Equipment
Premises and equipment for the periods indicated are as follows:
(Dollars in thousands) 2009 2008
LD oot e $ 585 585
Buildings and improvements .....................c.oouecureueereeereersoeeeeoooeeoeooooo 577 575
Leasehold iMProvements ............e.cvecueeiieieieeeeeeeeee oo 8,185 7,826
Furniture, fixtures and equipment...................o.ooeoveeveoeeooeseooeooo 4,541 4,089
AUOMODIIES.......oooec et es oo 104 94
13,992 13,169
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization ..................ooovooooooooo (10,286) (9,401)
3,706 3,768
CONSLTUCTION TN PIOZIESS .....cvucioreereeeeceeceeeeeeeeee s ee oo 789 676
$ 4495 4,444
(12) Deposits
Deposit accounts by type are summarized with their respective weighted average interest rates as follows:
2009 2008
(Dollars in thousands) Amount Rate Amount Rate
NON-INterest bearing ...........c.vevvvieieeeeeeeeeee oo $ 18,414 — $ 14,965 —
SAVINES ACCOUNIS ......vvreeiieeeeeieeceeeeeeeeee e e 638,752 1.41% 407,252 1.59%
Certificates Of AePOSIt........ovvvveveeeereeereeeeeeeeseeeeeeeeoeoeeeeeeeeoeeoo 254,426 1.24 397,169 2.40
MONEY MATKEL ...ttt e 82,487 .06 84,763 .06
Checking and Super NOW ............c..oooueveeeeeeeeseeeeeeeeoeeooooeo) 20,589 .05 19,765 .06
$ 1,014,668 120% $ 923914 1.74%
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The maturity of certificate of deposit accounts is as follows (dollars in thousands):

MALUTINE A1: +evvereeaeecreneesierere ettt

DL oo oe et e eeeeeeeeasereeear e eaatbaaeeubaeeeesasetese b e e s e b raeaa st et e it s e $ 207,715
9701 5 UUUUT T TR T U ST OO SO O P OO ORI TP PP PR O 12,257
D002 oot eeeeeeeeeeeeaeaes e teesaaatesaaataaaeanateeeesantae ot ts e e e e bt n e e e nnte e s n s s as 16,201
010 1 SR UT T SRS U PO O PUU OO OO PR PPN 4,331
2014 AN tHETEATIET ... eveeeeeeeeiiee et e eeeeererererce e e e e ssrasrr st ses e s ssnanans 13,922

$ 254,426

Certificates of deposit with balances greater than or equal to $100,000 totaled $147.2 million and $185.2 million at

December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively. Accounts in the Bank are insured by the FDIC, generally up to a maximum of
$100,000 per separately insured depositor and up to a maximum of $250,000 for self-directed retirement accounts. However,
pursuant to its statutory authority, the FDIC increased the deposit insurance available on deposit accounts to $250,000 effective
until December 31, 2013. :

Interest expense by type of deposit is as follows:

(Dollars in thousands) 2009 2008 2007

SAVIIES v rvereseseseessecesesrasesssesss s s s bbb bbb $ 7,761 6,003 5,546
Certificates of deposit and money Market........cocoiiiiiiiiineis 6,124 12,459 18,247
Checking and Super NOW ..o oot 244 59 70

TOtAL vt e e erereeete oot s $ 14,129 18,521 23,863

At December 31, 2009 and 2008, overdrawn deposit accounts totaled $0.1 million and $0.1 million, respectively, and have been
reclassified asloans in the consolidated balance sheets.

(13) Advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank

The FHLB advances are secured by a blanket pledge on the Bank’s assets. At December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Company had
available additional unused FHLB advances of approximately $339.1 million and $270.0 million. '

Advances outstanding for the periods indicated consisted of the following:

2009 2008 2007
Weighted Weighted Weighted
average average average
(Dollars in thousands) Amount rate Ameount rate Amount rate
Diute Within ONe YEar.......cccoviiiininriineeinirrereccnisiinins $ 0 — $ 35791 0.63% $ 72,000 4.62%

The Company, as a member of the FHLB system, is required to obtain and hold shares of capital stock of the FHLB in.an
amount equal to the greater of 0.50% of mortgage loans and mortgage-backed securities or $500. At December 31, 2009 and
2008, the Company met such requirement. At December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Company owned $12.3 million of capital stock
of the FHLB.
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(14) Securities Sold under Agreements to Repurchase

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase are treated as financings and the obligations to repurchase the identical securities
sold are reflected as a liability with the dollar amount of securities underlying the agreements remaining in the asset accounts.
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase at December 31, 2009 and 2008 are summarized as follows:

2009 2008
Weighted Weighted
Repurchase average Repurchase average

(DoMars in thousands) liability rate liability rate
Maturing: ‘

1 YT OF 1€8S cuovvieirieiiteeeeeeee e $ 25,000 3.13% $ 0 0.00%

Over 1 yearto 2 YEars .......oueeveveeeemereeeeeereesseeeoeen, 43,900 3.53 25,000 3.13

OVer 2 years t0 3 YEArS ..oovvveveeeeeeeereeeeeeeeeeeseeeeeeeeos 28,300 4,75 43,900 3.53

Over 3 years to 4 years ......... et 33,000 391 28,300 4.75

Over 4 years to 5 years ...........c.coue...... v, 0 0.00 18,000 - 4.87

$ 130,200 ©3.82% $ 115,200 3.95%

Below is a summary comparing the carrying value and fair value of securities pledged to secure repurchase agreements, the
repurchase liability, and the amount at risk at December 31, 2009. The amount at risk is the greater of the carrying value or fair
value over the repurchase liability. All the agreements to repurchase are with JP Morgan and the securities pledged are issued
and guaranteed by U.S. government-sponsored enterprises.

Weighted
Carrying Fair average
value of value of Repurchase Amount months to
(Dollars in thousands) Securities securities liability at risk maturity
Maturing: _
OVET 90 dAYS......oiieiiicieietec e eeeeee e et $ 155952 159,823 130,200 29,623 23
$ 155952 159,823 130,200 29,623 23

(15) Income Taxes

Allocation of federal and state income taxes between current and deferred provisions is as follows:

(Dollars in thousands) 2009 2008 2007
Current
Federal............ et ettt ee oo, $ 5767 4,117 1,969
STALE.....viitieetetetre sttt r st ee s e s es e e e e e et e e 701 691 411
6,468 4,808 2,380
Deferred
FEAEral.........ovimiiiiieee et (1,569) (813) 384
SEAIE...cvvvvetrrceeeetee ettt e st e et s st (260) (201) (149)
(1,829) (1,014) 235
$ 4,639 3,794 2,615

The federal statutory corporate tax rate for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007 was 34%. A reconciliation of
the tax provision based on the statutory corporate rate on pretax income and the provision for taxes as shown in the
accompanying consolidated statements of income is as follows:

(Dollars in thousands) 2009 2008 2007
Income tax eXpense at StAtULOTY FALE................cveerevererereeersrersseessssoseo o $ 4,523 3,738 2,850
Income tax effect of:
Tax-eXemPt METESL........cvovivieeiceeereeeeeee oo oo — 44) (154)
Other tax-eXeMPt INCOME .v...vvvveeveveeereeeeeeeere e esee oo, (448) 407) (370)
State income taxes, net of federal income tax benefits ...................... 291 323 173
OIBET ..t ee et et 273 184 116
Total INCOME AKX EXPENISE......vvveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeereeeeeeeeeee e $ 4,639 3,794 2,615
Effective INCOME taX TALE ... .....voveveeeeeeeeeeee oo 34.87% 34.51% 31.16%



The components of income taxes payable are as follows:

(Dollars in tﬁousands) 2009 2008
Current taxes payable:
FEAETAL ....vcveverevenercricictisa sttt st st $ (387) 189
SLALE «.veeverereeereseeseenessesaeseese st eeteebesre et e s e b e St 1,057 . 774
‘ 670 963
Deferred taxes payable
FAEIAL ..o eeeeeeeeeeeeeeseseseeansraesesessassatsraaeensseesssirabrnrrasaesasssaaananenessesnints 2,324 2,812
SEALE ..veeveverieereerereeesbesreneesse e eenes st ern e b s b s as e b e e st e 337 416
2,661 3,228
TOUAL c.eeeeceeeeereeteeteereesresee st e b essee e sas e e e s bs e b a e b e b e s r ek st et $ 3,331 4,191

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
at December 31, 2009 and 2008 are presented below:

(Dollars in thousands) . 2009 2008
Deferred tax assets:
Premises and eQUIPIIENL ....c.c.c.oiuiiiritimiisnrnisisseese s sse $ 1,009 999
Hawail francChiSe t8X coveerieerereieierieiiiierereeeeeeensseasesseserinesraensasarasessesesencasaes 472 350
Unfunded pension Hability ... 681 1,009
AlLlOWANCE O 10AN LOSSES «eeeeeereeiirirrreeeeirreeresnreresastesesenssrterassnsasesasseassnns 648 359
Impaired asset WIte-dOWN......cuoviiirrieieiniiiite e 1,344 992
4,154 3,709
Deferred tax liabilities:
Net deferred 10AN TEES ...uueiviiiirereireieeeeeeeeirneeeeeesersisartrresesereaisiraseseesessnes ‘ 3,416 3,701
FHLB StOCK diVIAENAS c.eveveeeeeneeiieirveeeerveeseereeesiieesessanrasssessnasssssseessasas 2,557 2,653
Prepaid expense................ eetestestaarerbeabaareat et e e e s bt e R e s s et e ran et st e e nabs 365 433
Premiums On 10aNS SO ..eeiiiiiiiiiiirreeeeeeeiirreeeeeeecsrainrssseessassnarssesssessnans 477 150
6,815 6,937
Net deferred tax HabilitiES ......ocveevueervereereeriisirsresnresssssaeeseesseenas $ (2,661 (3,228)

In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is more likely than not that some portion or
all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation
of future taxable income during the periods in which those temporary differences become deductible. Management considers the
scheduled reversal of deferred tax liabilities, projected future taxable income, and tax planning strategies in making this
assessment. Based upon the level of historical taxable income and projections for future taxable income over the periods in
which the deferred tax assets are deductible, management believes it is more likely than not the Company will realize the
benefits of these deductible differences. The amount of the deferred tax assets considered realizable, however, could be reduced
in the near term if estimates of future taxable income are reduced. There was no valuation allowance for deferred tax assets as of
December 31, 2009 and 2008.

(16) Subordinated Debentures

As of December 31, 2008, the Company had three wholly owned trust subsidiaries, Territorial Savings Statutory Trust I,
Territorial Savings Statutory Trust 11, and Territorial Savings Statutory Trust I11. The trusts issued a total of $24.0 million of
trust preferred securities. The proceeds from the issuance of the trust preferred securities, along with cash from the initial trust
capitalizations, were used to invest in $24.7 million of the Company’s convertible junior subordinated debentures.

In September 2009, the Company paid off the $24.7 million of subordinated debentures using part of the proceeds received from
the issuance of common stock in its conversion from a mutual holding company to a stock holding company. As part of the
transaction, unamortized discounts of $507,000 related to the subordinated debt issuance were written off as a loss on
extinguishment of debt. Concurrent with the payoff of the subordinated debentures, all the trust preferred securities issued by the
trusts were retired and the trusts were terminated.
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(17) Employee Benefit Plans

The Company has a noncontributory defined benefit pension plan (Pension Plan) that covers substantially all employees with at
least one year of service. The benefits are based on years of service and the employees’ compensation during the service period.
The Company’s policy is to accrue the actuarially determined pension costs and to fund pension costs within regulatory
guidelines. The Company reviews its assumptions on an annual basis and makes modifications to the assumptions based on
current rates and trends when it is appropriate to do so. The effect of modifications to those assumptions is recorded in
accumulated other comprehensive income (AOCI) beginning in 2006 and amortized to net periodic benefit cost over future
periods using the corridor method. The Company believes that the assumptions utilized in recording its obligations under the
plans are reasonable based on its experience and market conditions.

In addition, the Company sponsors a Supplemental Employee Retirement Plan (SERP), a noncontributory supplemental
retirement benefit plan, which covers certain current and former employees of the Company for amounts in addition to those
provided under the defined pension plan.

The following table sets forth the status of the Pension Plan and SERP at the dates indicated:

Pension Plan SERP
December 31

(Dollars in thousands) 2009 2008 2009 2008
Accumulated benefit obligation at end of IS | RO $ 10,004 9,370 -~ 6,609 5,722
Change in projected benefit obligation:

Benefit obligation at beginning of year............cocoeovoereeeroreo, $ 9,370 9,925 5,722 4,960

SETVICE COSE...oumiiiieririiier et e e e , 61 596 596 511

INEETEST COSE.......eieriieiiiiei e 589 588 - - 308 268

Actuarial (ZAIN) L0SS.......ovovieiiiieeeeeeeee oo 214 (483) — —_

Benefits Paid ........ocoviiieiic e (230) (221) a7n a7

CUTtailMeNtS.......ovoveieiee e — (1,035) - —

Benefit obligation at end of VEAL weeteeerareneertreeeeeeetereeeeeenenemeeesesenensoes 10,004 9,370 6,609 5,722
Change in plan assets:

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year.................coooo.o........ 8,561 9,014 — —

Actual Teturn on plan @SSEtS .........ooovvuveeovmeeeeooeeeoeeeeeeooeoeoo 1,595 (1,432) — —

Employer contributions................o.coovoveoeoeeeeeeeeeoooeoo — 1,200 17 17

Benefits paid.................... e bttt e et e e e e e te e s senaeeeeeeraeeaann (230) 221 a7n a7

Fair value-of plan assets at-end of year.............co.ocooooovevvovooi 9,926 8,561 — —
Funded status at €nd Of YEar...........ococooooveueeeeemooeeeeeeeeeoeoeiee $ (78) (809) (6,609) (5,722)
Amounts recbgnized in the consolidated balance sheets: , .

Accounts payable and accrued expenses.............oooenn........ $ (78)  (809) (6,609) (5,722)

Liability ............ TR UOORN: SN $ (78) (809) - (6,609) (5,722)

Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive loss: , :
Net actuarial 10SS .........ooveovemeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeoeeeoeeoe $ 1,764 2,525 — —
PriOr SEIVICE COSt...o.viiiiieieieiecieeee e, — — — L=

Accumulated cther comprehensive loss, before tax..... $ 1,764 2,525 = —
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The following table sets forth the changes recognized in accumulated other comprehensive loss at the dates indicated:

Pension benefits

" Year ended December 31

(Dollars in thousands) 2009 2008
Accumulated other comprehensive loss at beginning of year, before tax ........ $ 2,525 2,033
Actuarial net (gain) loss arising during the period ........cceoevnviniiinininicenns (712) 621
Amortizations (recognized in net periodic benefit cost):

ACTUATIAL LOSS 1eeeeeeririieierreeeeeiiriaeeeaetereneersssbreesesstntsanstnnessaseeesennssiessnns (49) (110)

PriOr SEIVICE COSE .uvveiieirrreeeieieieereieeerreresssiresessitteessestsnesssseseesssnesssssnnes — (19)

Total recognized in other comprehensive inComMe.......c..coevvvvenen. (761) 492

Accumulated other comprehensive loss at end of year, before tax .................. $ 1,764 2,525

For the fiscal years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, the following weighted average assumptions were used to determine
benefit obligations at the end of the fiscal years:

Pension benefits SERP
Year ended December 31,
2009 2008 2009 2008
Assumptions used to determine the fiscal year-end benefit obligations:
DIASCOUNE TALE ...vevveevrierreerraensereeeresresssseseenstenssssasssassasessesaessnnasisssasrsans 6.20% 6.30% 5.03% 5.04%
Rate of COmPEnsation INCIEASE. .......eveevirerrrerieerereeneiriiinisne s N/A 4.00 5.00% 5.00

The Company does not expect any plan assets to be returned to the Company during calendar year 2010.
The dates used to determine retirement measurements for the Pension Plan were December 31, 2009 and 2008.

The defined benefit retirement plan assets primarily consist of equity and debt securities. The Company’s asset allocations at
December 31, 2009 and 2008, by asset category, are as follows:

2009 2008
EQUILY SECUIILIES ....vuvuvaieerieseisesssesss st b 28.71% 29.50%
BOMNAS ..ot er et eas et e st et ettt e st e e bbb s b sa st e 34.68% 38.40
Cash and money market funds ... 36.61% 32.10
TOLAL 1vreeevereeeeee ettt eveeteebeseseas b e et e se s e e e sa s b s R e e s e s ettt res 100.00% 100.00%

The Company’s investment strategy for the defined benefit retirement plan is to maintain a consistent rate of return with primary
emphasis on capital appreciation and secondary emphasis on income to enhance the purchasing power of the plan’s assets over
the long-term and to preserve capital. The investment policy establishes a target allocation for each asset class that is reviewed
periodically and rebalanced when considered appropriate. Normal target allocations at December 31, 2009 were 53% domestic
equity securities, 12% international equity securities and 35% bonds. Equity securities primarily include investment in exchange
traded funds and large-cap, mid-cap and small-cap mutual funds. Fixed income securities include U.S. Treasuries, mortgage-
backed securities and corporate bonds of companies in diversified industries. Other types of investments include money market
mutual funds and savings accounts opened with the Company.

As of December 31, 2009, the Pension Plan’s assets measured at fair Value were classified as follows:

Fair value of measurements at report date using:

Quoted prices Significant
in active other Significant
markets for observable unobservable
December 31, identical assets inputs inputs

Assets: 2009 (Level 1). (Level 2) (Level 3)
CASH ceereereseeeeeeeeeereresasasasesesiaeassssnsessss s beseresanenemaestssenstenibes $ 950 $ 950. $ — % —
Money market funds..........coooieiineneii 1,564 1,564 — —
Mutual funds () ..ooeeeveverecereniene e 7,412 7,412 — —
TOCAL «onveveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeae et e e eesaenes et aseseeeebene e e sssassnnae s renan $ 9,926 $ 9,926 $ — 3 —




(a)  This category includes mutual funds that invest in stocks and fixed income securities. The mutual fund managers have the
ability to change the amounts invested in stocks and bonds depending on their investment outlook.

Estimated future benefit payments reflecting expected future service at December 31, 2009 are as folows:

Pension

(Dollars in thousands) - benefits SERP

2000ttt e e e eeeeeeeeeee oo $ 388 17
20T T et ee oo eeeeeeeeee oo 467 375
2002t e e oo e oo 505 648
2003 et eeoeeen 514 648
20T ettt e e et 543 648
2015 = 2009 ottt e 3,236 3,472

$ 5,653 5,808

For the fiscal years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007, the following weighted average assumptions were used to
determine net periodic benefit cost for the fiscal years shown:

Pension benefits SERP
Year ended December 31
(Dollars in thousands) 2009 2008 2007 2009 2008 2007
Assumptions used to determine the net periodic benefit cost:
DISCOUNE TALE ..ottt 6.30% 6.00% 6.00% 5.01% 5.02% 6.50%
Expected return on plan assets ..............cecoeeeeeeereerevereverereo. 8.00 8.00 8.00 — — —
Rate of compensation increase .............o.oooeeeeeeeereoreereereeee 4.00 4.00 3.00 5.00 5.00 5.00

The components of net periodic benefit cost were as follows:

Pension benefits SERP
Year ended December 31
(Dollars in thousands) 2009 2008 2007 2009 2008 2007
Net periodic benefit cost for the year:
SEIVICE COSE...vuiviiiiciecieeci et ettt ee e e $ 61 596 515 596 511 405
INEEIESE COSE ...t 589 588 520 308 268 297
Expected return on plan aSSets ...........ooweueeovmreveeeoeoeoeeoeeooeoeeooeooo (669) (706) (640) — — —
Amortization of Prior SErVICe COSt.......ovviuiummieoreeeeeeereeeeeseeso, — 3 1 — — —
Recognized actuarial 10SS .........o.cueveveieivieiaeeeeeee e ee e, 49 110 112 — — —
Recognized curtailment 10SS..........c.ovocvveimeoeeeeieeeeeseeeee e, — 16 — — .= —
Net periodic benefit COSt ........oeurreiciverirniiieeee e $ 30 607 508 904 - 779 702

The estimated prior service cost and net actuarial loss that will be amortized from AOCI into net periodic pension benefit cost in
2010 are $0 and $21,832, respectively.

The expected return on plan assets is based on the weighted-average long-term rates of return for the types of assets held in the
plan. The expected return on plan assets is adjusted when there is a change in the expected long-term rate of return or in the
composition of assets held in the plan.

On November 4, 2008, the Board of Directors approved changes to the Company’s defined benefit pension plan. Effective
December 31, 2008, there will be no further accrual of benefits for any participants, and benefits will not increase with any
additional years of service. Employees already enrolled in the Pension Plan as of December 31, 2008 will be 100% vested if
they have at least five years of service. For employees with less than five years of service, vesting would occur at the
employee’s five-year anniversary date,

Based on actuarial calculations, the Company is not expected to make a contribution to the defined benefit pension plan in 2010.
The Company expects to make a $17,000 contribution to the SERP in 2010 to cover actual benefit payments.
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The Company also has a 401(k) defined contribution plan and profit sharing plan covering all employees after one year of
service. The 401(k) plan provides for employer matching contributions, as determined by the Company, based on a percentage
of employees’ contributions subject to a maximum amount defined in the plan agreement. The Company’s 401(k) matching
contributions, based on 10% of employees’ contributions for 2009 and 15% for 2008, and 2007, amounted to $89,595,

$0.1 million, and $0.1 million, respectively. The Company contributes an amount determined by the board of directors to the
profit sharing plan. No contributions were made to the profit sharing plan for year ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007.

(18) Employee Stock Ownership Plan

Effective January 1, 2009, Territorial Savings Bank adopted an Employee Stock Ownership Plan (ESOP) for eligible
employees. The ESOP borrowed $9.8 million from the Company and used those funds to acquire 978,650 shares or 8% of the
total number of shares issued by the Company in its initial public offering. The shares were acquired at a price of $10.00 per
share.

The loan is secured by the shares purchased with the loan proceeds and will be repaid by the ESOP over the 20-year term of the
Joan with funds from Territorial Savings Bank’s contributions to the ESOP and dividends payable on stock. The interest rate on
the ESOP loan is an adjustable rate equal to the prime rate, as published in The Wall Street Journal. The interest rate will adjust
annually and will be the prime rate on the first business day of the calendar year.

Shares purchased by the ESOP will be held by a trustee in an unallocated suspense account, and shares will be released annually
from the suspense account on a pro-rata basis as principal and interest payments are made by the ESOP to the Company. The
trustee will allocate the shares released among participants on the basis of each participant’s proportional share of compensation
relative to all participants. As shares are committed to be released from the suspense account, Territorial Savings Bank reports
compensation expense based on the average fair value of shares released with a corresponding credit to stockholders’ equity.
The committed to be released shares are considered outstanding for earnings per share computations. Compensation expense
recognized for the year ended December 31, 2009 amounted to $792,000.

Shares held by the ESOP trust at December 31, 2009 were as follows:

ALLOCALEA SHATES.....e. e eeeeeeeereeeeererieasieisteeessaessssrnsaeesesesssanesesesensrassirassnnaasensessies 48,933
UNEAINEA SHATES.....eeeeeeeeeeererreeeeiesiesrinreasesesassssseteeesesaomassurestesesssiararsnsaasaasesessss 929,717
TOtAl ESOP SHATES ...uvveveveeeeeieaeeerteesscoistreereseesersssseesteeeeeesasssssrarnsnsaessssenssransacs 978,650

Fair value of unearned shares, in thousands ........cccoecevviviemrernininienennieeeeen. $ 16,781

The ESOP restoration plan is a non-qualified plan that provides supplemental benefits to certain executives who are prevented
from receiving the full benefits contemplated by the employee stock ownership plan’s benefit formula. The supplemental cash
payments consist of payments representing shares that cannot be allocated to the participants under the ESOP due to IRS
limitations imposed on tax-qualified plans. We accrue for these benefits over the period during which employees provide
services to earn these benefits. At December 31, 2009 and 2008, we had accrued $111,526 and $0, respectively for the ESOP
restoration plan.

(19) Earnings Per Share

The table below presents the information used to compute basic earnings per share for the year ended December 31, 2009. The
Company has no dilutive potential common shares for the year ended December 31, 2009. Because the mutual to stock
conversion was not completed until July 10, 2009, per share earnings data is not presented for the year ended December 31,
2008.

For the year ended

(Dollars in thousands, except per share data) December 31, 2009

Basic
Earnings: :
NEE ITICOIIE +evenveeeeneeeeetesveeereeseeseseansesessesesetasesseesassressansasens $ 8,664
SATES . veenveieiiieietie ettt eerieessreesieera s sereeenbesesua e e s e e te e e e s b e e st
Weighted average common shares outstanding (1) ........... 11,279,716
Net income per common share, basic (1) ...o.cooevvinniiiini $ 0.77

ey

Calculated from the effective date of July 10, 2009 to the year end
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(20) Commitments
(a) Loan Commitments

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of any terms or
conditions established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses and
may require payment of a fee. Since commitments may expire without being drawn upon, the total commitment amounts
do not necessarily represent future cash requirements. The Company evaluates each customer’s creditworthiness on an
individual basis. The Company’s policy is to require suitable collateral, primarily real estate, to be provided by customers
prior to disbursement of approved loans. At December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Company had loan commitments
aggregating $10.1 million (interest rates from 4.375% to 5.75%) and $8.3 million (interest rates from 4.25% to 7.00%),
respectively, primarily consisting of fixed-rate residential first mortgage loans.

(b) Lease Commitments

The Company leases a majority of its premises under operating leases expiring on various dates through 2020. Total rental
expense comprised minimum rentals of $2.4 million, $2.2 million, and $2.0 million for the years ended December 31,
2009, 2008, and 2007, respectively.

At December 31, 2009, future minimum rental commitments under all noncancelable operating leases are as follows:

(Dollars in thousands)

2000 e e $ 2,165
20T et 2,164
2002 1ttt et e e 1,817
2003 1 ettt et 1,137 .
20T4 oot e 979
TRETEATTET ..ottt 2,230

$ 10,492

Certain leases are renegotiable during the period of the lease or have renewal options at the expiration of the lease term.
The majority of lease agreements relate to real estate and generally provide that the Company pay taxes, maintenance,
insurance, and certain other operating expenses applicable to the leased premises.

In addition, the Company leases to a tenant certain property that it owns. Future minimum rental income for this
noncancelable lease is as follows: ,

(Dollars in thousands)

2000 1o e $ 80
20T et e 80
2002 et 80
2003 et e 80
2004 o 80
TRETEALET ...t 1,360

$ 1,760
Rental income comprised of minimum rentals for 2009, 2008, and 2007 was approximately $80,000 per year.

(c) Reserve Requirements

The Company is requiréd by the Federal Reserve Bank to maintain reserves based on the amount of deposits held. The
reserve requirements at December 31, 2009 and 2008 were $.9 million and $.5 million, respectively, and the Company
met such requirements.

(21) Regulatory Capital and Supervision
(a) Financial Institutions Reform, Recovery, and Enforcement Act (FIRREA)

Under the provisions of FIRREA, the Bank is required to meet a minimum 4.0% leverage (core) capital ratio, a minimum
regulatory tangible capital equal to 1.5% of adjusted total assets, an 8.0% risk-based capital ratio, and a 4.0% tier 1 risk-
based capital ratio.
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At December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Bank’s core, tangible, risk-based, and tier 1 risk-based capital exceeded the
minimum required regulatory capital ratios as follows:

Required Actual Excess over

(Dollars in thousands) Amount Percentage Amount Percentage requirement
December 31, 2009: '

Core (Tier 1) capital ..o eeeneene $ 55,636 4.00% $ 190,078 13.67% $ 134,442

Tangible capital ........ccooeiionennnie i 20,863 1.50 190,078 13.67 169,215

Risk-based capital .......ccoovvmiiiiiminnieiie 41,260 8.00 191,759 37.18 150,499

Tier 1 risk-based capital ...........ocemevenincnienininnn 20,630 4.00 190,078 36.85 169,448
December 31, 2008:

Core (Tier 1) capital ..........c...... ereeereeeeeeeteestee e $ 48,896 4.00% $ 120928 9.89% $ 72,032

Tangible capital..........ooeeirieieininiennciie 18,336 1.50 120,928 9.89 102,592

Risk-based capital .......cooeieiiinienininnneiii s 38,985 8.00 121,678 24.97 82,693

Tier 1 risk-based capital ..........cooeviiiminieioniniiiiinns 19,492 4.00 120,928 24.82 101,436

The following is a reconciliation of Bank equity to regulatory capital:

2009 2008

BANK EQUILY «.voeeeeeersireesieeisisiesmses st $ 189,188 119,587
TNEANGIDIE ASSELS ...evvevereririirrrrtiieietess st (169) (188)
MINOTILY TIEETESE..vveveceieeaciirerasrsrisses et — 13
Accumulated other comprehensive 108S . ....oovvieeeeiinimne 1,059 1,516

Core and tangible capital ... 190,078 120,928
Allowance for loan losses — general..........cooiiievnnnoiniinee 1,681 750

Regulatory risk-based capital — computed.......ovvvmmnineieanincnes $ 191 ,759 121,678

(b) Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation Improvement Act (FDICIA)

FDICIA was signed into law and regulations implementing the Prompt Corrective Action provisions of FDICIA became
effective on December 19, 1992. In addition to the Prompt Corrective Action requirements, FDICIA includes significant
changes to the legal and regulatory environment for insured depository institutions, including reductions in insurance
coverage for certain kinds of deposits; increased supervision by the federal regulatory agencies; increased reporting
requirements for insured institutions; and new regulations concerning internal controls, accounting, and operations.

The Prompt Corrective Action provisions define specific capital categories based on an institution’s capital ratios.
However, the regulators may impose higher minimum capital standards on individual institutions or may downgrade an
institution from one capital category to a lower category because of safety and soundness concerns. Failure to meet
minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory and possible additional discretionary actions by regulators
that, if undertaken, could have a direct material effect on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

The Prompt Corrective Action provisions impose certain restrictions on institutions that are undercapitalized. The
restrictions imposed become increasingly more severe as an institution’s capital category declines from “undercapitalized”
to “critically undercapitalized.”

At December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Bank’s core, tangible, Tier 1/risk-based, and total risk-based ratios exceeded the
minimum capital thresholds for a “well-capitalized” institution. There are no conditions or events that management
believes have changed the institution’s category under the capital guidelines.

The Bank is required to notify Office of Thrift Supervision (OTS) when dividends are paid to the parent company.

(22) Contingencies

The Company is involved in various claims and legal actions arising out of the ordinary course of business. In the opinion of
management, the ultimate disposition of these matters will not have a material adverse effect on the Company’s consolidated
balance sheets.
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(23) Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures topic of the FASB ASC defines fair value and the methods used for measuring
fair value as well as requiring additional disclosures. Various amendments to the topic (a) delayed to January 1, 2009 the
effective date of the parts of the topic related to nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities, except for items that are
recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on a recurring basis (at least annually); (b) clarified the
application of the topic in a market that is not active; and (c) provided guidelines for making fair value measurements more -
consistent with the principles presented in the topic when the volume and level of activity for assets or liabilities have
significantly decreased. We adopted all the provisions of Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures standard on January 1,
2009.

In accordance with the Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures topic, the Company groups its financial assets and liabilities at
fair value into three levels based on the markets in which the financial assets and liabilities are traded and the reliability of the
assumptions used to determine fair value as follows:

* Level 1 — Valuation is based upon quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities traded in active markets. A
quoted price in an active market provides the most reliable evidence of fair value and shall be used to measure fair value
whenever available. ’

* Level 2 — Valuation is based upon quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets, quoted prices for identical or
similar instruments in markets that are not active, and model-based valuation techniques for which all significant
assumptions are observable in the market.

* Level 3 — Valuation is generated from model-based techniques that use significant assumptions not observable in the market.
These unobservable assumptions reflect management’s own estimates of assumptions that market participants would use in
pricing the asset or liability. Valuation techniques include use of discounted cash flow models and similar techniques that
require the use of significant judgment or estimation.

In accordance with the Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures topic, the Company bases its fair values on the price that it
would expect to receive if an asset were sold or pay to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date. Also as required, the Company maximizes the use of observable inputs and minimizes the use of
unobservable inputs when developing fair value measurements. ‘

The Company uses fair value measurements to determine fair value disclosures. Investment securities held for sale and
derivatives are recorded at fair value on a recurring basis. From time to time, the Company may be required to record other
financial assets at fair value on a nonrecurring basis, such as loans held for sale, impaired loans and investments, and mortgage
servicing assets. These nonrecurring fair value adjustments typically involve application of the lower of cost or fair value
accounting or write-downs of individual assets.

Cash, Accrued Interest Receivable, Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses, Current Income Taxes Payable, and Advance
Payments by Borrowers for Taxes and Insurance. The carrying amount approximates fair value because of the short maturity
of these instruments.

Investment Securities. The fair values for investment securities were based on quoted market prices, if available, and were
classified as Level 1. If quoted market prices were not available, the valuation for investment securities utilized pricing models
that varied based on asset class and included trade, bid and other observable market information. Securities priced using this
information were classified as Level 2.

Our pooled trust preferred securities are collateralized debt obligations secured by trust preferred securities issued primarily by
banks and bank holding companies in the United States. The trust preferred securities market is considered to be inactive since
there have been only five sales transactions of similar rated securities over the past 12 months and no new issues of pooled trust
preferred securities have occurred since 2007, the fair value of our trust preferred securities was determined using a discounted
cash flow analysis. The assumptions used in the discounted cash flow analysis included the following: estimated discount rates
based on yields of comparably traded instruments adjusted for illiquidity and other risk factors, estimated deferral and default
rates on collateral, and estimated cash flows. The discounted cash flow analysis included a review of all issuers within each
collateral pool and incorporated higher deferral and default rates in the cash flow projections over the next two years and a
forecast of lower deferral and default rates in later years.

The fair value of our trust preferred securities was determined by considering a range of fair value estimates provided by an
independent third-party pricing service and using a discounted cash flow analysis prepared by management. The primary .
difference between the fair value estimate prepared by the pricing service and our discounted cash flow analysis is the discount
rate. As of December 31, 2009, we utilized the yield on similarly rated high yield corporate bonds issued by banks plus a credit
and liquidity premium of 4.69% to arrive at a risk-adjusted discount rate of 18.72%. Management estimated the fair value of
PreTSL XXIII to be $3.74 per $100 of par value. Our pricing service used a discount rate of 21.00% for Pre TSL XXIIIL. The
pricing service provided fair value estimates of $2.41 per $100 of par value for PreTSL XXIII. Management considered the
range of fair value estimates and assigned the pricing service’s estimate of fair value a 70% weight and our discounted cash flow
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estimate a 30% weight. We gave a greater weighting to the pricing service’s fair value estimate because of their experience in
these matters as an independent third-party service provider. The fair value estimates provided by the pricing service and
management’s discounted cash flow analysis resulted in a weighted fair value estimate of $2.81 per $100 of par value for
PreTSL XXIII and $0.00 per $100 of par value for PreTSL XXIV. The fair value of the trust preferred securities are classified as
Level 3 inputs because they are based on discounted cash flow models.

FHLB Stock. FHLB stock, which is redeemable for cash at par value, is reported at its par value.

Loans. The fair value of loans is estimated by discounting the future cash flows using the current rates at which similar loans
would be made to borrowers with similar credit ratings and for the same remaining maturities.

Short-Term Investments. The fair value of short-term investments is estimated by discounting the future cash flows using the
rates currently offered for investments with similar remaining maturities.

Deposits. The fair value of checking and Super NOW savings accounts, passbook accounts, and certain money market deposits
is the amount payable on demand at the reporting date. The fair value of fixed-maturity certificates of deposit is estimated by
discounting future cash flows using the rates currently offered for deposits with similar remaining maturities.

Advances from the FHLB and Securities Sold under Agreements to Repurchase. Fair value is estimated by discounting future
cash flows using the rates currently offered to the Company for debt with similar remaining maturities.

Subordinated Debentures. Fair value is estimated by discounting future cash flows using the rates currently offered to the
Company for debt of similar remaining maturities adjusted for nonperformance, credit, and liquidity risks.

The estimated fair values of the Company’s financial instruments are as follows:

2009 2008

Carrying Estimated Carrying Estimated

(Dollars in thousands) amount fair value amount fair value
Assets
S oo e e et e e e re st ar et e e ee e b abaraaa e e e et eretataes e bbb nsanraees $ 135,953 135,953 11,216 11,216
Investment securities held t0 MAtUrity ........ccovvriiimniiiencninicnennenns 598,394 606,269 527,767 535,590
FHLB SEOCK o1t eutereeteeeeeeeeeteeeseeesesaeeieessrasenenseseenssneresssantesessssseesssnes 12,348 12,348 12,348 12,348
L.0aNS NEId TOT SALE .nveveeeiieeiieciiriee e ceieee e e e enetaraee e e eerssannaae s e 1,084 1,084 — —
Loans 1eceivable, NEE .....ovvriivieiirceereeieeaeeesieceeeesieeenseesne s sbe e 597,700 615,858 633,160 641,427
Accrued interest reCeiVable . ..uvviriiieieeireceeee e 4,781 4,781 4,787 4,787
Liabilities

DIEPOSIES -.ervvereeerereresencrerersrsiessses s s bs bbbt $ 1,014,668 1,017,396 923,914 925,951
Advances from the FHLB ......oooiii e — — 35,791 35,798
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase........cocococeevcnninnn 130,200 136,029 115,200 119,860
Subordinated dEDENIUIES .......vvvviieeeeeeeriirreeeeeeeeeereneteeeesennrarereaesenes — _— 24221 7,918
Accounts payable and accrued eXpenses. ..o 18,837 18,837 18,634 18,634
Current income taxes Payable ........oooiiiirimininiennee s 670 . 670 963 963
Advance payments by borrowers for taxes and iNSUrance ............... 2,905 2,905 3,114 3,114

At December 31, 2009 and 2008, neither the commitment fees received on commitments to extend credit nor the fair value
thereof was significant to the consolidated financial statements of the Company.

The table below presents the balance of assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of December 31, 2009 and the
related gains for the year then ended. There were no assets or liabilities measured at fair value as of December 31, 2008.

Total
(Dollars in thousands) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Gains
TILETESE TALE CONIIACES, TIEL ..eeiuvveereeerreeereesreenieeeneesntsararesasreasnaesnreessneesenssssienensrseens $ — 49 — 49 49

The table below presents the balance of assets measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis as of December 31, 2009 and 2008
and the related losses for the years then ended:

Total
(Dollars in thousands) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Losses
December 31, 2009
TINPAITEA JOANS. ..o $ - — 2,668 2,668 182
Trust preferred SECUILIES ... ..ot — — 0 0 3,481
December 31, 2008
Trust preferred SECUITIES ....vuovrriirie et $ - — 998 998 2,483



(24) Parent Company Only
Presented below are the condensed balance sheet, statement of income, and statement of cash flows for Territorial Bancorp Inc.

Condensed Balance Sheet

(Dollars in thousands) December 31, 2009
Assets

CASH e, $ 23,705

Investment in Territorial Savings Bank ..........ocvevveveeeveeeeeeeeeen, 189,176

Prepaid expenses and other assets............o.eveeeeeeeueeeeeeeeesseeseenn) 8,260
TOLAl SBELS ...t e, $ 221,141

Liabilities and Equity

Other Habilities ..............cocvirvrnieiicece e, $ 1,470

BQUILY ..o, 219,671
Total liabilities and €quUity..........c.ccovveveriveeceieeereeeee e, $ 221,141

Condensed Statement of Income

Period from

7/10/09 through
(Dollars in thousands) 12/31/09
Interest and dividend INCOME:...........c.ooevvveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeseeeeeeoo)
Dividends from Territorial Savings Bank ............oevovevvuvvoveoonin $ 6.294
Interest-bearing deposit with Territorial Savings Bank................... 59
Other dividends..........c.cooerueriueriieeeceeeeeee e, 7
Total interest and dividend income............oovoevemoeeoeo, 6,360
INEETESt EXPENSE: ...ttt
Long-term debentures ...............cuoeecueveeieeeceere oo, 206
Total interest eXPense ...........eeeveruevereeeeceeeeeeeeeeee e, 206
NONINEETESt EXPENSE:.......vevrereeeieiececeeecaee e eee oo
SAIATIES ...t 15
Other general and administrative eXpenses..............coocveeervevnnn.... 778
Total NONINtErest EXPENSE ......cvvvvevererreirieieeeeeereseeeeeeeeeessaas 793
Income before income taxes and equity in
undistributed earnings in subsidiaries ..................... 5,361
INCOME LAXES ...outurnieritieeetee ettt e (187)
Income before equity in undistributed earnings in
SUDSIAIATIES ......coveeeeireereiene e 5,548
Equity in undistributed earnings of Territorial Savings Bank, net of
QIVIAENAS......oiicee et (1,786)
NEL INCOME ..ottt $ 3,762
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Condensed Statement of Cash Flows

Period from

7/10/09 through
(Dollars in thousands) 12/31/09
Cash flows from operating activities:
INEE INICOTTIE e eeeeeeseeeeesseteesaeeeeemeeaassesnseeasesansnesabaeaseeesneeannnsarnnnnes $ 3,762
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash used in operating
activities:
Equity in undistributed earnings of Territorial Savings
Bank, net of dividends ..o 1,786
Amortization of fees, discounts and premiums ...........cocceveen 5
Loss on extinguishment of debt..........oooiiniin 507
ESOP EXPEIISE .vvveeenrenereereceeaninieereinesaisssssseteresnesenssissrnaneases 792
Net increase in prepaid expenses and other assets................. (3,934)
Net decrease in other Habilities........cccoovveiimniiiininnnriininennnns (2,154)
Net cash provided by operating activities .................... 764
Cash flows from investing activities:
Investment in Territorial Savings Bank .........coooniiniinnnnn 61,171)
Net cash used in investing aCtiVities......ooeeervvieeninicninniniinns (61,171)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Repayment of subordinated debt........ooorviii (24,744)
Proceeds from issuance of common stock, net of cost........ccoene 108,856
Net cash provided by financing activities.........cocvrvevinnnenens 84,112
Net Increase in CaSh.....ooviovrviieiereee it s s siinneee 23,705
Cash at beginning of the period ..o —
Cash at end of the Period ........cooevercreeiiinie et $ 23,705

Supplemental disclosure of noncash financing activities:
During July 2009, the Company loaned $9.8 million to the
Employee Stock Ownership Plan, which was used to acquire
978,650 shares of the Company’s common stock. The loan is
secured by the shares purchased and is shown as Unearned
ESOP shares in the consolidated balance sheets. ..o
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(25) Unaudited Quarterly Financial Information

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Full Year
(Doliars in thousands, except per share data)

2009:

Interest and dividend INCOME. ........oveveeoeeeeeeeeeieeeeeeeoeeooo $ 15720 $ 14964 $ 15303 $ 15538 $ 61,525
INTETEST EXPEISE . cvvvieeeeeeeeee e 5,342 5,371 4,917 4,354 19,984
Net interest INCOME.......vvvveieieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeoeeeeeeeeeoeoeoeoeoeoeoooo 10,378 9,593 10,386 11,184 41,541
Provision for 10an 10SSES...........oovouevoreeoeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeoeoeeooo 1,102 — 10 86 1,198
Net interest income after provision for loan 108Ses...........ooooovooooooni 9,276 9,593 10,376 11,098 40,343
NODIALEIESt INCOMC.ov.vvveveeeeeeeeeeee e oo 1,497 1,117 (1,426) 1,317 2,505
INOTINEEIESE EXPEISC. vuvuvererereeeeeeee oo e 6,635 7,363 7,896 7,651 29,545
Income before iNCOME tAXES ........ocoveveveeeeeeereeeeoeooeeeeeoeoee 4,138 3,347 1,054 4,764 13,303
INCOME TAXES ...ttt 1,467 1,092 325 1,755 4,639
NELINCOMIE ...ttt 2,671 2,255 729 3,009 8,664
Basic earnings per SNare (1)...........ooveveeevoeeeereeeeeeeeeoeoeoeoeeeoooo N/A N/A .06 27 77

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Full Year
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

2008:

Interest and dividend inCOmMe...........oooovevreeoroeeoeeooooe $ 14940 $ 15222 $ 15519 $ 15539 $ 61 ,220
INEEIESt @XPEIISE cvovveveteecreeeeeeeeeeetee e 7,031 6,272 , 6,023 5,921 25,247
NEtINtErest iNCOME ...uvuvuevriiieeeeeeeereee oo 7,909 8,950 9,496 9,618 35,973
Provision for 10an 10SSES. ..........voveveeeeee oo 6 2) (13) 158 149
Net interest income after provision for 10an 10SS€S.........oooovevvvevoon 7,903 8,952 9,509 9,460 35,824
NODINIETESt INCOIIE ...t eee e 1,160 1,256 1,181 (1,424) 2,173
NONINLEIESE EXPEIISC. cvvevevrttieieceeeeceeeee e e eeseses oo oo 6,329 6,579 6,969 7,126 27,003
Income before INCOME tAXES ........oiomeveeeveeeeeoeeooeoooeoo 2,734 3,629 3,721 910 10,994
TACOME TAXES ... ettt eee oo 921 1,301 1,335 237 3,794
NELINCOME ... 1,813 2,328 2,386 673 7,200
Basic earnings per SRAre ..........coo.vvevivceiveieeceeeeeee oo N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

(1) Calculated from the effective date of July 10, 2009 to the period end

(26) Subsequent Events
On February 5, 2010, the Board of Directors of Territorial Bancorp approved a quarterly cash dividend of $.05 per share of
common stock. The dividend was paid on March 5, 2010 to stockholders of record as of February 19, 2010.

ITEM 9. Changes In and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

ITEM 9A. Controls and Procedures
Not applicable.

ITEM 9A(T). Controls and Procedures

(a) An evaluation was performed under the supervision and with the participation of the Company’s management, including the
Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer and the Senior Vice President and Treasurer, of the effectiveness of the
design and operation of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) promulgated under the
Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended) as of December 31, 2009. Based on that evaluation, the Company’s management,
including the Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer and the Senior Vice President and Treasurer, concluded
that the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures were effective.

During the quarter ended December 31, 2009, there have been no changes in the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting.

85



(b) Management’s annual report on internal control over financial reporting.

This annual report does not include management’s report on internal control over financial reporting or an attestation report of

the Company’s registered public accounting firm regarding internal control over financial reporting due to a transition period

established by. rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission for newly-public companies.

ITEM 9B. Other Information
None. - ’ ’
PART III
ITEM 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

- Directors and Executive Officers

~ Our Board of Directors is comprised of six members. Our Bylaws provide that Directors are divided into three classes, with one
class of Directors elected annually. Our Directors are generally elected to serve for a three-year period and until their respective
successors shall have been elected and shall qualify. Our Officers are generally appointed to serve for a one-year period and until their

respective successors have been chosen.

The table below sets forth certain information regarding our Board of Directors and Executive Officers who are not Directors,

including the terms of office of board members.

- : Current ° Shares
o Position(s) Held With Age Director Term . Beneficially Percent
Name ) ~ Territorial Bancorp Inc. (¢)) . Since (2) Expires Owned (3) of Class
) DIRECTORS
Allan S. Kitagawa.........iiiieenencns Chairman of the Board, President :
L : and Chief Executive Officer.... = 64 1986 2012 60,151(4) *
Kirk W. Caldwell.......ccccoeverviinnnnne. DATECHOT wvevveeeeeeeererveeveesvessaensnens 57 2007 2010 9,236 *
Howard Y. Ikeda.....ocoeeeereneriinnnnnne. DHICCEOT vneveeeeeeeeeeeereenreeserenseesnenns 64 1988 2011 34,300(5) *
David S. Murakami (6) .....cocccevevvens DATECIOT o enveeeveeeeeeeeervesseeesreensesseenes 70 2006 2011 10,900(7) *
Richard I. Murakami (6) ........c.coeeon. DHIECHOT eviuecvenvermsrarasesssssssssnens 82 1981 2012 10,000 B
Harold H. Ohama................ [N . Director....... eeeesererareneaseseeeraarraenes 74 1996 2010 10,000 *
EXECUTIVE OFFICERS
WHO ARE NOT DIRECTORS
Vernon Hirata ..........ccoeieeseeeenennnnin. - Vice Chairman; Co-Chief
Operating Officer, General
Counsel and Corporate o ‘ ‘ '
S SECIEMATY ...cveve ercererenserensnsernes 57 ~50,006(8) *
Ralph Y. Nakatsuka .........ccccceuerreencee Vice Chairman and Co-Chief , K ‘ :
, ‘ Operating Officer ..........coouruen: - 54 : 50,000 *
Karen J. COX ..ovvvriiveerenereeeeennenens Senior Vice President- o '
' Administration............ceeeeeeien. 64 ' 12,684(9) *
Richard K.C. Lau.....ccccccvririnirvinnnnen. Senior Vice President and Chief '
: Lending Officer........cocoesveneneee 67 - 31 ,920(10) *
Melvin M. Miyamoto...........ceveessenene ~ Senior Vice President and - o
, TICASULET v.vvveveemencererreresnraesnses ‘56 ) ’ 12,784(11) o
All Directors and Executive Officers as a Group (11 persons) ....cc........... : , . 291,981 2.39%

* Less than 1%.

(1)  As of December 31, 2009. : )
(2) Includes services with Territorial Savings Bank.
(3)  As of December 31,2009. i

(4) Includes 25,151 shares held through the Territorial Savings Bank Profit Sharing and 401(k) Plan and 10,000 shares held by

Mr. Kitagawa’s spouse.
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(5) Includes 3,200 shares held by an individual retirement account, 6,100 shares held by Mr. Ikeda’s spouse’s individual retirement
account, 10,000 shares held as trustee and 4,000 held jointly with Mr. Ikeda’s child.

(6) - ‘David S. Murakami and Richard I. Murakami are not related. '

(7)  Includes 900 shares held jointly by David S. Murakami’s spouse and his children. ' :

(8)  Represents 34,406 shares held through the Territorial Savings Bank Profit Sharing and 401(k) Plan and 15,600 shares held in
trust. :

(9) Represents shares held through the Territorial Savings Bank Profit Sharing and 401(k) Plan. -

(10) Includes 10,420 shares held through the Territorial Savings Bank Profit Sharing and 401(k) Plan and 1,500 shares held by a
corporation.

(11) Represents shares held through the Territorial Savings Bank Profit Sharing and 401 (k) Plan.

The Business Background of Our Directors and Executive Oﬁ‘iéers

The business experience for the past five years of each of our directors and executive officers is set forth bélow. The biographies
of each of the nominees and continuing board members below contain information regarding the person’s business experience and the
experiences, qualifications, attributes or skills that caused the Nominating Committee and the Board of Directors to determine that the
person should serve as a director. Each director is also a director of Territorial Savings Bank. Unless otherwise indicated, directors and

executive officers have held their positions for the past five years.

All of the nominees and directors continuing in office are long-time residents of the communities served by Territorial Bancorp
Inc. and its subsidiaries and many of such individuals have operated, or currently operate, businesses located in such communities. As
a result, each nominee and director continuing in office has significant knowledge of the businesses that operate in Territorial Bancorp
Inc.’s market area, an understanding of the general real estate market, values and trends in such communities and an understanding of
the overall demographics of such communities. Additionally, as residents of such communities, each nominee and continuing director
has direct knowledge of the trends and developments occurring in such communities. As the holding company for a community
banking institution, Territorial Bancorp Inc. believes that the local knowledge and expetience of its directors assists Territorial
Bancorp Inc. in assessing the credit and banking needs of its customers, developing products and services to better serve its customers
and assessing the risks inherent in its lending operations, and provides Territorial Bancorp Inc. with greater business development
opportunities. As local residents, our nominees and directors are also exposed to the advertising, product offerings and community .
development efforts of competing institutions which, in turn, assists Territorial Bancorp Inc. in structuring its marketing efforts and
community outreach programs.

Directors:

Allan S. Kitagawa has served as Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of Territorial Savings Bank since 1986,
and was named President in 2007. Mr. Kitagawa worked with American Savings and Loan Association from 1974 to 1986, including
service as Executive Vice President and Chief Executive Officer of the Hawaii Division. Mr. Kitagawa is a Certified Public
Accountant. Under Mr. Kitagawa’s leadership, Territorial Savings Bank has grown from $282 million in assets at December 31, 1986
to $1.4 billion at December 31, 2009, while Territorial Savings Bank’s conservative lending practices have resulted in continued low
levels of non-performing assets at a time when many financial institutions are experiencing significant asset quality issues.

Kirk W. Caldwell was appointed the Managing Director of the City and County of Honolulu, Hawaii in January 2009. Prior to
this appointment, Mr. Caldwell was a partner with the law firm of Ashford & Wriston, where he had worked since 1984, Much of his
practice consisted of representing financial institutions, including Territorial Savings Bank. Prior to his appointment as Managing
Director of the City and County of Honolulu, Mr. Caldwell also served as the majority leader of the State of Hawaii House of
Representatives, and had served as a state representative since 2002. Because of his current and past positions, Mr. Caldwell is
uniquely positioned to advise the Board of Directors on community and economic developments affecting the State of Hawaii and the
localities in which we operate. ' o

HowardY. Ikeda is the President of Ikeda and Wong, CPA, Inc., an indef)endént public accounting firm in the State of Hawaii.
Mr. Ikeda is a Certified Public Accountant licensed to practice in the State of Hawaii. He has been in public accounting for 39 years.
Mr. Ikeda’s professional and business experience provide the Board of Directors with valuable insight into the accounting issues
Territorial Bancorp Inc. faces and in assessing strategic transactions involving Territorial Bancorp Inc. and Territorial Savings Bank.
His experience as a Certified Public Accountant qualifies him to be a member of the Audit Committee as a “financial expert” for
purposes of the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission.

David S. Murakami is a Certified Residential Appraiser in the State of Hawaii, and has been the owner of DSM Appraisal
Company since 1982. Mr. Murakami previously worked as a Senior Vice President-Loan Administrator with financial institutions in
the State of Hawaii beginning in 1962. Mr. Murakami’s employment experience, both with financial institutions and as a Certified
Residential Appraiser, gives him extensive insights into Tertitorial Savings Bank’s challenges and opportunities in its overall

~ operations and lending activities. He is also well known in the local community as he was a long-time assistant coach for the highly
visible University of Hawaii-Manoa baseball program.
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Richard I. Murakami is the retired President of a major building, material and bonding company and previously was employed
for 20 years as a Vice President of a Hawaii based commercial bank. Mr. Murakami is a well-known and respected member of the
Japanese-American community. He also provides insight into the traditional savings and loan depositor as these customers constitute a
significant part of the customer base of Territorial Savings Bank.

Harold H. Ohama is a licensed real estate broker and currently acts as a real estate consultant. Mr. Ohama has also served as
a trustee for businesses in bankruptcy. Through his business contacts, he is aware of many of the major business transactions and real
estate developments and transactions in the State of Hawaii. Mr. Ohama’s experience with real estate provides him with extensive
insights into Territorial Savings Bank’s challenges and opportunities in its lending activities.

Executive Officers Who Are Not Also Directors:

Vernon Hirata has served as Territorial Savings Bank’s Vice Chairman, Co-Chief Operating Officer, General Counsel and
Corporate Secretary since 2007. Mr. Hirata joined Territorial Savings Bank in 1986 as Senior Vice President/General Counsel, and
was named Executive Vice President/General Counsel and Corporate Secretary in 1987. Previously, Mr. Hirata was employed at
American Savings and Loan Association from 1978 to 1986, including service as Senior Vice President and General Counsel.

Ralph Y. Nakatsuka joined Territorial Savings Bank in 2007 as Vice Chairman and Co-Chief Operatihg Officer, and was
employed at American Savings Bank from 1980 to 2007, including service as Executive Vice President of Lending and Chief Lending
Officer from 1997 to 2007 and Chief Financial Officer from 1987 to 1997. Mr. Nakatsuka is a Certified Public Accountant.

Karen J. Cox has served as Senior Vice President of Administration of Territorial Savings Bank since 1984, and has been
employed by Territorial Savings Bank since 1968. Ms. Cox previously worked with other financial institutions in the State of Hawaii
beginning in 1964.

Richard K.C. Lau has served as Senior Vice President and Chief Lending Officer of Territorial Savings Bank since 1985.
Mr. Lau was employed at other financial institutions in the State of Hawaii beginning in 1970.

Melvin M. Miyamoto has served as Senior Vice President and Treasurer of Territorial Savings Bank since 1986, and has been
employed by Territorial Savings Bank since 1984. Mr. Miyamoto is a Certified Public Accountant.

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Our executive officers and directors and beneficial owners of greater than 10% of the outstanding shares of common stock are
required to file reports with the Securities and Exchange Commission disclosing beneficial ownership and changes in beneficial
ownership of our common stock. Securities and Exchange Commission rules require disclosure if an executive officer, director or 10%
beneficial owner fails to file these reports on a timely basis.

Based solely on the review of copies of the reports we have received and written representations provided to us from the
individuals required to file the reports, we believe that each of our executive officers and directors has complied with applicable
reporting requirements for transactions in Territorial Bancorp Inc. common stock during the year ended December 31, 2009.

Code of Ethics

We have adopted a Code of Ethics and Business Conduct that is designed to promote the highest standards of ethical conduct by
our directors, executive officers and employees. The Code of Ethics and Business Conduct requires that our directors, executive
officers and employees avoid conflicts of interest, comply with all laws and other legal requirements, conduct business in an honest
and ethical manner and otherwise act with integrity and in our best interest. Under the terms of the Code of Ethics and Business
Conduct, directors, executive officers and employees are required to report any conduct that they believe in good faith to be an actual
or apparent violation of the Code of Ethics and Business Conduct. A copy of the Code of Ethics and Business Conduct can be found in
the “Investor Relations— Corporate Governance” section of our website, www.territorialsavings.net.

As a mechanism to encourage compliance with the Code of Ethics and Business Conduct, we have established procedures to
receive, retain and treat complaints regarding accounting, internal accounting controls and auditing matters. These procedures ensure
that individuals may submit concerns regarding questionable accounting or auditing matters in a confidential and anonymous manner.
The Code of Ethics and Business Conduct also prohibits us from retaliating against any director, executive officer or employee who
reports actual or apparent violations of the Code of Ethics and Business Conduct.

In addition, we have adopted a Code of Ethics for Senior Officers that is applicable to our senior financial officers, including our
principal executive officer, principal financial officer, principal accounting officer and all officers performing similar functions. A
copy of the Code of Ethics for Senior Officers can be found in the “Investor Relations— Corporate Governance” section of our
website, www.territorialsavings.net.
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Procedures to be Followed by Stockholders to Submit Recommendations Jor Director Candidates

During the year ended December 31, 2009, we adopted procedures for stockholders to submit recommendations for director
candidates. To submit a recommendation of a director candidate to the Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee, a stockholder
should submit the following information in writing to our main office of the Company, addressed to the Chairman of the
Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee, care of the Corporate Secretary, 1132 Bishop Street, Suite 2200, Honolulu, Hawaii
96813:

The name of the person recommended as a director candidate;

2. Allinformation relating to such person that is required to be disclosed in solicitations of proxies for election of directors
pursuant to Regulation 14A under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934;

3. The written consent of the person being recommended as a director candidate to being named in the proxy statement as a
nominee and to serving as a director if elected;

4. Asto the stockholder making the recommendation, the name and address of such stockholder as they appear on our books;
provided, however, that if the stockholder is not a registered holder of our common stock, the stockholder should submit
his or her name and address along with a current written statement from the record holder of the shares that reflects
ownership of our common stock; and

5. A statement disclosing whether such stockholder is acting with or on behalf of any other person and, if applicable, the
identity of such person.

In order for a director candidate to be considered for nomination at our annual meeting of stockholders, the recommendation
must be received by the Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee by January 1 of the year in which the election is proposed.

Audit Committee

Messrs. Ikeda (Chairman), Ohama and Richard I. Murakami serve as members of the Audit Committee and each is an
“independent” director as defined in applicable rules of the N. asdagq listing standards. The Board of Directors has designated Mr. Ikeda
as an “Audit Committee Financial Expert” for the Audit Committee, as that term is defined by the rules and regulations of the
Securities and Exchange Commission.

ITEM 11. Executive Compensation
Director Fees

Each of Territorial Savings Bank’s outside directors receives an annual retainer for board meetings of $32,000 per year and an
annual retainer for committee meetings of $2,400 per year. Each of Territorial Bancorp Inc.’s outside directors receives an annual
retainer for board meetings of $5,000 per year and an annual retainer for committee meetings of $600 per year. The retainer fees are
increased to the following amounts for the following committees: the Chairman of Territorial Savings Bank’s Audit Committee
receives a committee retainer of $2,600 and the Chairman of Territorial Bancorp Inc.’s Audit Committee receives a committee retainer
of $8,400; the Chairman of Territorial Savings Bank’s Compensation Committee receives a committee retainer of $4,800 and the
Chairman of Territorial Bancorp Inc.’s Compensation Committee receives a committee retainer of $1,200 and the Vice-Chairman of
Territorial Savings Bank’s Compensation Committee receives a committee retainer of $3,200 and the Vice-Chairman of Territorial
Bancorp Inc.’s Compensation Committee receives a committee retainer of $800. Receipt of full retainer payments is based upon a
director attending at least 75% of board or committee meetings, as applicable, with reductions for the failure to attend such number of
board or committee meetings.

The following table sets forth for the year ended December 31, 2009 certain information as to the total remuneration we paid to
our directors. Beginning in 2009, Mr. Kitagawa no longer received separate director fees. Information with respect to director fees
paid to Mr. Kitagawa for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 is included below in “Executive Officer Compensation—
Summary Compensation Table.” ‘

Director Compensation Table For the Year Ended December 31, 2009

Fees earned or paid in

Name cash ($) Total ($)

David S. Murakaml ...... $ 42,548 $§ 42,548
Richard I MUrakami ............c.o.eeeeeeeeeeeeeeereeoeoeseooooeoeosnn N 43,898 43,898
Howard Y. Ikeda......cooceerevueeenn... hp ettt e e e ne e rebae s beeanreens 51,632 51,632
Harold H. Ohama .........c..oueeeueeiemeeeesieeeereses oo 46,948 46,948
Kirk W. CalAWell ........vuveveeeiiieeneeeeeeeeeseees et 44,312 44,312



Compensation Discussion and Analysis

Compensation Philosophy and Objectives. Our Compensation Committee has the responsibility for establishing and reviewing
our compensation philosophy and objectives. In this role, the Compensation Committee has sought to design a compensation structure
that attracts and retains qualified and experienced officers and, at the same time, is reasonable and competitive, taking into account
both short and long-term incentives. Prior to our initial public offering, our compensation consisted primarily of cash compensation,
salary and bonuses, and retirement benefits. As a public company, we intend to adopt a stock-based benefit plan, subject to
stockholder approval at the 2010 annual meeting of stockholders. We expect that this stock-based plan will help us to attract and retain
employees consistent with our growth plans as well as providing longer term incentives. We also expect that this stock-based benefit
plan will play a significant role in our future compensation considerations, particularly for our named executive officers (we refer to
Allan S. Kitagawa, Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer, Melvin M. Miyamoto, Senior Vice President and
Treasurer, Vernon Hirata, Vice Chairman, Co-Chief Operating Officer, General Counsel and Corporate Secretary, Ralph Y.
Nakatsuka, Vice Chairman, Co-Chief Operating Officer and Richard K.C. Lau, Senior Vice President and Chief Lending Officer, as
our named executive officers).

Role of Executive Officers and Management. Mr. Kitagawa, our Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive
Officer, provides recommendations to the Compensation Committee on matters of compensation philosophy, plan design and the
general guidelines for employee compensation, however, Mr. Kitagawa does not vote on and is not present for any discussion of his
own compensation. These recommendations are then considered by the Compensation Committee. During 2009, consistent with our
amended Compensation Committee Charter, Mr. Kitagawa did not attend Compensation Committee meetings where his compensation
was discussed. Certain members of our management team participate in the Compensation Committee meetings to provide
information to the committee on an as-needed basis.

During 2009, we retained Amalfi Consulting, LLC, a nationwide benefits consulting firm, to review our compensation structure
and levels of compensation. Amalfi Consulting reviewed our compensation practices, including salary and bonus in comparison to a
number of different peer groups including approximately 14 bank and thrift institutions. Amalfi Consulting also assisted the
Compensation Committee in reviewing our cash bonus program and supplemental executive retirement plans. We believe these
programs properly allocate cash compensation between long-term and currently paid compensation. The Compensation Committee
considered Amalfi Consulting’s review of compensation levels in establishing the compensation amounts for the named executive
officers in 2009.

Elements of Executive Compensation. The compensation we provide to our named executive officers and other employees
primarily consists of the following:

» annual base salary;

« annual cash bonuses which, for certain executives, are based on specified goals and benchmarks designated each year and
for other executives are discretionary;

e  retirement benefits, which are determined without regard to gains from other elements of compensation; and

»  perquisites and other personal benefits.

When setting the compensation of Messrs. Kitagawa, Hirata and Nakatsuka, the Compensation Committee generally seeks to
provide total compensation (base salary, incentive payments under our Equity Incentive Plan, accruals under our Supplemental
Executive Retirement Agreements and our Pension Plan, and all other compensation) for these executive officers at the 50™ to the 75"
percentiles of total compensation for our peer group. Subjective adjustments can be made based on Territorial Savings Bank’s
financial performance or an officer’s experience or proven contribution to T erritorial Savings Bank over time. Compensation for
Messrs. Miyamoto and Lau is determined without reference to targets or peer group information.

For 2009, the Compensation Committee reviewed publicly available information for the three highest paid officers of the Coast
Peer Group companies (described below in “—Peer Group Information”) paid during the year ended December 31, 2007 (aged to
reflect a 4% general market increase in compensation), as provided by Amalfi Consulting. Total compensation (including salary,
annual cash bonuses/incentives, equity awards, all other compensation and retirement benefits) for the three highest paid officers of
these companies, for each of the 50" and 75" percentiles, were as follows:

Total Peer Group Compensation

50th 75th
Officer Percentile Percentile
Highest Paid ..o $  1,293900 $ 1,698,300
Second Highest Paid ... 730,000 898,300
Third Highest Paid ........coooviimiiiiiiis 490,700 725,100
TOUAL ottt et eeerr e ettt e e s e s e st e e s ennr e e snan e e ab e e nbnee $ 2514600 $ 3,321,700




The following table provides the potential total compensation that could have been received by Messrs. Kitagawa, Hirata and
Nakatsuka for 2009 based upon estimates prepared by Amalfi Consulting as of January 2009.

Total Compensation Based Upon Incentive
Payments of

Officer 35% of Base Salary 70% of Base Salary
Allan S. Kitagawa ........c.oooveveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeoeeeeoe $ 1,807,400 $ 2,195,500
Vernon HItata...........oouveeeieoeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee oo 605,800 744,400
Ralph Y. NakatSuka .......cooeeeeeeeeeeeereeeeeeoeoeoooee 534,200 672,800
TOAL ettt $ 2947400 $ 3,612,700

In reviewing the reasonableness of the potential compensation for our officers for 2009 compared to the compensation of the
peer group for 2007 aged to reflect a 4% general market increase in compensation, the Compensation Committee considered that
officer compensation would be paid one year after the peer group information. The peer group information was not adjusted to reflect
regular salary increases, inflation or other adjustments that would have increased the peer group compensation during this one-year
period. Additionally, in reviewing the reasonableness of the potential compensation for Mr. Kitagawa, the Compensation Committee
considered non-formula criteria discussed under “—Base Salary.” For a discussion of the determination of the individual components,
see “—Base Salary,” “—Cash Bonuses under our Executive Incentive Compensation Plan,” “Pension Benefits —Supplemental
Executive Retirement Agreements,” “Pension Benefits— Pension Plan” and “Retirement Plans and Other Benefits—Perquisites.”

Base Salary. Base salary is the primary source of compensation for services performed during the year for all employees. Base
salary ranges for named executive officers are determined based on the executive’s position and performance and, for Messrs.
Kitagawa, Hirata and Nakatsuka, compensation levels paid by our peers to executives in similar positions.

During its review of base salaries for executives, the Compensation Committee primarily considers:

*  market data for peer institutions, direct competitors and publicly held businesses located in Hawaii;

* internal review of the executive’s compensation, both individually and relative to other officers:

* individual performance of the executive;

¢ qualifications and experience of the executive; and

* our financial condition and results of operations, including the tax and accounting impact of particular forms of

compensation.

Base salaries are reviewed annually and adjusted from time to time to realign salaries with market levels after taking into
account individual responsibilities, performance and experience.

For 2009, Amalfi Consulting provided peer group information with respect to the three highest paid officers of the peer group
companies. Base salaries for each of the 50" and 75" percentiles were as follows:

Base Salary Compensation

Officer 50th Percentile 75th Percentile
Highest Paid ........c.coooiieieiiiceeeeeeee oo $ 477,800 $ 556,500
Second Highest Paid .........cc.oovevvieieeiineceeree e 273,000 312,000
Third Highest Paid ..........c.ocoouiiieiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee 229,900 241,500
TOAL .o e, $ 980,700 $ 1,110,000

Base salaries established for Messrs. Kitagawa, Hirata and Nakatsuka for 2009 were $801,954, $282,555 and $282,555.
Mr. Kitagawa’s base salary significantly exceeds the 75" percentile of base salaries set forth above for the highest paid officer of the
peer group companies. The Compensation Committee’s determination to pay this level of base salary was based upon non-formula
criteria, including Mr. Kitagawa’s considerable experience in the banking industry and his contribution to Territorial Savings Bank as
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer over the course of more than 20 years. Mr. Hirata’s base salary was near the 75"
percentile of base salaries set forth above for the second highest paid officer of the peer group companies, and reflects his considerable
experience in the banking industry and his contribution to Territorial Savings Bank over the course of more than 20 years.
Mr. Nakatsuka’s base salary was established at the same level as Mr. Hirata’s base salary, reflecting Mr. Nakatsuka’s position with
Territorial Savings Bank as well as his considerable experience in the banking industry.
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Cash Bonuses under our Executive Incentive Compensation Plan. Messrs. Kitagawa, Hirata and Nakatsuka are eligible to
receive an annual cash bonus under our Executive Incentive Compensation Plan. Messrs. Miyamoto and Lau do not participate in the
Executive Incentive Compensation Plan. The amount of the bonuses paid for 2009 under the Executive Incentive Compensation Plan
is included in the Summary Compensation Table in the column labeled “Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensation.” For 2009, under
the Executive Incentive Compensation Plan, the amount of the incentive cash bonus could range from 0% to 70% of an executive’s
salary, based on the following three components: : :

« an award of up to 35% of the executive’s salary amount based on return on assets and return on equity targets (for the first
six months of 2009), equally weighted between these two measurements, and return on assets targets for the second six
months of 2009;

+ an award of up to 21% of an executive’s salary based on non-financial goals for each year; and

o an award of up to 14% of an executive’s salary based on our long-term performance.

The target and maximum bonus opportunities are established so that the total compensation package for Messrs. Kitagawa,
Hirata and Nakatsuka described above under “—Elements of Executive Compensation” may fall between the 50 to the 75"
percentiles of total compensation for our peer group, such that satisfying target performance goals would generally result in total
compensation of approximately the 50" percentile of peer group total compensation, while superior performance would generally
result in total compensation of approximately the 75* percentile of peer group total compensation.

For 2010, the Compensation Committee has determined to increase the maximum amount payablé under the long-term
performance component under the Executive Incentive Compensation Plan from 14% of base salary to 44% of base salary, thus
increasing the maximum bonus payable under the Executive Incentive Compensation Plan from 70% of base salary to 100% of base
salary.

For the first half of 2009, return on assets and return on equity targets were established at the 50" percentile of Territorial
Savings Bank’s peer groups (as described below in “—Peer Group Information”), calculated at a bank-only level. For the first half of
2009, peer group information was provided in Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation Quarterly Reports. For the second half of 2009,
return on assets targets were established at the 50" percentile of Territorial Savings Bank’s peer groups, calculated at a holding
company consolidated level. For the second half of 2009, Amalfi Consulting, LLC provided peer group information that was
published in earnings releases and other publicly available information as of February 23, 2010, resulting in certain peer group o
information that was not yet publicly available being excluded from the calculation of the performance ranges. Performance goals are
calculated at a threshold, target and maximum achievement level. No award is paid if actual results are below the threshold level. For
2009, the Compensation Committee reviewed peer groups information weighted as follows: Coast Peer Group—40%, Loan
Composition Peer Group—30% and OTS Peer Group—30%. Peer group information was calculated for both financial institution-only
performance and for holding company performance, allocated to reflect that we were in the holding company structure for only a
portion of the year. : :

These weightings resulted in the following performance ranges:

Performance Measure . Threshold Target Maximum

Bank-only Return on Assets for First Six Months of 2009............... - 043% 0.50% 0.58%
Bank-only Return on Equity for First Six Months of 2009 .............. 3.05% 3.59% 4.13%
Consolidated Return on Assets for Second Six Months of 2009 ...... 0.32% 0.38% 0.44%

Territorial Savings Bank’s return on assets and return on equity for the first six months of 2009 were 0.80% and 8.61%,
respectively, and Territorial Bancorp Inc.’s consolidated return on assets for the second six months of 2009 was 0.54%. Therefore, our
Compensation Committee awarded $280,684, $98,894 and $98,894 to Messrs. Kitagawa, Hirata and Nakatsuka, respectively. These
amounts represent the maximum amount payable for this portion of the bonus (35% of base salary for Messrs. Kitagawa, Hirata and
Nakatsuka, respectively). '

In 2008, Territorial Savings Bank also paid the maximum bonus to Messrs. Kitagawa, Hirata and Nakatsuka under this portion
of the Executive Incentive Compensation Plan, which was 35% of their 2008 base salary.

For 2010, it is expected that this portion of the cash incentive award will be based only on a return on assets target, which will
continue to be established at the 50" percentile of Territorial Savings Bank’s peer group, calculated for holding company performance.

For 2009, Messrs. Kitagawa, Hirata and Nakatsuka were eligible to earn a bonus up to 21% of base salary by meeting each of
the following non-financial goals (with a maximum bonus of 10.5% of salary for meeting each of the following goals):

successful completion of Territorial Mutual Holding Company’s mutual-to-stock conversion; and
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*  achieving actions outlined for 2009 in our interest rate risk reduction plan. Specifically, the improvement of Territorial
Savings Bank’s interest rate risk position by one classification according to calculations provided by the Office of Thrift
Supervision on a quarterly basis (which is one component of an interest rate classification established by an Office of
Thrift Supervision regulatory examination report).

The Compensation Committee determined that each of these goals was met. Based on this performance, our Compensation
Committee awarded $168,410, $59,337 and $59,337 to Messrs. Kitagawa, Hirata and Nakatsuka, respectively. These amounts
represent the maximum amount payable for this portion of the bonus (21% of base salary for Messrs. Kitagawa, Hirata and Nakatsuka,
respectively).

In 2008, Territorial Savings Bank also paid the maximum bonus to Messrs. Kitagawa, Hirata and Nakatsuka under this portion
of the Executive Incentive Compensation Plan, which was 21% of their 2008 base salary.

For 2010, non-financial goals will consist of achieving actions outlined for 2010 in our interest rate risk reduction plan (which
would be maintaining our current interest rate risk classification according to calculations provided by the Office of Thrift Supervision
on a quarterly basis) and conducting the testing of internal controls by year-end 2010 as required by the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

For 2009, long-term goals consisted of achieving a three-year average return on assets with a target equal to the 50™ percentile of
Territorial Savings Bank’s peer group over the same three-year period, and includes performance goals at a threshold, target and
maximum achievement level. No award is paid if actual results are below the threshold level. Threshold, target and maximum
achievement levels are based upon peer group information, and the peer groups were weighted in the same manner as described above
for determining return on assets and return on equity targets, including an allocation for 2009 for both financial institution-only
performance and for holding company performance, which resulted in the following range:

Performance Measure Threshold Target Maximum

REtUIN 01 ASSES ...t e e 0.37% 0.44% 0.51%

Territorial Savings Bank’s three-year average return on assets for 2007, 2008 and 2009 was 0.69%. Based on this performance,
which exceeded the maximum target for 2009, our Compensation Committee awarded $1 12,274, $39,558 and $39,558 to Messrs.
Kitagawa, Hirata and Nakatsuka, respectively. These amounts represent the maximum amount payable for this portion of the bonus
(14% of base salary for Messrs. Kitagawa, Hirata and Nakatsuka, respectively).

In 2008, Territorial Savings Bank also paid the maximum bonus to Messrs. Kitagawa, Hirata and Nakatsuka under this portion
of the Executive Incentive Compensation Plan, which was 14% of their 2008 base salary.

For 2009 return on assets, the Compensation Committee adjusted the return on assets to reflect prior reductions for other-than-
temporary impairment charges for trust preferred securities, which charges were recognized in two different years because of changes
in accounting rules.

The Compensation Committee has determined that the terms of the Executive Incentive Compensation Plan are appropriate in
comparison to the bonuses paid to employees with the same position at comparable organizations, as reported in publicly available
salary surveys, as well as in the 2009 Amalfi Consulting Survey that was specifically prepared for us. The Compensation Committee
also considers the overall market for executive officer level positions at publicly held businesses located in Hawaii. Cash bonuses paid
under the Executive Incentive Compensation Plan are approved by the Compensation Committee.

Discretionary Cash Bonuses. Messrs. Miyamoto and Lau are eligible to receive an annual cash bonus, the amount of which is
discretionary and is not determined by a written cash bonus plan. Messrs. Kitagawa, Hirata and Nakatsuka do not receive any
discretionary cash bonuses. The amount of the bonuses paid for 2009 to Messrs. Miyamoto and Lau are included in the Summary
Compensation Table in the column labeled “Bonus.” These discretionary cash bonuses are recommended by the President and Chief
Executive Officer and approved by the Compensation Committee. The President and Chief Executive Officer’s recommendation was
based on subjective consideration of each of these senior executive’s contribution to our organization, and was not based on a formula
or other pre-established criteria.

Peer Group Information. A peer group survey prepared for us in 2007 contained data from four peer groups that we use as a
reference to assess our competitive position with respect to the overall compensation paid to Messrs. Kitagawa, Hirata and Nakatsuka.
For 2009, we used this 2007 peer group, revised only to reflect financial institutions that were no longer operating entities, either due
to mergers or otherwise. This survey utilized data from the following peer groups of $1 billion to $5 billion in assets:

*  an Office of Thrift Supervision peer group that consists of 27 organizations,

* acoast peer group, that consists of banks that are located on either the east or west coast (consisting of 14 institutions,
which are a sub-set of the OTS peer group),
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+ aloan composition peer group, comprised of financial institutions that have the highest concentration of loans secured by
residential real estate and consumer loans (consisting of 14 institutions, which are a sub-set of the OTS peer group), and

«  Hawaiian public organizations, that consists of 11 publicly traded organizations located in Hawaii.

The coast peer group consisted of the following institutions:

Boston Private Financial Holdings, Inc.
Brookline Bancorp, Inc.

Charter Financial Corporation (MHC)
Dime Community Bancshares, Inc.

First Financial Holdings, Inc.

Flushing Financial Corporation
Harrington West Financial Bancorp, Inc.

Kearny Financial Corp. (MHC)
OceanFirst Financial Corp.
Provident Financial Holdings, Inc.
Provident New York Bancorp
TrustCo Bank Corp NY

United Financial Bancorp, Inc.
WSEFS Financial Corporation

The loan composition peer group consisted of the following, institutions:

Bank Mutual Corporation

Boston Private Financial Holdings, Inc.
Brookline Bancorp, Inc.

Charter Financial Corporation (MHC)
First Financial Holdings, Inc.

First Place Financial Corp.

Kearny Financial Corp. (MHC)

OceanFirst Financial Corp.
Provident Financial Holdings, Inc.
Provident New York Bancorp
Pulaski Financial Corp.

TrustCo Bank Corp. NY

United Financial Bancorp, Inc.
ViewPoint Financial Group (MHC)

The Office of Thrift Supervision peer group consisted of the following institutions:

Anchor BanCorp Wisconsin Inc.
BankFinancial Corporation

Bank Mutual Corporation

Boston Private Financial Holdings, Inc.
Brookline Bancorp, Inc.

CFS Bancorp, Inc.

Charter Financial Corporation (MHC)
Dime Community Bancshares, Inc.
First Defiance Financial Corp.

First Financial Holdings, Inc.

First Place Financial Corp.

Flushing Financial Corporation
Harrington West Financial Group, Inc.
HMN Financial, Inc.

Kearny Financial Corp. (MHC)
NASB Financial, Inc.

OceanFirst Financial Corp.
Provident Financial Holdings, Inc.
Provident New York Bancorp
Pulaski Financial Corp.

Superior Bancorp

TierOne Corporation

TrustCo Bank Corp NY

United Financial Bancorp, Inc.
United Western Bancorp, Inc.
ViewPoint Financial Group (MHC)
WSFS Financial Corporation

The Hawaiian public organization peer group consisted of the following institutions:

Alexander & Baldwin, Inc.
Bank of Hawaii Corp.
Barnwell Industries

Central Pacific Financial Corp.
Cyanotech Corp.

Hawaiian Electric Industries

Hawaiian Holdings, Inc.

Hawaiian Telcom Communications, Inc.
Hoku Scientific, Inc.

Maui Land & Pineapple Co.

MI Macadamia Orchards -LP

Employment Agreements. We maintain employment agreements with Messrs. Kitagawa, Hirata and Nakatsuka, which provide
severance payments in the event of involuntary or good reason termination of employment or termination following a change in
control. The rationale for providing these payments is to provide security for our key executives and stability among our senior
management team. For a discussion of these agreements and the payments that would be received by the named executive officers
under certain scenarios with respect to those agreements, see “—Employment Agreements” below.
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Retirement Plans and Other Benefits

401(k) Plan. We also provide all of our émployees, including our named executive officers, with tax-qualified retirement
benefits through our 401(k) plan. All employees who meet the age and service requirements may participate in the 401(k) plan on a
non-discriminatory basis. We provide a 401(k) match equal to at least 5% of a participant’s salary deferral and we may exercise our
discretion to increase the amount of the match.

Employee Stock Ownership Plan. In connection with our stock offering, we implemented an employee stock ownership plan
(“ESOP”), using the proceeds of a loan from Territorial Bancorp Inc. to purchase Territorial Bancorp Inc. common stock pursuant to
applicable regulatory guidelines. The ESOP provides our employees with additional retirement savings in the form of our common
stock and encourages employee ownership in Territorial Bancorp Inc. See “—Tax-Qualified Benefit Plans—Employee Stock
Ownership Plan” for further description of the terms of the employee stock ownership plan.

Supplemental Employee Stock Ownership Plan. Territorial Savings Bank adopted the Supplemental Employee Stock
Ownership Plan (“Supplemental ESOP”) effective January 1, 2009 to provide certain executives with benefits that they otherwise
would be entitled to under the tax-qualified ESOP, but for limitations imposed by the Internal Revenue Code. During 2009, three
employees participated in the Supplemental ESOP. The Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors of Territorial Savings
Bank administers the Supplemental ESOP. Each year, participants in the Supplemental ESOP are credited with a dollar amount equal
to the difference between the value of the shares of Territorial Bancorp Inc. common stock that would have been allocated to the
participant under the tax-qualified ESOP, but for the limitations imposed by the Internal Revenue Code, and the actual value of shares
of Territorial Bancorp Inc. common stock allocated to the participant under the ESOP for the relevant plan year. Participants in the
Supplemental ESOP may direct the investment of their Supplemental ESOP accounts among a select group of broadly diversified
mutual funds selected by the Compensation Commiittee. Benefits are generally payable in a cash lump sum within 90 days of the first
to occur of (i) the participant’s separation from service; (ii) the participant’s death; (iii) the participant’s disability; or (iv) a change in
control of Territorial Savings Bank or Territorial Bancorp Inc., but, in order to comply with Section 409A of the Internal Revenue
Code, payments will be delayed for six months for any “specified employee” (as defined in Section 409A of the Internal Revenue
Code).

Supplemental Executive Retirement Agreement. We provide supplemental executive retirement benefits for Messrs. Kitagawa,
Hirata and Nakatsuka. We provide these retirement benefits in order to remain competitive and to attract and retain these executive
officers. See “—Pension Benefits—Supplemental Executive Retirement Agreements” for further description of the terms 6f the
agreements.

Perquisites. We offer various fringe benefits to all of our employees, including our named executive officers, including group
policies for medical insurance. We provide individual coverage to employees, with the employee being responsible for a portion of the
premium. Our named executive officers are provided with an automobile or automobile allowance, life insurance, long-term care
insurance and long-term disability insurance. In addition, for some of our named executive officers (Messrs. Kitagawa, Hirata and
Nakatsuka) we pay club dues and provide cellular phone reimbursement and spousal travel. The Compensation Committee believes
these benefits are appropriate and assist these officers in fulfilling their employment obligations.

Pension Plan. In 2008, we froze our tax-qualified defined benefit plan such that no further benefit accruals will be earned after
December 31, 2008; however, participants will continue to earn vesting credit. We made this change because many of our peer banks
have also frozen or terminated their defined benefit pension plans, and we have found that a 401(k) plan is a more attractive retirement
vehicle in recruiting employees. :

Tax and Accounting Implications. In consultation with our advisors, we evaluate the tax and accounting treatment of each of
our compensation programs at the time of adoption and on an annual basis to ensure that we understand the financial impact of the
program. Our analysis includes a detailed review of recently adopted and pending changes in tax and accounting requirements. As part
of our review, we consider modifications and/or alternatives to existing programs to take advantage of favorable changes in the tax or
accounting environment or to avoid adverse consequences. To preserve maximum flexibility in the design and implementation of our
compensation program, we have not adopted a formal policy that requires all compensation to be tax deductible. However, to the
greatest extent possible, it is our intent to structure our compensation programs in a tax efficient manner.

Review of Risk Related to Compensation Policies and Procedures. The Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors is
responsible for the oversight of employee compensation policies and procedures, including the determination of whether any material
risk is imposed on Territorial Bancorp Inc. from our compensation policies and procedures. The Compensation Committee has
reviewed our compensation policies and procedures, including those related to the payment of commissions and bonuses, and believes
that any risks arising from our compensation policies and practices for our employees are not reasonably likely to have a material
adverse effect on Territorial Bancorp Inc. and Territorial Savings Bank.
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Executive Officer Compensation

Summary Compensation Table. The table below summarizes the total compensation paid to or earned by our named executive
officers for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007.

Change in
Pension Value
and
Nongqualified
Non-Equity Deferred
Incentive Plan Compensation All Other

Name and principal position Year Salary (1) Bonus (2) Compensation (3) Earnings 4) Compensation Total
Allan S. Kitagawa 2009 $ 801,954 $ - § 561,368 $ 716,517 $ 147,489(5) $ 2,227,328

Chairman of the 2008 766,080 — 527,436 661,907 22,297 1,977,720

Board, President and '

Chief Executive

Officer....covvveevueeccecinnns 2007 738,800 — 152,880 613,212 25,508 1,530,400
Melvin M. Miyamoto 2009 $ 130,208 45,572 — 33,945 34,794(6) 244,519

Senior Vice President 2008 123,073 37,560 — 33,945 19,395 213,973

and Treasurer

(principal financial '

OffiCer) covvevreeervercnnennnns 2007 118,619 14,513 — 31,621 19,713 184,466
Vernon Hirata 2009 $ 282,555 — 197,789 158,035 67,464(7) 705,843

Vice Chairman, Co- 2008 269,100 — 188,370 123,912 23,662 605,044

Chief Operating

Officer, General

Counsel and

Corporate Secretary .... 2007 260,000 — 54,600 169,589 26,200 510,389
Ralph Y. Nakatsuka 2009 $ 282,555 —_ 197,789 123,766 62,570(8) 666,680

Vice Chairman and 2008 269,100 — 188,370 111,820 16,985 586,275 .

Co-Chief Operating

OffiCer..cuiiinrienreecnennne 2007 121,333 — 54,600 — 12,792 188,725
Richard K.C. Lau 2009 $ 152,776 45,832 — 55,128 40,836(9) 294,572

Senior Vice President 2008 144,057 44,070 — 49,375 20,695 258,197

and Chief Lending

OffiCer...cocvverveereecennens 2007 138,752 16,946 — 44,343 19,826 219,867
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(1)  For Mr. Kitagawa, includes fees relating to service as Chairman of the Board. Mr. Nakatsuka was hired on July 12, 2007 and his annual base salary for 2007 was $260,000.

(2)  The amounts in this column represent discretionary cash bonuses. S

(3)  The amounts in this column represent the dollar value of the cash bonus incentives earned under the executive incentive compensation plan.

(4)  For 2009, the amounts in this column for Mr. Kitagawa represent a change in value of $65,529 for the pension plan, $618,722 for the supplemental executive retirement
agreement and $32,266 for above-market earnings (defined for these purposes as the difference between 7%, which is the annual amount of interest paid on the deferred

* account balances, and 5.02%, which is 120% of the applicable federal long-term rate), for Mr. Miyamoto a change in value of $33,945 for the pension plan, for Mr. Hirata a
change in value of $53,796 for the pension plan, $98,338 for the supplemental executive retirement agreement and $5,901 for above-market earnings, for Mr. Nakatsuka a
change in value of $1,939 for the pension plan, $121,827 for the supplemental executive retirement agreement and $0 for above-market earnings and for Mr. Lau a change in
value of $55,128 for the pension plan. For 2008, the amounts in this column for Mr. Kitagawa represent a change in value of $65,529 for the pension plan, $571,249 for the
supplemental executive retirement agreement and $25,129 for above-market eartiings (defined for these purposes as the difference between 7%, which is the annual amount
of interest paid on the deferred account balances, and 5.35%, which is 120% of the applicable federal long-term rate), for Mr. Miyamoto a change in value of $33,945 for the
pension plan, for Mr. Hirata a change in value of $53,796 for the pension plan, $65,520 for the supplemental executive retirement agreement and $4,596 for above-market
earnings, for Mr. Nakatsuka a change in value of $1,939 for the pension plan, $109,881 for the supplemental executive retirement agreement and $0 for above-market
earnings and for Mr. Lau a change in value of $49,375 for the pension plan. For 2007, the amounts in this column for Mr. Kitagawa represent a change in value of $61,695
for the pension plan, $550,032 for the supplemental executive retirement agreement and $1,485 for above-market earnings (defined for these purposes as the difference
between 7%, which is the annual amount of interest paid on the deferred account balances, and 5.51%, which is 120% of the applicable federal long-term rate); for
Mr. Miyamoto a change in value of $31,621 for the pension plan, for Mr. Hirata a change in value of $49,962 for the pension plan, $119,355 for the supplemental executive
retirement agreement and. $272 for above-market earnings and for Mr. Lau a change in value of $44,343 for the pension plan. Mr. Miyamoto and Mr. Lau do not participate
in a supplemental executive retirement agreement. e ‘

(5)  Includes $1,660 for 401(k) plan matching contributions, $1,533 for long-term care premiums, $4,465 for health insurance premiums, $1,323 for long-term disability

 insurance premiums, $755 for basic life insurance premiums, $2,612 for personal use of company automobile, $9,453 for club dues and fees, $1,339 for cell phone
reimbursement, $3,774 for spousal travel expense, $22,146 for ESOP allocations, and $98,429 for non-qualified supplemental ESOP. allocations.

(6)  Includes $1,660 for 401(k) plan matching contributions, $772 for long-term care premiums, $4,465 for health insurance premiums, $631 for long-term disability insurance
premiums, $505 for basic life insurance premiums, $7,200 for automobile allowance, $3,600 for parking, and $15,961 for ESOP aliocations.

(7)  Includes $1,660 for 401(k) plan matching contributions, $1,195 for long-term care premiums, $3,167 for health insurance premiums, $1,323 for long-term disability

* " insurance premiums, $755 for basic life insurance premiums, $12,410 for personal use of company automobile, $1,572 for club dues and fees, $1,008 for cell phone
reimbursement, $1,730 for spousal travel expense, $22,146 for ESOP allocations, and $20,498 for non-qualified supplemental ESOP allocations.

(8) - Includes $1,660 for 401(k) plan matching contributions, $1,231 for long-term care premiums, $6,312 for health insurance premiums, $1,323 for long-term disability
insurance premiums, $755 for basic life insurance premiums, $2,589 for personal use of company automobile, $3,571 for club dues and fees, $540 for cell phone
reimbursement, $1,781 for spousal travel expense, $22,146 for ESOP allocations, and $20,662 for non-qualified supplemental ESOP allocations.

(9)  Includes $1,660 for 401(k) plan matching contributions, $1,185 for long-term care premiums, $4,465 for health insurance premiums, $741 for long-term disability insurance
premiums, $379 for basic life insurance premiums, $7,200 for automobile allowance, $4,500 for parking, $1,967 for club dues and fees and $18,739 for ESOP allocations.

.. Plan-Based Awards. The following table sets forth for the year ended December 31, 2009 certain information as to grants of
plan-based awards for the named executive officers under the terms of the Executive Incentive Compensation Plan. For the year ended
December 31, 2009, payments were paid in February 2010 in the amounts listed in the “Summary Compensation Table.” For a
discussion of this plan, see “Compensation Discussion dnd Analysis —Cash Bonuses under our Executive Incentive Compensation
Plan” and “Executive Officer Compensation— Executive Incentive Compensation Plan.”

Estimated Futuré Payouts Under Non-Equity Incentive Plan Awards

Name ) Grant Date Threshold ($) Target ($) ~ Maximum ($)
Allan S. Kitagawa........... et @ $ —  $ 280,683 $ 561,368
Melvin M. Miyamoto...........oecvererrererereesienenennn, — - — —
Vemon Hirata ......... €)) — 98,894 197,789
Ralph Y. Nakatsuka . €8] — 98,894 197,789
Richard K.C. Lau.....c.cocoovoiiioeeeeeeeeeeeereen, — — — —

(1) On an annual basis, Messrs. Kitagawa, Hirata and Nakatsuka are eligible to receive incentive cash bonuses under the Executive Incentive Compensation Plan. Mr. Miyamoto
and Mr. Lau do not participate in the plan.

Employment Agreements. Territorial Savings Bank has entered into separate employment agreements with Messrs. Kitagawa,
Hirata and Nakatsuka (referred to below as the “executives” or “executive”). Upon completion of the conversion, Territorial Bancorp
Inc. entered into separate employment agreements with each executive, which have essentially identical provisions as the Territorial
Savings Bank agreements, except that the employment agreements will provide that Territorial Bancorp Inc. will make any payments
not made by Territorial Savings Bank under its agreements with the executives and that the executives will not receive any duplicate
payments. Our continued success depends to a significant degree on the skills and competence of these officers, and the employment
agreements are intended to ensure that we maintain a stable management base following the offering. The discussion below addresses
the employment agreements for each executive with Territorial Savings Bank and Territorial Bancorp Inc.

The employment agreements each provide for three-year terms, subject to annual renewal by the Board of Directors for an
additional year beyond the then-current expiration date. The 2009 base salaries under the employment agreements are $801,954 for
Mr. Kitagawa, $282,555 for Mr. Hirata and $282,555 for Mr. Nakatsuka. The agreements also provide for participation in employee
benefit plans and programs maintained for the benefit of senior management personnel, including discretionary bonuses, participation
in stock-based benefit plans, and certain fringe benefits as described in the agreements.

97



Upon termination of an executive’s employment for cause, as defined in each of the agreements, the executive will receive no
further compensation or benefits under the agreement. If we terminate the executive for reasons other than for cause or if the executive
terminates voluntarily under specified circumstances that constitute constructive termination, the executive will receive an amount
equal to the base salary and cash bonus and employer contributions to benefit plans that would have been payable for the remaining
term of the agreement. We will also continue to pay for each executive’s life, health and dental coverage for up to three years, with the
executive responsible for his share of the employee premium.

If the executive terminates employment for any reason other than for cause within 12 months following a change in control, the
executive will receive the greater of (a) the amount he would have received if we terminated the executive for a reason other than for
cause or if the executive voluntarily terminated under specified circumstances that constitute constructive termination (as described in
the immediately preceding paragraph), or (b) three times his prior five-year average of taxable compensation less one dollar. We will
also continue to pay for each executive’s life, health and dental coverage for up to three years, with the executive responsible for his
share of the employee premium.

Upon termination of employment (other than a termination in connection with a change in control), each executive will be
required to adhere to a one-year non-competition provision. The executive will be required to release us from any and all claims in
order to receive any payments and benefits under their agreements. We will agree to pay all reasonable costs and legal fees of the
executives in relation to the enforcement of the employment agreements, provided the executives succeed on the merits in a legal
judgment, arbitration proceeding or settlement. The employment agreements also provide for indemnification of the executives to the
fullest extent legally permissible.

Separation Pay Plan. The Territorial Savings Bank Separation Pay Plan provides severance benefits to eligible employees
whose employment is involuntarily terminated within 24 months after a change in control of Territorial Bancorp Inc. All regular
employees who do not receive severance pay under an employment or change in control agreement are participants in this plan.
Terminated employees will receive a severance payment of one month of base compensation for each year of service, up to a
maximum of 24 months of base compensation, and employees who are at the level of Senior Vice President or above will receive a
minimum severance payment of 12 months of base compensation. In addition, terminated employees who are at the level of senior
vice president and above will also be eligible to continue to participate in our health insurance plan for up to one year, with the
employee responsible for his share of the employee premium.

Executive Incentive Compensation Plan. Territorial Savings Bank maintains the Executive Incentive Compensation Plan (the
“EICP”). Messrs. Kitagawa, Hirata and Nakatsuka are currently the only participants in the EICP. The purpose of the EICP is to
provide structured annual bonuses to key management personnel for their contributions to the achievement of strategic organizational
objectives of Territorial Savings Bank. The participants’ bonuses are determined based on bank-wide performance measures, non-
financial goals and Territorial Savings Bank’s long-term performance. For 2009, the bank-wide performance measures are based on
Territorial Savings Bank’s return on assets and return on equity. The amount of the bonus for the participants is the sum of the bank-
wide performance measures, non-financial goals and Territorial Savings Bank’s long-term performance. The amount of bonus
awarded shall be determined as a percentage of the participants’ base salary, where such percentage shall, for 2009, not exceed 70% of
base salary, and beginning in 2010, 100% of base salary. At the end of each fiscal year, the Compensation Committee will calculate
cach participant’s award. Bonuses, if any, are paid in a single cash lump sum distribution within 75 days of the close of the fiscal year
or as soon as the performance data is available to compute the amount of the awards.
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Pension Benefits

The following table sets forth the actuarial present value of each named executive officer’s accumulated benefit under our
pension plan, along with the number of years of credited service, and for Messrs. Kitagawa, Hirata, and Nakatsuka, the value of their
benefits in each of their supplemental executive retlrement agreements.

Pension Benefits At And For The Year Ended December 31, 2009

Present Value of

Number of Years Accumulated Payments During

Name ’ Plan Name Credited Service Benefit (1) Last Fiscal Year

Allan S. Kitagawa ..........cccccvveeveeeennnee. Pension Plan 22 $ 685,287 $ —
Supplemental Executive

Retirement Agreement N/A 5,384,722 o —

Melvin M. Miyamoto.......c.ccccveevrrrrerenne, Pension Plan : 25 206,583 —

Vernon Hirata .........ccccevvvvvvinincinneennnnen, Pension Plan 22 347,693 —

Supplemental Executive :

Retirement Agreement : N/A 621,950 —

Ralph Y. NaKatsuka .......ooocccrrsrrooor.. Pension Plan - 2 10,461 _
Supplemental Executive

Retirement Agreement o N/A 231,708 —

Richard K.C. La c..ovrercnn S Pension Plan | 26 546,866 -

(1)  Present value of accumulated benefits under the pension plan and the supplemental executive retirement agreement as of December 31, 2009, determined using interest rate
and mortality rate assumptions consistent with those used for our financial reporting purposes, assuming that the executive’s normal retirement age is his retirement date. The
valuation method and all material assumptions applied in quantifying the present value of the current accrued benefit are set forth in the footnotes to the consolidated

financial statements.
N}

Pension Plan. Territorial Savings Bank sponsors the Territorial Savings Bank Employee Retirement Plan, a defined benefit
pension plan that covers substantially all of our employees. Employees become eligible for participation in the pension plan on the
first day of the calendar month on or after completing one year of service and attaining age 21. Effective December 31, 2008, the
pension plan was frozen, such that no further benefit accruals will be earned after that date; however, participants will continue to earn
vesting credit.

Participants in the pensmn plan become fully vested in their retirement benefits upon completion of five years of service. They
also become 100% vested upon attaining age 65 or upon death. A participant who terminates employment on or after reaching age 65
is entitled to the full retirement benefit. A participant’s normal retirement benefit is generally based on a formula that takes into
account the amount credited under the pension plan for service before January 1, 1984 and the amount credited under the pension plan
for service from 1984 to' 1998 and the amount credited from 1998 to 2008, as well as salary and certain other compensation. The plan
does not grant additional years of service for any purpose

The pension plan permits early retirement at age 55. Participants Who retlre after age 65 will be entitled to the full amount of
their benefit, generally calculated through their late retirement date. Eligible participants who elect an early retirement benefit will
receive a reduced normal retirement benefit. As of December 31, 2009, each named executive officer was eligible for early retirement,
and Mr. Lau was eligible for normal retirement.

The normal form of retirement for participants who are not married is a single life annuity. The normal form of retirement
benefit for participants who are married is a 50% joint and survivor annuity. Other optional forms of benefit are available, such as an
early retirement benefit, and all optional forms of benefit are the actuarial equivalent of the normal form (e.g., a participant does not
receive more or less by selecting an optional form of benefit). In the event of the participant’s death, benefits normally will be paid to
the participant’s spouse unless the spouse consents to an alternative beneficiary in writing. In the event of death any time after a
participant is vested or eligible for a pension benefit, provided the participant has been married for at least one year and provided that
benefits have not commenced at the time of death, the participant’s spouse may either receive the full benefit when the participant
would have reached age 65 or receive a reduced benefit anytime after the deceased participant would have attained age 55.

For the 2009 plan year, we made no contributions to the pension plan.

99



Supplemental Executive Retirement Agreements. We have entered into a supplemental executive retirement agreement with
each of Messrs. Kitagawa, Hirata and Nakatsuka. Under Mr. Kitagawa’s agreement, the executive is entitled to receive an amount
equal to the present value of $600,000 per year for 15 years payable in a lump sum on the first day of the month upon retirement after
attaining age 66. Under the agreements with Messrs. Hirata and Nakatsuka, the executive will receive an annual benefit upon
retirement after age 66 equal to-65% of the average of his compensation for the three years immediately preceding his, termination of
employment reduced by the sum of the benefits payable under the pension plan and Social Security benefits. Mr. Hirata’s benefits will
be paid in monthly installments for 15 years and Mr. Nakatsuka will receive a lump sum.

Each executive may also retire early, before attaining age 66, and receive a reduced benefit. Mr. Kitagawa will receive the
amount accrued for accounting purposes as of the end of the calendar year before his termination of employment, payable in a lump
sum. Messrs. Hirata’s and Nakatsuka’s benefits are reduced by a fraction, the numerator of which is completed years of service and
the denominator of which is the executive’s potential years of service if he had remained employed until age 66, with such benefits
paid by lump sum for Mr. Nakatsuka and in installments for Mr. Hirata over 15 years.

For Mr. Kitagawa, if his employment is terminated within three years following a change in control, he will receive his normal
retirement benefit. Messrs. Hirata and Nakatsuka will each receive 65% of their final average compensation projected to age 66,
without any reduction for amounts payable under the pension plan or Social Security. All amounts are paid as a lump sum except
Mr. Hirata will receive installments for 15 years. The agreements contain change of control “tax gross up” provisions such that if a
payment to any of the three executives exceeds the limit on such payments pursuant to Internal Revenue Code Section 280G, and
thereby imposes an excise tax on the officer, Territorial Savings Bank, or its successor, will pay such executive additional amounts to
compensate for the excise tax. ‘

In the event of disability or death, Messrs. Hirata and Nakatsuka will receive the same benefit as if they had terminated
employment following a change in control. Upon death, Mr. Kitagawa will receive a lump-sum payment equal to the present value of
his projected normal retirement benefit and upon disability Mr. Kitagawa will receive a lump sum equal to the amount accrued for
accounting purposes under the plan.

No benefits are payable in the event of a termination for cause.

Nongqualified Deferred Compensation Plans

The following table provides information with respect to each-nonqualified deferred compensation plan in which the named
executive officers participated in 2009.

Nonqualified Deferred Compensation At And For The Year Ended December 31, 2009

Executive Registrant © Aggregate Aggregate

Contributions Contributions Earnings Aggregate Balance at Last
: in Last Fiscal in Last Fiscal in Last Fiscal Withdrawals/ Fiscal Year
Name Plan Name Year Year Year (1) Distributions End (2)
Allan S. Kitagawa.............. Executive Deferred
Incentive Agreement  $ - $ —  $ 114,072 $ —  $ 1,743,678
Vernon Hirata ........cc.c..c.... Executive Deferred
Incentive Agreement — — 20,861 — 318,888

(1)  The amounts in this column include above-market earnings for the executive deferred incentive agreements in the amount of $32,266 and $5,901 for Messrs. Kitagawa and
Hirata, respectively, which amounts have been reported as compensation for the year ended December 31, 2009 in the Summary Compensation Table. The account balances
accrue interest at the rate of 7% per year. We ceased making contributions to the agreements for calendar years beginning after 2006 (other than the interest crediting).

(2) Amounts attributed to above-market earnings have been reported as compensation for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 in the Summary Compensation
Table.

Executive Deferred Incentive Agreement. We have entered into an executive deferred incentive agreement with each of
Mr. Kitagawa and Mr. Hirata. Each agreement was frozen effective August 29, 2007. Before the agreements were frozen, each
agreement provided for the grant of annual cash awards equal to a specified percentage of base salary, based on the attainment of
established criteria. Payment of all awards is deferred until the earlier of:

¢ normal retirement age,

» early termination,

»  separation from service within three years following a change in control,
» termination due to disability, or

o death, when the executive will receive a lump sum.
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Potential Payments on Termination or Change in Control

Assuming that each of our named executive officers terminated employment as of December 31, 2009, they would be entitled to
certain payments and benefits. The following tables set forth payments that would have been made to Messrs. Kitagawa, Hirata and
Nakatsuka pursuant to their employment agreements had their employment been terminated for the following reasons as of
December 31, 2009. No other named executive officer was a party to an employment-agreement as of December 31, 2009. There are

no payments or benefits payable solely on account of a change in control.

Allan S. Kitagawa
Involuntary
Termination
Without Cause
or Termination Change in
Voluntary Involuntary by the Control With
Termination or Termination Executive for Termination of Termination Upon Termination Upon
Payments and Benefits Retirement for Cause Good Reason Employment Death (3) Disability (4)
Severance Pay (1).......... $ - 3 — $ 6,026,126 $ 4,139,309 $ 131,828 $ 373,891
Health, Dental, Life
Insurance
Continuation (2)........ — — 15,474 15,474 — —
Total ..ccocveeverine $ — 3 - $ 6,041,600 $ 4,154,783 $ 131,828 $ 373,891
Vernon Hirata
Involuntary
Termination
Without Cause
or Termination Change in
Voluntary Involuntary by the Control With
Termination or Termination Executive for Termination of Termination Upon Termination Upon
Payments and Benefits Retirement for Cause Good Reason Employment Death (3) Disability (4)
Severance Pay (1) .......... $ — 3 - 3 1,826,991 $ 1,013,256 $ 46,447 $ 2,722,535
Health, Dental, Life
Insurance
Continuation (2)........ — — 11,634 11,634 — —_
Total.....ooveeeeciinen, $ - § - 3 1,838,625 $ 1,024,890 $ 46,447 $ 2,722,535
Ralph Y. Nakatsuka
Involuntary
Termination
Without Cause
or Termination Change in
Voluntary Involuntary by the Control With
Termination or Termination Executive for Termination of Termination Upon Termination Upon
Payments and Benefits Retirement for Cause Good Reason Employment Death(3) Disability(4)
Severance Pay (1).......... $ - $ — 3 1,687,673 $ 799,887 $ 46,447 $ 3,855,698
Health, Dental, Life
Insurance ‘
Continuation (2)........ — — 21,027 21,027 — —
Total...c.coooveerecireiecnnnn, $ —  $ - 3 1,708,700 $ $ 46,447 $ 3,855,698

820,914

101

(footnotes begin on following page)



{ footnotes from previous page)

(1) These severance payments are payable if the executive’s employment is terminated either (i) by Territorial Savings Bank or Territorial Bancorp Inc. for any reason other than
cause, death or disability or (ii) by the executive if Territorial Savings Bank or Territorial Bancorp Inc. takes certain adverse actions (a “good reason” termination). The
Involuntary Termination Without Cause or Termination by the Executive for Good Reason column represents a lump sum payment equal to the base salary and bonus and
retirement benefits the executive would have received for the remaining term of his employment agreement, which is 2 years and 10 months for each of Messrs. Kitagawa,
Hirata and Nakatsuka. The Change in Control With Termination of Employment column represents the greater of (a) the amount shown in the Involuntary Termination
Without Cause or Termination by the Executive for Good Reason column, or (b) a lump sum payment equal to three times the executive’s prior five-year average of taxable
compensation less one dollar, provided that the amount may not exceed three times the executive’s average taxable income for the five years ended December 31, 2008 (the
“280G Threshold”). The amounts in the Change in Control With Termination of Employment column for Mr. Kitagawa are reduced by $15,474, for Mr. Hirata are reduced
by $11,634 and for Mr. Nakatsuka are reduced by $21,027 due to the 280G Threshold. The amounts are not discounted to present value. The severance payments are lower if
the termination of employment occurs concurrently with or subsequent to a change in control due to the 280G Threshold. The amounts shown in the above tables are based
on the terms of the amended Territorial Savings Bank employment agreements, which were adopted on October 29, 2008, and the new Territorial Bancorp Inc. employment
agreements adopted on November 13, 2009. :

(2) Represents the estimated cost of continuing medical, dental and life insurance premiums for three years for each executive. The estimated costs do not assume an increase in
current premiums and the amounts have not been discounted to present value.

(3) If the executive’s employment is terminated due to death, the executive’s beneficiaries or estate will receive an amount equal to sixty days of the executive’s current base

salary.
(4)  If an executive’s employment is terminated due to disability, Mr. Kitagawa would receive disability benefits of $83,087 per month, Mr. Hirata would receive disability

benefits of $29,433 per month and Mr. Nakatsuka would receive disability benefits of $29,433 per month until they reach their normal retirement age of 65. Territorial
‘Savings Bank is required to pay these monthly amounts, less the amount of monthly disability income insurance benefits which are $15,000 for Mr. Kitagawa, $15,000 for
Mr. Hirata and $15,000 for Mr. Nakatsuka. The Termination Upon Disability column represents the total amount of disability benefits payable and the amount has not been
discounted to present value.

The above table does not include the value of the benefits to be paid under the supplemental employee retirement agreement in
the event an executive terminates employment due to early retirement, disability, change in control or death, which had an estimated
present value of $5,384,722 for early retirement and $6,349,107 for disability, change in control and death for Mr. Kitagawa,
$519,649, $1,803,970, $1,803,970 and $2,775,338, respectively, for Mr. Hirata and $146,689, $1,783,104, $1,783,104 and
$2,743,237, respectively, for Mr. Nakatsuka as of December 31, 2009. None of Mr. Kitagawa, Mr. Hirata or Mr. Nakatsuka would
have been entitled to a normal retirement benefit as of December 31, 2009. Messrs. Kitagawa and Nakatsuka’s benefits are payable by
lump sum and Mr. Hirata’s benefits are payable over 15 years. The present value amounts shown for Mr. Hirata represent the present
value of the 15 years of payments to be made to him. In addition, the above table does not include the value of the benefits to be paid
under the executive deferred incentive agreement in the event the executive terminates employment due to normal or early retirement,
disability, change in control or death, which was $1,743,678 for Mr. Kitagawa and $318,888 for Mr. Hirata. Mr. Nakatsuka does not
participate in the executive deferred incentive agreement.

Messrs. Miyamoto and Lau would not have been entitled to any severance or continued insurance coverage if their employment
terminated as of December 31, 2009. Under our pension plan, Messrs. Miyamoto and Lau would have been entitled to $2,829 and
$4,594, respectively, if their employment terminated as of December 31, 2009; under our long-term disability insurance plan, Messrs.
Miyamoto and Lau would have been entitled to $7,233 and $8,487, respectively, if their employment terminated as of December 31,
2009: and under life insurance policies, Messrs. Miyamoto and Lau would have been entitled to $196,000 and $149,500, respectively,
if their employment terminated as of December 31, 2009.

Tax-Qualified Benefit Plans

Territorial Savings Bank Profit Sharing and 401(k) Plan. We sponsor the Territorial Savings Bank Profit Sharing and 401(k)
Plan, a tax-qualified defined contribution plan, for all employees who have satisfied the plan’s eligibility requirements. Employees
may begin deferring their compensation and are eligible to receive matching contributions and profit sharing contributions as of the
first day of the month following the completion of 12 months of employment during which they worked at least 1,000 hours. All
contributions are 100% vested.

Employee Stock Ownership Plan. Effective January 1, 2009, Territorial Savings Bank adopted an employee stock ownership
plan for eligible employees. Eligible employees who have attained age 21 and were employed by us as of January 1, 2009 will begin
participation in the employee stock ownership plan on the later of the effective date of the employee stock ownership plan or upon the
first entry date commencing on or after the eligible employee’s completion of 1,000 hours of service during a continuous 12-month
period.

The employee stock ownership plan trustee purchased, on behalf of the employee stock ownership plan, 978,650 shares of
Territorial Bancorp Inc. common stock issued in the offering. The employee stock ownership plan funded its stock purchase with a
loan from Territorial Bancorp Inc. equal to the aggregate purchase price of the common stock. The loan will be repaid principally
through Territorial Savings Bank’s contribution to the employee stock ownership plan and dividends payable on common stock held
by the employee stock ownership plan over the anticipated 20-year term of the loan. The interest rate for the employee stock
ownership plan loan is an adjustable rate equal to the prime rate, as published in The Wall Street Journal, which adjusts annually.
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The trustee holds the shares purchased by the employee stock ownership plan in an unallocated suspense account, and shares
will be released from the suspense account on a pro-rata basis as we repay the loan. The trustee will allocate the shares released among
participants on the basis of each participant’s proportional share of compensation relative to all participants. Participants become
100% vested upon the completion of three years of service. Participants who were employed by Territorial Savings Bank immediately
prior to the offering will receive credit for vesting purposes for years of service prior to adoption of the employee stock ownership
plan. Participants also will become fully vested automatically upon normal retirement, death or disability, a change in control, or
termination of the employee stock ownership plan. Generally, participants will receive distributions from the employee stock
ownership plan upon separation from service. The employee stock ownership plan reallocates any unvested shares forfeited upon
termination of employment among the remaining participants.

The employee stock ownership plan permits participants to direct the trustee as to how to vote the shares of common stock
allocated to their accounts. The trustee votes unallocated shares and allocated shares for which participants do not provide instructions
on any matter in the same ratio as those shares for which participants provide instructions, subject to fulfillment of the trustee’s
fiduciary responsibilities.

Under applicable accounting requirements, Territorial Savings Bank will record a compensation expense for the employee stock
ownership plan at the fair market value of the shares as they are committed to be released from the unallocated suspense account to
participants’ accounts. The compensation expense resulting from the release of the common stock from the suspense account and
allocation to plan participants will result in a corresponding reduction in Territorial Bancorp Inc.’s earnings.

Supplemental Employee Stock Ownership Plan. Territorial Savings Bank adopted the Supplemental Employee Stock
Ownership Plan (“Supplemental ESOP”) effective January 1, 2009 to provide certain executives with benefits that they would
otherwise be entitled to under the tax-qualified employee stock ownership plan, but for limitations imposed by the Internal Revenue -
Code. See “Compensation Discussion and Analysis-Retirement Plans and Other Benefits-Supplemental Employee Stock Ownership
Plan” for further information about the Supplemental ESOP. ’
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Compensation Committee Report

The Compensation Committee has reviewed and discussed the Compensation Discussion and Analysis that is required by the
rules established by the Securities and Exchange Commission. Based on such review and discussions, the Compensation Committee
recommended to the Board of Directors that the Compensation Discussion and Analysis be included in this annual report.

Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors of
Territorial Bancorp Inc.

Harold H. Ohama
Howard Y. Ikeda
Kirk W. Caldwell

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation

Our Compensation Committee determines the salaries to be paid each year to the Chief Executive Officer and those executive
officers who report directly to the Chief Executive Officer. The Compensation Committee consists of Directors Ohama, who serves as
Chairman, Caldwell, who serves as Vice-Chairman and Tkeda. None of these individuals was an officer or employee of Territorial
Bancorp Inc. during the year ended December 31, 2009, or is a former officer of Territorial Bancorp Inc. For the year ended
December 31, 2009, none of the members of the Compensation Committee had any relationship requiring disclosure under “Item 13.
Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence —Transactions with Certain Related Persons.”

During the year ended December 31, 2009, (i) no executive of Territorial Bancorp Inc. served as a member of the Compensation
Committee (or other board committee performing equivalent functions or, in the absence of any such committee, the entire Board of
Directors) of another entity, one of whose executive officers served on the Compensation Committee of Territorial Bancorp Inc.;

(ii) no executive officer of Territorial Bancorp Inc. served as a director of another entity, one of whose executive officers served on the
Compensation Committee of Territorial Bancorp Inc.; and (iii) no executive officer of Territorial Bancorp Inc. served as a member of
the Compensation Committee (or other board committee performing equivalent functions or, in the absence of any such committee,
the entire Board of Directors) of another entity, one of whose executive officers served as a director of Territorial Bancorp Inc.
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ITEM 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters

The following table provides information as of February 28, 2010, with respect to persons known by us to be the beneficial
owners of more than 5% of our outstanding common stock. Percentages are based on 12,233,125 shares of common stock issued and
outstanding as of February 28, 2010.

Percent
Number of of Common Stock
Name and Address Shares Owned Outstanding
Wellington Management Company, LLP ...............c.cccoovvvieoreeren, 1,211,067 9.9%
TS5 STALE SIECL ...ttt
Boston, MA 02109.......c.ooieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e
Territorial Savings Bank Employee StocK..............ovovevvveesereererernn, 978,650 8.0%

OWnership Plan............cccoouiriieiieieceeeeeeeee e

Capital WOrld TNVESTOIS ......o.eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee oo 782,500 6.4%
333 South Hope Street, 55" FlOOT ........ovvuevveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeseseeeesee e,
Los Angeles, CA 90071 .......ccooomereeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee

Information with respect to the security ownership of our directors and executive officers is included above in “Item 10.
Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance,” and is incorporated herein by reference.

We do not have any equity compensation program other than our employee stock ownership plan.

ITEM 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence
Transactions with Certain Related Persons

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 generally prohibits us from making loans to our executive officers and directors, but it contains
a specific exemption from such prohibition for loans made by Territorial Savings Bank to our executive officers and directors in
compliance with federal banking reguiations.

At December 31, 2009, ail of our loans to directors and executive officers were made in the ordinary course of business, were
made on substantially the same terms, including interest rates and collateral, as those prevailing at the time for comparable loans with
persons not related to Territorial Savings Bank, and did not involve more than the normal risk of collectability or present other
unfavorable features. These loans were performing according to their original terms at December 31, 2009, and were made in
compliance with federal banking regulations.

Pursuant to Territorial Bancorp Inc.’s Policy and Procedures for Approval of Related Person Transactions, the Audit Committee
periodically reviews, no less frequently than twice a year, a summary of transactions in excess of $50,000 with our directors, executive
officers and their family members, for the purpose of determining whether the transactions are within our policies and should be
ratified and approved. Additionally, pursuant to our Code of Ethics and Business Conduct, all of our executive officers and directors
must disclose any existing or emerging conflicts of interest to our Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer. Such potential
conflicts of interest inctude, but are not limited to, the following: (i) our conducting business with or competing against an
organization in which a family member of an executive officer or director has an ownership or employment interest and (ii) the
ownership of more than 1% of the outstanding securities or 5% of total assets of any business entity that does business with or is in
competition with us.

Board Independence

The Board of Directors has determined that each of our directors, with the exception of Chairman of the Board, President and
Chief Executive Officer Allan S. Kitagawa, is “independent” as defined in the listing standards of the Nasdaq Stock Market.
Mr. Kitagawa is not independent because he is one of our executive officers.

In determining the independence of the directors listed above, the Board of Directors reviewed the following transactions, none
of which are required to be reported under “—Transactions With Certain Related Persons,” above. Director Kirk Caldwell has served
as a partner of a law firm that performs legal services for Territorial Savings Bank. Director Caldwell also has a mortgage loan with
Territorial Savings Bank. Director David Murakami performs appraisal services for Territorial Savings Bank. Director Murakami also
has a mortgage loan, a home equity line of credit and overdraft protection with Territorial Savings Bank. Director Richard Murakami
has a mortgage loan and overdraft protection with Territorial Savings Bank.
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ITEM 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services
Audit Fees
The following table sets forth the fees we paid to KPMG LLP for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008.

2009 2008
AUt FEES (1) ververrereeieierereereeeie sttt e sr et ns $ 472,000 $ 690,000
Audit-related TEES (2) .ovvirreeririeererenrereerenenre ettt $ 186,000 $ 31,000
Tax fE€S (3) voveereeriirreerreeeceee e eesaeenean eerrenreseerserneneenees eveeieriesien $ 66,000 $ 47,000
ALLONET FEES .. eeeeereeeeeeeere et eeeeeecateeeere e s raesnse s beeesaes s reessneaesareeganaes $ —  $ —

(1)  Audit fees relate to the audit of Territorial Bancorp Inc.’s consolidated financial statements and to SEC registration statements.

(2)  Audit-related fees pertain to the audit of the financial statements of certain employee benefit plans. For 2009, fees also pertain to
the documentation of internal control policies and procedures over financial reporting.

{3) Tax fees consist of tax return preparation and other tax matters.

Pre-Approval of Services by the Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm:

The Audit Committee is responsible for appointing, setting compensation and overseeing the work of the independent registered
public accounting firm. In accordance with its charter adopted in connection with our becoming a public company, the Audit
(ommittee approves, in advance, all audit and permissible non-audit services to be performed by the independent registered public
accounting firm. Such approval process ensures that the external auditor does not provide any non-audit services to us that are
prohibited by law or regulation.

In addition, in connection with our becoming a publicly-traded company, the Audit Committee has established a policy
regarding pre-approval of all audit and permissible non-audit services provided by the independent registered public accounting firm.
Requests for services by the independent registered public accounting firm for compliance with the audit or services policy must be
specific as to the particular services to be provided. The request may be made with respect to either specific services or a type of
service for predictable or recurring services. During each of the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, 100% of audit services
were approved, in advance, by the Audit Committee.

PART IV

ITEM 15. Exhibits and Financial Statem‘e'ht Schedules

{a)  Financial Statements

The following documents are filed as part.of this annual report:

(i) Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

(ii) Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2009 and 2008 .

(iii) Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007

(iv) Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity and Comprehensive Income for the years ended December 31, 2009,
2008 and 2007

(v) Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007

(vi) Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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(b)  Exhibits.

3.1  Articles of Incorporation of Territorial Bancorp Inc.*
3.2 Bylaws of Territorial Bancorp Inc.*
4 Form of Common Stock Certificate of Territorial Bancorp Inc.*
10.1  Employment Agreement between Territorial Bancorp Inc. and Allan S. Kitagawa**
10.2 Employment Agreement between Territorial Savings Bank and Allan S. Kitagawa*
10.3  Employment Agreement between Territorial Bancorp Inc. and Vernon Hirata**
10.4 Employment Agreement between Territorial Savings Bank and Vernon Hirata*
10.5 Employment Agreement between Territorial Bancorp Inc. and Ralph'Y. Nakatsuka®**
10.6  Employment Agreement between Territorial Savings Bank and Ralph Y. Nakatsuka*
10.7  Supplemental Executive Retirement Agreement between Territorial Savings Bank and Allan S. Kitagawa*
10.8  Supplemental Executive Retirement Agreement between Territorial Savings Bank and Vernon Hirata*
10.9  Supplemental Executive Retirement Agreement between Territorial Savings Bank ana Ralph Y. Nakatsuka*
10.10 Executive Deferred Incentive Agreement between Territorial Savings Bank and Allan S. Kitagawa*
10.11  Executive Deferred Incentive Agreement between Territorial Savings Bank and Vemon Hirata*
10.12 Territorial Savings Bank Employee Stock Ownership Plan*
10.13 Territorial Savings Bank Non-Qualified Supplemental Employee Stock Ownership Plan**
10.14 Territorial Savings Bank Executive Incentive Compensation Plan*
10.15 First Amendment to Territorial Savings Bank Executive Incentive Compensation Plan*
10.16 Territorial Savings Bank Separation Pay Plan and Summary Plan Description*

31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rulé :1 3a-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, as
adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

31.2  Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, as
adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32 Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant
to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

* Incorporated by reference to the Registration Statement on Form S-1 (file no. 333-155388), initially filed November 14, 2008.
**  Incorporated by reference to the Current Report on Form 8-K (file no. 1-34403), filed November 18, 2009.

(c) Financial Statement Schedules

Not applicable.
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SIGNATURES

In accordance with Section 13 of the Exchange Act, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized. :

TERRITORIAL BANCORP INC.

By: /s/  ALLAN S. KITAGAWA

Allan S. Kitagawa
Chairman of the Board, President and
Chief Executive Officer
(Duly Authorized Representative)

In accordance with the Exchange Act, this report has been signed by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the
capacities and on the dates indicated. ' :

Signatures Title Date
/s/  ALLAN S. KITAGAWA Chairman of the Board, President and Mafch 29.2010
Allan S. Kitagawa Chief Executive Officer (Principal

Executive Officer)

/s/  MELVIN M. M1YAMOTO Senior Vice President and Treasurer March 29. 2010
Melvin M. Miyamoto (Principal Financial and Accounting ‘
Officer)
/s/ KIRK W. CALDWELL Director ’ ] March 29. 2010

Kirk W. Caldwell

/s/ HOWARD Y. IKEDA Director : , : March 29, 2010
Howard Y. Ikeda

/s/  DAVID S. MURAKAMI Director _ March 29, 2010
Dz_lvid S. Murakami

/s/ RICHARD I. MURAKAMI - Director : March 29, 2010
Richard 1. Murakami

/s/  HAROLD H. OHAMA Director March 29’ 2010
Harold H. Ohama
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Exhibit 31.1

Certification of Chief Executive Officer
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

I, Allan S. Kitagawa, certify that:
1) I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Territorial Bancorp Inc.;

2) Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect
to the period covered by this report;

3) Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in
this report;

4) The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiary, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation;
and

¢) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and

5) The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s Board of Directors (or persons performing the
equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 29, 2010

/s/ Allan S. Kitagawa

Allan S. Kitagawa
Chairman of the Board, President ard
Chief Executive Officer
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Exhibit 31.2

Certification of Chief Financial Officer
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

I, Melvin M. Miyamoto, certify that:
1) I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Territorial Bancorp Inc.;

2) Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect
to the period covered by this report;

3) Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in
this report;

4) The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiary, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared; ;

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation;
and

¢) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and '

5) The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s Board of Directors (or persons performing the
equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 29, 2010

/s/ Melvin M. Miyamoto

Melvin M. Miyamoto
Senior Vice President and Treasurer
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Exhibit 32

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Territorial Bancorp Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2009 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Report”), the undersigned, Allan S. Kitagawa,
Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, and Melvin M. Miyamoto, Senior Vice President and
Treasurer, each certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,
that to best of his knowledge: C

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of
operations of the Company.

/s/ Allan S. Kitagawa ‘ Date: March 29, 2010
Allan S. Kitagawa

Chairman of the Board, President and

Chief Executive Officer

/s/ Melvin M. Miyamoto Date: March 29, 2010

Melvin M. Miyamoto
Senior Vice President and Treasurer

A signéd original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to Territorial Bancorp Inc. and will be retained
by Territorial Bancorp Inc. and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.
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Territorial Bancorp Inc.
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Allan S. Kitagawa: Chairman of the Board

Kirk W. Caldwell: Managing Director of the
City and County of Honolulu, Hawaii

Howard Y. Ikeda: President of Tkeda and
Wong, CPA
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Company

Richard I. Murakami: Retired President of a
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Harold H. Ohama: Real estate consultant and
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Officers
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Cauai Branich

CORPORATE OFF

1132 Bishop Street
Suite 2200 :
Honolulu, Hawaii 96813

Ala Moana Center Branch
Street Level, Mauka

1450 Ala Moana Boulevard, #1052
Honolulu, Hawaii 96814

Downtown Branch
1000 Bishop Street
Honolulu, Hawaii 96813

Hawaii Kai Branch

Hawali Kai Shopping Ceriter
377 Keahole Street
Honolulu, Hawaii 96825

Hilo Branch
Waiakea Center
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Hilo, Hawaii 96720

Kahala Branch
4819 Kilauea Avenue
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1016 Kapahulu Avenue, Suite 130
Honotulu, Hawaii 96816
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480 Kamokila Boulevard, #2
Kapolei, Hawaii 96707
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4393 Kukui Grove Street
Lihue, Kaual, Hawaii 96766
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1279 South Kihei Road, #311
Kihel, Hawail 96753

Kona Branch
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Katlua-Kona, Hawali 96740
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170 Papalaua Street, Unit 3
Lahaina, Hawaii 96761
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Honalulu, Hawaii 96826

Territorial
Bancorp Inc.
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Nuuanu Shopping Center
1613 Nuuanu Avenue, B6
Honolulu, Hawaii 96817
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850 Kamehameha Highway, Suite B2

Pearl City, Hawaii 96782

Pearlridge Branch
98-084 Kamehameha Highway
Ajea, Hawaii 96701

Salt Lake Branch

Salt Lake Shopping Center
848 Ala Lilikoi Street
Honolulu, Hawali 96818

Waipahu Branch

Waipahu Town Center
94-050 Farrington Highway
Waipahu, Hawaii 96797

Waipio Branch

Laniakea Plaza

94-12271 Ka Uka Boulevard, #7102
Waipahu, Hawait 96797




